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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022

Principal activities and business review

Whilst the principal activity of the company continues to be the manufacturing of pumps for the diesel
engine market, the demand for electric pumps has been increasing and is expected to form a greater
proportion of revenue in future years.

2022 revenuc Icvels saw a 21% increase from the previois year mainly as a result of the global markets
picking up momentum to expected levels. There has been a general surge of demand moving from
traditional fuel pumps to electric pumps across all customer and this new opportunity in innovative
ePump technology is being embraced by the company and will gradually expand in all served markets.

The outlook for 2023 is locking positive with general market indicators projecting an increase in demand
across all OEM’s worldwide. In the 2023 results to date, the company has seen some softening in
schedules from various customers (a reduction of 7%) which is projected to continue throughout 2023
and into 2024. However, in the light of current market analysis the company also expects to continue to
see the impact from global supply chain, inflationary rates and macro-economic impacts for the
remainder of 2023. The forecast forward is showing order books softening a little, however this is
expected to improve and increase revenues going inta 2024, the challenge will remain to match potential
recovery of metals, freight, energy and economic impacts to be further passed on within the supply
chain.

Principle Risks and Uncertainties

The Company's operations expose it to a variety of financial risks that include the effects of changes in
prices, credit risk and exchange risk.

+ Pricerisk
The Company is exposed to commodity price risk, particularly for raw materials. The Company monitors

these costs through regular market analysis and assessment of metal escalator triggers and takes
corrective action when required.

s Credit risk
The Company has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks on potential customers
and ongoing review of credit levels for existing customers. These credit limits are amended when
appropriate.

» Exchange risk
The Company's operations give rise to extensive cash flows in foreign currency, the most significant of

which are in US Dollars, Euros and Indian Rupees. The company monitors the net exposure of these
cash flows on a rolling 12 month basis and uses forward contracts to hedge the associated risk.

+ Liquidity Risk
The Company has a very stable cash pesition and has a cash pool facility with the parent company.
Cash remains a key strategic focus for the business and the Company is managed to remain in a strong
liquid position.

+ Operational Risk
The Company has implemented processes that require due diligence and attention on key areas
including business interruption, health & safety, failure of IT systems, product failure, key stakeholder
analysis, litigation and fraud. Each one of these and more are topics that are addressed and discussed
regularly in the business monthly operational meetings.

¢ Cash flow Risk

The Company has carefully managed and monitored its cash flow risks through weekly management
reporting and by managing the external market variables influencing the business and its cash flow
capabilities. This involves regularly monitoring its working capital movements, managing and matching
better payments terms with key customers and suppliers and a robust capital authorisation process for
the investment projects on innovative new developments for the business.



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022 {continued)

Key performance indicators ("KPls™)
The company measures the following KPls to monitor the performance of the business:

2022 2021
Operating Margin 29.2% 24.8%
Working Capital as a % of Revenue 34.7% 39.6%
Return on Net Assets 38.8% 23.0%

o Operating Margin is defined as Qperating profit divided by Turnover
o Weorking Capital is defined as Net Current Assets less Cash at bank and in hand
o Return on Net Assets is defined as Profit for the financial year divided by Net assets

Statement by the directors in performance of their statutory duties in accordance with s172(1) of
the Companies Act 2006 (“the Act”}

The board of Concentric Birmingham Limited considers that it is comprised with appropriate individuals
with suitable skills and experience and the directors consider that they have acted, both individually and
together, in ways which would most likely promote the success of the company for the benefit of its
members as a whole, having regard to key stakeholders and matters set out in section 172 (1) of the
Companies Act 2006.

The board has implemented policies and processes to inforrm and assist its strategic planning,
management and decision making in line with its culture and values. Details of the business unit's key
stakeholders and how we engage with them are set out below.

s Shareholders

Concentric Group takes a lead in regards to assuring the strategy, performance and key decisions take
into account stakeholder's interests in decision making. The parent company and the subsidiaries
individually performs its stakeholders assessments and uses the information to assess the impact of
decisions on each stakeholder group as part of its own decision making process.

e Employees

Concentric Group as a whole embraces various platforms to communicate and reach out to its
employees, of which some of these platforms include:
o Quarterly briefings videos by the CEQ, addressing the wider group and company
performance and forward strategic planning
o Quarterly Local level management briefings, addressing local performance, targeted
expectations and providing a platform [ empioyees to raise any issues and concerns
o Regular monthly newsletters, addressing and engaging with employees on various aspects
concerning their interests and welfare
o Annual employee surveys are conducted, a collaborative approach to address and highlight
key issues and achievements, followed by feedback with clear plan of actions

* Suppliers and Customers

o Regular contacts are encouraged and addressed with key suppliers and customers_thrpugh
regular meetings, addressing day to day key operational aspects and shared strategic aim to
improving key stakeholder interaction, relationship and feedback



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

O

The Company has pulicies and processes that act as a monitoring tool to ensure there is no
involvement in modern slavery, corruption or bribery, this is also advocated through
Concentric values

Annual customer surveys are a key part of Concentric group’s values and vision, it takes
pride in putting its customers first and by conducting these surveys the company reaches out
to its customers for in-depth analysis and feedback.

e Government and Regulators

@]

The Company has a quarterly business continuity plan review which address the current
status with a view to maintain all aspects concerning business going concern, regulations,
legisiation, business relations with the wider community and any other key stakeholders.
Regular business unit reviews are conducted between business unit leaders and the
Executive team for the key business managers in the business to communicate and discuss
group's strategic direction with a key focus on compliance with laws and regulation.

s Environment

The company conducts business in an environmentally responsible way by:

&)
Q
8]

Operating our facilities in compliance with all environmental laws, rules and regulations
Providing training to employees in proper waste management procedures

Acting as geod neighbours to our surrounding communities by communicating with the public
regarding our environmental management practices where required

Minimizing the creation of waste, and dispasing of all waste in a safe and responsible manner

On behalf of the Board,

Marcus Whitehouse

Director

Company reqistered number: 00671254
Date: 27 November 2023



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2022

The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements of the company for the
vear ended 31 December 2022

Results and dividends

The profit before taxation for the year amounted to £13,825,000 (2021: £9,133,000). The directors
anticipate continuing profitability from ongoing operations. This improved profitability was due to
increased turnover and surcharge recovery from customers to mitigate the cost increases from various
suppliers around the world.

There was £14,500,000 of dividends paid during the year (2021: £nif}.
Director
The directors serving during the year and subsequent to the year-end were as follows:

D Woolley (resigned 28t Feb 2022)
M Kunz (appointed 15! March 2022)
R Storer

M Whitehouse

Directors’ Indemnities

The company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors, which
were made during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Post balance sheet events

Since the balance sheet dated 31 December 2022, the ongoing war in Ukraine continues to impact the
global economy. The directors believe the company is reasonably well placed to mitigate the impact of
the recent inflationary and supply chain issues arising from this. The directors continue to monitor the
situation closely and will adapt the business continuity plans as required.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to
be appropriate for the following reasons.

The company participates in Concentric AB’s (“the Group”) centralised treasury arrangements through a
cash pool facility and so, where appropriate, shares banking arrangements with its parent and fellow
subsidiaries. As part of the terms of the cash pool facility, the Group have the ability to utilise the cash
balance on demand.

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements. The base cash flow forecasts assume a gradual year-on-year
increase through better customer relationship management and recovery through the rest of 2023 and
2024 with trading expected to improve. The forecasts includes a severe but plausible downside scenario
with sales falling by 25% for 2024 against the base case, which the directors believe to be cautious in
light of the trading results in recent months as a resuit of the impacts from general economic movement.
In such a downside scenario the company will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities as they fall due

for that period.

However, the directors rocognice that as parl uf the vash pooling arrangement the Group is able to call
on the cash pool balances. Therefore, the directors have considered the Group’s forecasts and are
satisfied that the Group will not be reliant on the cash pool amounts in the Company for the forecast
period, even in a plausible downside scenario. The Directors therefore continue to assume that they will
have access to the cash pool balances for the forecast period.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to meet
its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial statements
and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Directors’ report (continued) for the year ended 31 December 2022

Research and Development

Research and development activities continue to be aligned with our customer requirements to reduce
parasitic iosses within engine components to improve fuel economy. The variable fiow range of products
is attracting significant interest to include evaluation testing on various customer vehicles. The separation
of advanced R&D from the main engineering function is driving a dedicated focus on new product
development, innovative range of ePump technologies with proven ultra-high levels of efficiency and
reliability are the key enablers 1o support newer innovative solutions and markets.

The research and development costs charged to the profit and loss account during the year ended 31
December 2022 amounted to £1,151,000 (2021: £946,000), the increase from the previous year is
predominantly due to the levels returning to pre-COVID functioning.

Employees

The importance of good communications and relations with all empioyees is recognised. The company
attempts to achieve this by a policy of keeping employees informed on matters affecting their interests
at meetings with employees or through employee elected representatives.

In dealing with applications for employment from disabled persons or where individuals become disabled
whilst in the employment of the company, every reascnable effort is made to provide opportunities within
the potential aptitude and ability of the individuals concerned and to provide training and other facilities
as may contribute appropriately tc their career development or premotion.

Various communication methods are also discussed in the s172 statement in the strategic report.

Political contributions

The Company made no political donations or incurred any political expenditure during the year (2021:
£nil}.

Other information

An indication of likely future developments in the business and particulars of significant events which
have occurred since the end of the financial year have been included in the Strategic Report on page 2.
Statement of disclosure of information to auditor

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they
are each aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor is unaware; and
each director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director to make himself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s auditor is aware of that information.

Independent Auditor
Pursuant to Section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor, KPMG LLP, will be deemed to be re-
appointed and KPMG LLP will therefore continue in office.

On behalf of the Board,

e

Marcus Whitehouse
Director

Unit 10

Gravelly Industrial Park

Tyburn Road

Birmingham

B24 8HW

Company registered number: 00671254

Date: 27 November 2023



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of the Annual
Report and the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2022

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that
law they have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards
and applicable law (UK Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lreland.

Under company law the directors must not approve the financiai statements unless they are satisfied
that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company and of the profit or l0ss of the
company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
make judgements and estimates that are reascnable and prudent;

state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

assess the company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and

use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to
safeguard the assets of the company and to prevent and detect fraud and other irregularities.



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Concentric
Birmingham Limited

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Concentric Birmingham Limited (“the company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2022 which comprise the Profit and loss account, Statement of comprehensive
income, Balance Sheet, Statement of changes in equity and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 3.

In our opinion the lindnclal statements:

s give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its profit
for the year then ended;

» have been properly prepared in accordance with UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Repubiic of Ireland, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (“I1SAs (UK)") and
applicable law. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethicat responsibilities
under, and are independent of the company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the
FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend
to liquidate the company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the company's
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at
least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements (*the going concern period”).

In cur evaluation of the directors' conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the company’'s
business model and analysed how those risks might affect the company’s financial resources or ability
to continue operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

s we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate;

+ we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material
uncertainty related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt
on the company's ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsegquent events may result in
outcomes that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the
above conclusions are not a guarantee that the company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of lJaws and regulations — ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (“fraud risks”} we assessed events or conditions
that could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.
Our risk assessment procedures included:

= Enquiring of directors and management as to the Company's high-level policies and procedures to
prevent and detect fraud, including the Company’s channel for “whistieblowing”, as well as whether
they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

* Reading board and management meeting minutes.



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Concentric
Birmingham Limited (continued)

» Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets for management/directors.

« Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.
We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications
of fraud throughout the audit.
As required by auditing standards, taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our
overall knowledge of the control envircnment, we perform procedures to address the risk of
management override of controls and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular the risk
that revenue is recorded in the wrong period.
We did not identify any additional fraud risks.
We performed procedures including:

s |dentifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing the identified entries to
supporting documentation. These included those posted to unusual accounts; and

+ Assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential
bias.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that couid reasonably be expected to have a material effect
on the financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, through discussion with
the directors and other management (as required by auditing standards), and discussed with the
directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and
regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any
indications of non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements
including financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits
legislation, taxation legislation and pensions legistation and we assessed the extent of compliance with
these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-
compliance could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for
instance through the imposition of fines or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most
likely to have such an effect: health and safety, employment law, regulatory capital and liquidity and
certain aspects of company legislation. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify
non-compliance with these laws and regulations to enquiry of the directors and inspection of regulatory
and legal correspondence, if any.

Therefiie if @ breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant
correspondence, an audit will not detect that breach.



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Concentric
Birmingham Limited (continued)

Coniext of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected
some material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and
performed our audit in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-
compliance with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions refiected in the financial
statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by auditing standards would identify
it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.
Our audit procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not respensible for
preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and
regulations.

Strategic report and Directors’ report

The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the
financial statements does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider
whether, based on our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or
inconsistent with the financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

. we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

. in our apinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the
financial statements; and

. in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
» certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
e we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 7, the directors are responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

i0



Independent auditor’s report to the members of Concentric
Birmingham Limited {continued)

Auditor’s responsibilities

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue cur opinion in an
ayditor’s report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect u material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at

www frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part
16 of the Companies Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the
campany’s members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the company and the company's members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

r

oy

“/7 -

John Hughes (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

One Snowhill

Snow Hill Queensway

Birmingham

B4 8GH

Date: 1 December 2023



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Profit and loss account
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note £'000 £'000

Turnover 5 45,430 37,638
Cost of sales (33,550) (27,644)
Gross profit 11,880 9,994
Distribution costs (410) (298)
Administrative expenses {3,034) (1,598)
Dividend income 3,931 -
Other operating income 6 914 1,225
Operating profit 13,281 9,323
Other finance income 8 2,878 1,721
Other finance expense 7 (2,334) (1,911)
Profit before taxation 13,825 9,133
Tax on profit 12 (1,141) (1,320)
Profit for the financial year 12,684 7,813

The notes form an integral part of these financiat statements.

12



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2022

2022 2021

Note £'000 £'000

Profit for the financial year 12,684 7,813
Other comprehensive income:

Re-measurement of net defined benefit obligations 20 651 3,516

Movement in deferred tax relating to pension deficit 12 (163) (769}

Other comprehensive income/(losses) for the year, net of tax 488 2,747

Total comprehensive income for the financial year 13,172 10,560

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

13



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Balance Sheet as at 31 December 2022

2022 2021
Note £000 £000
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 13 3,386 2,740
investments 14 727 727
Post-employment benefits 20 - 1,356
4,113 4,823
Current assets
Stocks 15 3,220 2,868
Debtors (including amounts falling due in more than one 16 30,157 28,980
year of £1,774,000 (2021: £2,107,000))
Cash at bank and in hand 21,71 25,132
55,168 56,980
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 17 (17,634) {16,959)
Net current assets 37,534 40,021
Total assets less current liabilities 41,647 44,844
Provisions for liabilities
Other provisions 18 (450) (458}
Post-employment benefits 20 {8,528) (10,389)
Net assets 32,669 33,997
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 19 - -
Share premium 718 718
Retained earnings 31,951 33,279
32,669 33,997

Total equity

The notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
These financial statements were approved by the board of directors on

were signed on its behalf by:

-

Marcus Whitehouse
Director
Company registered number: 00671254

27 November 2023 and

14



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Statement of changes in equity
as at 31 December 2022

Callzgat:g Sh_are Retai ned Total
capital premium earnings

£000 £000 £000 £'000
Balance as at 1 January 2021 - 718 22,719 23,437
Profit for the year - - 7,813 7,813
Other comprehensive income for the year - - 2,747 2,747
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 10,560 10,560
Balance as at 31 December 2021 - 718 33,279 33,997
Balance as at 1 January 2022 - 718 33,279 33,997
Profit for the year - - 12,684 12,684

Other comprehensive income for the year - - 488 488
Dividend - - (14,500) (14,500)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 13,172 13,172
Balance as at 31 December 2022 - 718 31,951 32,669

15



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022

General Information

Concentric Birmingham Limited is a subsidiary company of the Cencentric group of companies. The
company is incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The address of its registered office is
Unit 10, Gravelly Industrial Park, Tyburn Road, Birmingham, B24 9HW.

Statement of compliance

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (‘FRS 102"). The
presentation currency of these financial statements is pound sterling. All amounts in the financial
statements have been rounded to the nearest £1,000.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, uniess otherwise stated.
The company has adopted FRS 102 in these financial statements.

Going concern

The finangcial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis which the directors consider to
be appropriate for the following reasons.

The company participates in Concentric AB’s (“the Group”} centralised treasury arrangements through
a cash pool facility and so, where appropriate, shares banking arrangements with its parent and fellow
subsidiaries. As part of the terms of the cash pool facility, the Group have the ability to utilise the cash
balance on demand.

The directors have prepared cash flow forecasts for a period of at least 12 months from the date of
approval of these financial statements. The base cash flow forecasts assume a gradual year-on-year
increase through better customer relationship management and recovery through the rest of 2023 and
2024 with trading expected to improve. The forecasts includes a severe but plausible downside
scenario with sales falling by 25% for 2024 against the base case, which the directors believe to be
cautious in light of the trading results in recent months as a result of the impacts from general
economic movement. In such a downside scenario the company will have sufficient funds to meet its

liabilities as they fall due for that period.

However, the directors recognise that as part of the cash pooling arrangement the Group is able to call
on the cash pool balances. Therefore, the directors have considered the Group's forecasts and are
satisfied that the Group will not be reliant on the cash pool amounts in the Company for the forecast
period, even in a plausible downside scenario. The Directors therefore continue to assume that they
will have access to the cash pool balances for the forecast period.

Consequently, the directors are confident that the company will have sufficient funds to continue to
meet its liabilities as they fall due for at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial
statements and therefore have prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

Basis of preparation

These financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, under the historical cost convention.
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in note

4.,
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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Exemptions for qualifying entities under FRS 102.

FRS 102 allows a qualifying entity io take certain disclosure exemptions. The company has taken
advantage of the available exemption under FRS 102 paragraph 1.12(b) from preparing a statement of
rash flows, on the basis that it is a qualifying entity and its ultimate parent company, Concentric AB,
includes the company’s cash flows in its own consolidated financial statements, The company has aiso
taken advantage of exemptions avallable under FRS102 section 11 Basic Financial Instruments and
FRS102 section 12 Other Financial Instruments in respect of financial instruments not falling within the
fair value accounting rules of Paragraph 36(4) of Schedule 1. Under FRS 102 paragraph 33.7 the
company has taken advantage of the exemption not to disclose the total compensation for key
management personnel.

In accordance with Paragraph 33.1A of FRS 102, the company does not disclose transactions with
members of the same group that are wholly owned.

Consolidated financial statements

During the year, the company was a wholly owned subsidiary of Concentric AB and, in accordance with
section 401 of the Companies Act 2006, the company has not prepared consclidated financial
statements. The results of the company and its subsidiaries are consolidated in the financial statements
of Concentric AB, a cempany registered in Sweden (see note 22).

Basic financial instruments
Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable {ransaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less any impairment losses in the case of trade debtors. If the arrangement constitutes a
financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business terms, then it is
measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a similar
debt instrument.

Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial instruments

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at the present vaiue of future payments discounted
at a market rate of interest. Subsequent to initial recegnition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances and call deposits. The company has a cash pooling
facility from its parent company Concentric AB and are able to draw down cash on demand under the
rules of the arrangement.

Impairment
Financial assets fincluding trade and other debtors)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective
evidence indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the
loss event had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated

reliably.

17



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets {including trade and other deblors) {continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the
difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted at the asset’s original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less
impairment an impairment is calculated as the difference between ifs carrying amount and the best
estimate of the amount that the Company would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting
date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to be recognised through the unwinding of the discount.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a subseguent event causes the amount of
impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the
greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash
inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the “cash-generating unit” or “CGU").

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of CGUs are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the
units, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro
rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed if and only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply.

impairment losses recognised in prior pericds are assessed at each reporting date for any indications
that the loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that
the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company’s functional currency at the foreign
exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retransiated to
the functional currency at foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined,
Foroign oxchangs differeines anising on ranstiation are recognised in the profit and loss account.

Royalty Income

Payment made for the use of property, (i.e. trademark or patent} are based on a percentage of revenue
obtained through the sale of certain products recognised over time.

Turnover

Turnover represents the amounts (excluding VAT) derived from the provision of goods to customers.
Turnover is recognised when goods are delivered to customers by the Company, or when goods are
collected by the customer.
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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Tooling Income

Tooling income is recognised on the percentage of completion method of accounting and is calculated
based on the percentage of costs incurred to date compared with the total expected costs for the
contract. Tooling contracts are ayreed with customers for the sale of tooling and prototypes. This may
include lump-sum advance payment from the customers in some arrangements, whilst in others the
company may be reimbursed periodically as certain milestones are met. The company assesses the
terms of the contract to determine if control transfers over time.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research and development is written off to the profit and loss account in the year in which
it is incurred.

Employee benefits
Defined contribution pians and other long term employee benefits

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the company pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an
expense in the profit and loss account in the periods during which services are rendered by employees.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan cther than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The
Company delermines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the
period by applying the discount rate as determined at the beginning of the annual period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset) taking account of changes arising as a result of contributions and benefit

payments.

The discount rate is the yield at the balance sheet date on AA credit rated bonds denominated in the
currency of, and having maturity dates approximating to the terms of the Company’s obligations. A
valuation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The
Company recognises net defined benefit plan assets to the extent that it is able to recover the surplus
either through reduced contributions in the future or through refunds from the plan.

Changes in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service rendered during_the period,
net interest on net defined benefit liability, and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes,
curtailments and settiements during the period are recognised in profit or loss.

Re-measurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset is recognised in other comprehensive income
in the period in which it occurs.

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settie the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate
of the amount required to settle the obligation at the reporting date.
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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies {(continued)

Taxation

The taxation expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax recognised in the reporting
pericd. Tax is recognised in the profit and (oss account, except to the extent that it relates fo items
recognised in other comprchensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax
Current tax is the amount of income tax payable in respect of the taxable profit for the year or prior years.

Tax is calculated on the basis of tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the year end.

Deferred tax

The charge for taxation is based on the pre-tax result for the financial year and takes into account
taxation deferred because of timing differences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and
accounting purposes. Deferred tax is measured on a non-discounted basis at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the periods in which the timing differences reverse and is provided in respect of all
timing differences which have arisen but not reversed by the balance sheet date, except as follows:

e« Tax payable on the future remittance of the past earnings of subsidiaries is provided only to the
extent that dividends have been accrued as receivable or a binding agreement to distribute ali

past earnings exists.

e Deferred tax is not recognised on the difference between book values and fair values of non-
monetary assets arising on acquisitions unless there is a binding agreement to sell the asset
and the gain or loss expected to arise.

e Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is more likely than not that they will
be recovered

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less the estimated residual value of tangible fixed assets
by equal instaiments over their estimated useful economic lives as follows:

leasehold improvements - shorter of life of lease or 25 years
Plant and machinery - 51to 12 years

Fixtures and fittings - 3 to 10 years

Leases

Assets acquired under finance leases are capitalised and the outstanding future lease obligations are
shown in creditors. Operating lease rentals are charged to the profit and loss account on a straight line
basis over the period of the lease.

Investments

Investients in substdiary companies are held at historic cost less accumulated impairment losses. At
each balance sheet date the investments are assessed to determine whether there is an indication that
the asset may be impaired. If there is such an indication, the recoverable amount of the asset is

compared to the carrying value of the asset.
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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. !n determining the cost of raw materials,
consumables and goods purchased for resale, the ‘first in first out’ methodolngy is nsed. For work in
progrose and finished yuuds cost is taken as production cost, which includes an appropriate proportion
of attributable overheads. Consumable tools are expensed as purchased.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on re measurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Critical accounting judgements and estimation uncertainty
Critical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies

No critical judgements have been taken when applying the accounting policies of the company. The
policies have been applied as they are stated in Note 3.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the fufure. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

Defined benefit pension scheme

The company has an obligation to pay pension benefits to certain employees. The cost of these benefils
and the present value of the obligation depend on a number of factors, including life expectancy, inflation
and the discount rate on corporate bonds. Management estimates these factors in determining the net
pension obligation in the balance sheet. The assumptions reflect historical experience and current trends
and relevant discount rate, mortality rates, CPl and RP! are applied. See note 20 for the disclosures
relating to the defined benefit pension scheme.

Turnover

All turnover is attributable to the company’s principal activity of manufacturing pumps for diesel and
electric engines for agricultural and commercial vehicies. The analysis of turnover by geographical
market is given below:

2022 2021

£000 £000

United Kingdom 11,443 10,322
Rest of Europe 21,846 20,802
USA 9,700 4,268
Far East 2,441 2,246
45,430 37,638
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

6 Other Operating Income

2022 2021
£000 £000
Product Development and Tooling Income 670 1,050
Royalty Income 244 175
914 1,225
7 Other finance expense
2022 2021
£°000 £'000
Net loss on financial liabilities measured at fair value through P&L - (3)
Pension Interest expense (Note 20) (2,334) (1,9C8)
Interest expense on bank accounts - (2}
(2,334) (1,911)
8 Other finance income
2022 2021
£000 £000
Net toss of financial liabilities measured at fair value through P&L 490 -
Interest income on fair value of plan assets (Note 20) 2,182 1,721
interest income on bank accounts 206 -
2,878 1,721
9 Expenses and Auditor’'s remuneration
2022 2021
£°000 £000
Operating profit is stated after charging:
Depreciation of Tangible Fixed Assets — owned (note 13) 611 824
Hire of Other - Operating Leases 152 244
Rental — Operating Leases 504 494
Research and Development Expenditure 1,151 946
Services provided by the Company’s Auditor:
73 63

Audit Fees payable to the Company’s Auditor
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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

10 Employee information

The average monthly number of persons employed by the company (including directors} during the

year was as follows:

Number of empioyees

By activity: 2022 2021
Production 131 124
Administration 15 13
146 137
The aggregate payroll costs of these individuals were as follows: 2022 2021
£000 £'000
Wages and salaries 5,245 5,382
Social security costs 558 533
Pension costs 172 191
5,975 6,106
11 Directors’ emoluments
Remuneration in respect of directors was as follows:
2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Directors’ emoluments 128 120
Company contributions to defined contribution schemes 7 7
135 127

Members of:

Number of directors

2022

2021

Company Jelined contribution schemes

1

1

During the year ended 31 December 2022 none of the directors were accruing benefits under a

defined benefit pension scheme (2021: none).

23



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

12 Taxation
{a) Total tax recognised in the profit and loss account

2022 2021
£000 £000
Current tax
UK corporation tax on profits for the year 1,881 1.488
Adjustment in respect of prior periods {910) 67
Total current tax 971 1,555
Deferred taxation
Crigination and reversal of timing differences 137 371
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (3) 1
Changes in tax rates or laws 36 (607)
Total deferred taxation 170 (235)
Total tax recognised in the profit and loss account 1,141 1,320
{b) Total tax recognised in other comprehensive income
2022 2021
£000 £000
Deferred taxation
Origination and reversal of timing differences 163 883
Impact of change in tax rates - {114)
Total deferred taxation 163 769
Total tax recognised in other comprehensive income 163 769
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Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Taxation (continued)

{c} Summary of total tax within the financial statements

2022 2021
£°000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £:000 £000
Current Deferred Total Currant Deferred Total
tax tax tax tax tax tax
Recognised in the profit and loss

account 971 170 1,141 1,555 (235) 1,320

Recognised in other comprehensive
income - 163 163 - 769 769
Total tax 971 333 1,304 1,555 534 2,089

{d) Reconciliation of effective tax rate

The tax assessed for the year is the standard effective rate of corporation tax in the UK for the year

ended 31 December 2022 of 19% (2021: 19%). The differences are explained below:

2022 2021

£'000 £000
Profit before taxation 13,825 9,133
Total tax recognised in the profit and loss account 1141 1,320
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of tax in the UK 19.00% (2021: 2,627 1,735
19%)
Effects of:
Tax exempt income (734) -
Patent box incentives - (24)
Transfer Pricing Adjustment 113 106
Non-deductible expenses 9 42
Adjustment in respect of prior periods (910) 68
Change in tax rates 36 (607)
Tulal tux chargel(credit} for the year 1,141 1,320

Adjustments in respect of prior periods relate to differences between the accounting position and final

submitted tax returns to HMRC.
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

Taxation (continued)

{e} Factors that may affect future tax charges

Since 1 April 2002, the UK Corporation tax rate applicable has been at 19 per cent. A change fo the
main UK ecorporation tax rate from 19 to 25 percent with effect from 1 Aprit 2023 was announced in the

Budget on 3 March 2021, and was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021.

Accordingly, UK deferred tax has been provided at a rate of 25 per cent on assets (2022: 25 per cent)
and 25 per cent on liabilities (2022: 25 per cent), recognising the applicable tax rate at the point when
the timing difference is expected to reverse.

Deferred taxation
Deferred tax recognised in the financial statements in the current and previous year is as follows:

2022 2021

Provided Unprovided Provided Unprovided

£000 £000 £'000 £000

Capital allowances {367) - (160) -

Post-employment benefits 2,141 - 2,267 -

Included in Debtors (falling due more than one 1,774 - 2107 -
year)

Total deferred tax (see note 16) 1,774 - 2,107 -
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Notes to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

13 Tangible assets
Leasehold Plant and Fixtures
improvements machine and Total
P vy fittings
£°000 £000 £000 £°000
Cost
At 1 January 2022 919 27,312 4,607 32,838
Additions - 1,232 25 1,257
At 31 December 2022 919 28,544 4,632 34,095
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2022 919 24,694 4,485 30,098
Charge for the year - 586 25 611
At 31 December 2022 919 25,280 4,510 30,709
Net book value
At 31 December 2021 - 2,618 122 2,740
At 31 December 2022 - 3,264 122 3,386
14 Fixed Asset Investments

Shares in subsidiary undertakings

£000

Cost and net book value

At 1 January and 31 December 2022

727

The directors consider the value of the investments to be supported by their underlying assets.
Subsidiary undertakings’ details are as foliows:

% of
Country of ; ordinary Nature of
Name incorporation Registered address shares business
hield
Complete Parts England and 5 Brooklands, Redditch, Worcester o
Limited Wales B98 9DW 100% Dormant
Concentric England and 5 Brooklands, Redditch, Worcester 100% Dormant
Engineering Limited  Wales B98 9DW 00%
tri Gate No. 26/1, 27 & 28 (Part), off Vehicle
Concentric P.””.‘PS india Pune Nagar Road, Lonikand, Pune:  98% component
Pune {Pte} Limited 412218, INDIA manufacturing
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

15 Stocks
2022 2021
£000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 2,713 2,277
Work in progress 447 383
Finished goods 60 208
3,220 2,868

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and work in progress recognised as cost
of sales in the year amounted to £25,409,000 (2021: £18,526,000). The write-down of stocks to net
realisable value amounted to £11,000 (2021: £21,000). The write-down and reversal are included in cost

of sales.
16 Debtors

2022 2021

£7000 £000

Trade debtors 6,061 5,525

Other debtors 653 370
Prepayments and accrued income 586 266
Amounts owed by group undertakings 21,083 20,712
Deferred tax asset 1,774 2107
30,157 28,980

Amounts owed by group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and represent trading balances.
Included within Debtors is a deferred tax asset of £1,774,000 (2020: £2,107,000) due in more than one

year.
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Creditors: amounts due within one year

2022 2021

£000 £000

Trade creditors 6,348 4,039
Amounts owed to group undertakings 8,958 11,708
Other creditors 31 27
Other taxes and social security costs 192 196
Corporation tax liability 1,090 47
Accruals and deferred income 1,015 942
17,634 16,959

Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, interest free and represent trading balances.
These balances are repayable on demand.

Other Provisions

Dilapidations Warranty Total

£'000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2022 275 183 458
Utilised in the year - (8) (8)
Charge in the year - - -
At 31 December 2022 275 175 450

Dilapidations provision

A dilapidations provision has been recognised to cover contractual dilapidation costs under the lease
agreement for the building. The ditapidation provision has not been discounted as the effect (or impact)
has been considered to be immaterial.

Warranty provision

A warranty provision has been recognised to cover expected warranty obligations to customers. The
provision is expected to unwind over the course of the next two years.

29



Concentric Birmingham Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (continued)

19 Called up share capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
Number Number £ £
Authorised, allotted and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of £1 each 100 100 100 100
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the company.
20 Post-employment benefits

Defined benefit schemes

The company participated in two defined benefit pension schemes (the “Main” scheme and the
“Directors” scheme) in the United Kingdom, both of which are considered to be related parties to the
Company providing benefits based on final pensionable pay. The schemes are funded by the payment
of contributions to separately administered trust funds that hold the pension scheme assets to meet the
long term pension liabilities. Both of these schemes have been closed to new entrants and future accrual
and replaced by defined contribution schemes. The Directors’ scheme shares risks between entities
under common control being Concentric Pumps Limited and Concentric Tipton Limited. Separate
disclosures have not been included in these financial statements in respect of the Directors’ scheme as
the directors have concluded these are not material. Amounts in this note reflect both the Main scheme
and Concentric Birmingham Limited’s share of the Directors’ scheme.

Employee Benefits

In respect of the Directors’ scheme the benefit costs and contributions attributable to the Company are
calculated on a pro-rata basis. Mercer are the actuarial advisors to the Company.

Allocation of defined benefit obligation between employers in the Directors’ Scheme

The split of defined benefit obligation is based upon the latest actuarial funding valuation results. Which
for the year-end 31 December 2022 is the 31 December 2021 valuation. Benefit payments from the
Scheme are not recorded by entity and, therefore, a pro-rata approach is taken based upon the totai
defined benefit obligation at the start of the year from the valuation split by entity and member status

Allocation of Plan Allocation of Plan Assets between Companies within the Directors’ Scheme

The total assets of the scheme were initially pro-rated to each based on the defined benefit obligation
at that time. Each year this is updated to refiect a consistent basis as that calculated for the liability as

explained above.

2022 2021
£'000 £000
Defined benefit obligation (92,458} (128,841)
Plan assets 83,930 119,808
Deficit in the schemes (8,528) (9,033)
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Post-employment benefits (continued)

Movements in present value of defined benefit obligation

2022

£000
At 1 January 2022 (128,841)
Benefits paid 5,642
Interest expense (2,334)
Actuarial gains 34,999
Service cost for salary link {(1,600)
Expenses (324)
At 31 December 2022 (92,458)

The DBQ has reduced significantly primarily as a result of corporate bond yields increasing following
the change of government in Q4 and impact of the then chancelior's mini-budget. The scheme assets
have reduced significantly accordingly as a result of the scheme’s asset liability matching strategy, the
bond and insurance portfolio has reduced in line with the liability. The multi asset mutual fund has also
decreased significantly as a result of general market volatility.

Movements in fair value of plan assets

2022

£000
At 1 January 2022 119,808
Benefits paid (5,642}
Interest income 2,182
Actuarial losses {35,748)
Actuarial gains in respect of prior year {see below) 1,400
Employer contributions 1,930
At 31 December 2022 83,930

During the vear, the directors identified that fair value movements in pension assets had been
understated in the prior year. The impact is to increase the pension assets by £1,400,000 in the year
which has been recognised in other comprehensive income in the current year.

The adjustment has been recognised in the current financial year rather than prior periods as the
directors have concluded that the adjustment is not sufficiently material to restate comparative
infformation presented.
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Post-employment benefits (continued)

Defined benefit costs recognised in the profit and loss:

2022 2021

£000 £'000
Expenses (324) (394)
Service cost for salary link (1,600) -
Gains/ (losses) due to benefit changes - 3,516
Interest income 2,182 1,721
Interest expense (2,334) (1,906)
Defined benefit costs recognised in the profit and foss account {2,076) 2,937

In 2022 a new sole Trustee and Administrator was appointed to manage the pension schemes. Upon
takeover the new Trustees completed a review of the Scheme Rules and identified the Plans did not
close to accrual and that a salary link should have remained for members still employed by the
Company (although link to service was severed). The Trustees and Scheme Actuary have completed
an analysis based on the available data and estimate that the additional liability fo members
represents 1.9% of the defined benefit obligation for the Main scheme. The impact is to increase the
defined benefit obligation by £1,600,000 in the year which has been recognised as a past service cost
in the profit and loss account for the year. The adjustment has been recognised in the current financial
year rather than prior periods as the directors have concluded that the adjustment is not sufficiently
material {0 restate comparative information presented.

It is recognised that as the administrators of the scheme complete their data exercises and
confirmations, the estimate will be refined and there is therefore a degree of uncertainty in the
estimate recorded. This however represents the directors best estimate of the impact based on
information available at the balance sheet date. Subsequent changes to the estimate will be recorded
through other comprehensive income as experience adjustments.

Defined benefit income/(losses) recognised in other comprehensive income:

2022 2021
£'000 £'000
Return on plan assets (34,348) (3,203)
Re-measurement gains/(losses) 34,999 6,719
Defined benefit incomei/(losses) recognised in other 651 3516

comprehensive income

The best estimate of centributions to be paid by the employer to the scheme for the year beginning
after 1 January 2023 is £2,005,000.
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Post-employment benefits (continued)

Scheme assets

The fair vaiue of the scheme’s assets and the return on those assets were as follows:

2022 2021

£000 £000
Bonds 33,962 47,549
Multi Asset Mutual fund 34,938 54,615
Cash 1,660 1,308
Insured Asseis 13,370 16,336
Fair value of plan assets 83,930 119,808

None of the fair values of the assets shown above includes any direct investments in the employer’s
own financial instruments or any property occupied by, or other assets used by, the employer.

Principal actuarial assumptions at the year-end were as follows:

2022 2021

Discount rate 5.05% 1.85%
Rate of inflation - Retail Price Index ("RPI"} 3.15% 3.40%
- Consumer Price Index (“CPI1") 2.65% 2.90%

Allowance for commutation of pension for cash at retirement 80% 100%
Rate of increase in pension payment 3.50% 3.55%

The last actuarial valuation for both the Main scheme and the Directors’ scheme was updated to 31
December 2022 by a qualified actuary, using the projected unit basis, independent of the scheme’s
sponsoring employers. The contributions for the year were £1,930,000 (2021: £2,005,000). The last
triennial valuation for the Main scheme was 31 December 2022 and for the Directors’ scheme was 31
December 2021.

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are
based on standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in
longevity. The assumptions have not been updated to reflect the potential impacts of COVID-19 as a
result of the uncertainty of the impact on long-term meortality rates. The assumptions are equivalent to
expecting a 65-year old to live for a number of years as follows:

2092
Years
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners:
Men 21.4
Women 23.7
Longevity at age 65 for future pensioners:
Men 22.7
Women 25.2
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Post-employment benefits (continued)

The scheme administrators were informed in the prior year that the scheme may retain responsibility for
the GMP liability in respect of 32 members whose benefits were secured with an insurer historically. The
Company and the administrator are awaiting further details from the annuity providers and therefore
there is insufficient information available to conlinn whether a liability wili arise for the scheme. The
Company do not expect a material increase to the defined benefit liability will be required with respect
to this matter.

Defined contribution scheme

The company operates a defined contribution pension scheme. The pension cost for the period
represents contributions payable by the company and amounted to £191,000 (2021: £191,000).

There were no outstanding or prepaid contributions at either the beginning or end of the financial year.

21 Financial commitments
At 31 December 2022, the company had annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases
as set out below:
Other Land and buildings
2022 2021 2022 2021
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Operating leases which expire:
Within one year 42 56 513 513
- In second to fifth years inclusive 17 43 2,052 2,051
After more than five years - - 1,539 2,062
59 99 4,104 4616
22 Immediate and ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party

The directors consider Concentric Pumps Ltd to be the immediate parent undertaking.

Throughout the year, the ultimate parent undertaking and controliing party was Concentric AB, which
was the parent company of the smallest and largest group to conselidate these financial statements in
full. Copies of Concentric AB consolidated financial statements can be obtained from the group’s website

at www.concentricah.com.
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CONCENTRIC INTRO

(RN

Focused on innovations that create
sustainable value

Suctainahility i< central to all the technological
advancement and continuous innovation that has
defined Concentric over the years and it will
continue to carry us strongly inte the future. Itis
embedded in everything we do and it underscores
our commitment to engineering positive impacts
and creating real value for our customers and the
world. It is also what drives our people to harness
the best of their knowledge and expertise to create
the most far-reaching, responsible solutions.
True to the ethos of
, we work closely and proactively

with aur customers to help them reduce their
emissions and preserve resources. Gur purpose
has never been more relevant than it is today, and
we focus on those areas where we can make the
biggest impact. We value our ability to adapt effi-
ciently to current and emerging industry needs.

Moving forward, we will remain committed to
develop, produce and offer sustainable products
and solutions and to contribute to the sustainable
development of our customers, partners and com-
munities we serve.




. COMCENTRIC IN BRIEF

Concentric
in brief

Concentric focuses on its core ethos of Technology, Innovation and Sustainability
to be a global leader across all primary end markets, providing solutions in which
Concentric can add value to our customer’s products.

Vision
Deliver sustainable growth for every Innovate new products to meet our
application in the markets we serve. customer’s needs and manufacture

quality products cost effectively.

This will be achieved thraugh Business Excellence in all Cencentric’s purpose is to design, develop, manufac-
we do. Capitalising upon our global infrastructure and ture and sell high quality, customer focused solutions
being adjacent to our customers. Developing world for hydraulic and engine applications within our global
class technology with innovative selutions that meet end-markets.

the demands of our customers and end-markets.

Values
Business excellence Achievement through
in all we do our people
# Performance ® Integrity
# Process # Teamwork
# Change & Resilience

# Openness

Dedicated
customer focus

#® Sustainable products
® Customer satisfaction



CONCENTRIC IN BRIEF

Two business segments

Engines
Engine products encompass lubricant, coolant
and fuel transfer pumps from our conventional
business, supplied into major OEMs and Tier 1
diesel engine manufacturers of both on- and off-
highway vehicles. It also includes our growing
e-Products business of both Concentric branded
water and oil
e-Pumps and
EMP products,
including the
mini-hybrid
cooling system.

CONSTRUCTION

@ 34%

iNDUSTRIAL

g%@
AGRICULTURE 66%
20% 48 of total
business

sales

TRUCKS
37%

Hydraulics

Hydraulic products are supplied into both
major OEMs and distributors of hydraulic
soluticns. It encompasses gear pumps, power
packs, Allied branded transmission pumps,
internal gear pumps and our growing range
of Electro Hydraulic Steenng pumps.

CONSTRUCTION

@ 37%

INDUSTRIAL

o 34..

of total
business
sales

acriculTure S TRUCKS
139 W 16%

Primary end markets

CONSTRUCTION

Concentric provides pumping selu-
tions used in a wide variety of mobile
construction equipment, including
engine pumps, hydraulic fan drives
and ancillary hydraulic pumps.

AGRICULTURE
Concentric seil directly to the OEMs
of agricultural machinery, providing

¥

products for tractors and other speci-
ality equipment.

TRUCKS

Concenltric sells products, primarily
into the medum- and neavy-dury
truck markets directly to the Truck
OEMs and Tier 1 diesel engine manu-
facturers.

INDUSTRIAL

Industrial applications encompass

a wide variety of markets, from fork-
lifts for the retail and distribution
industries to heavy machines used in
mining. We supply directly to OEMs
and via our distnbution network.
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Highlights 2022

e Record sales performance

+ Operating margin resilience during a challenging year

Strong cash generation through working capital management
Electric sales are 17% of total sales

e Successful integration of EMP

Sales and operating margins Full year market indices 2022 vs 2021

us EU india

Construction

@ 10% -3% 14%

Trucks*

L 12% 3% 21%

Agriculture

10% -2% -13%

18 19 20 21 22

@ Netsates, MSFK @ Operating margin, % ~ Medmum & heavy trucks
Hey figures, amounts in MSEK unless otherwise specified 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Net sales 4,056 2,115 1,502 2.012 2,410
Qrganic sales growth, constant currency, % 15 31 -23 -20 12
Operating income before items affecting comparability 668 443 291 472 525
Operating margin before items affecting comparability, % 165 20.9 19.4 23.5 221
Operating income 677 403 276 472 529
Operating margin, % 16.7 19.1 18.4 235 219
Net income for the year 501 338 205 321 405
Cash flow from operating activities 529 260 337 386 554
Diluted earnings per share, SEK 13.18 8.88 5.42 8.36 10.27
Basic earntngs per share, SEK 13.20 891 543 8.37 10.30
Dividends, SER 5.00% 375 3.50 3.25 4.25
Net debt 925 1,192 86 54 12
Gearing {Net debt/equity) ratio, % 45 82 8 5 1
Return on equity, % 26.6 26.2 17.5 28.5 41.6
Market capitalisation 7,414 10,658 £,938 6,005 4,628

1) Proposed dwidend at the 2023 AGM.
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Group total net sales by business segment

INDUSTRIAL 17%

CONSTRUCTION 36%

Net sales

4,056

AGRICULTURE 18% G 8

Engines

INDUSTRIAL

gn/o@

CONSTRUCTION

@ 34%

AGRICULTURE 66%
20% of total
business
sales

TRUCKS
3%

External
net sales 2,691 MSEK 66+
QOperatin
in’éome g 427 msex 64%

Average number
of employees

825 68%

Net sales — Group

This has been a transformaticnal year for Concentric
following the successful acquisition and integration

of EMP, which combined with an overall strong trading
performance has increased our net sales for the full
year to SEK 4.1B, the highest in the Company’s history.
However, this has also been a challenging year with the
war in Europe, the energy crisis, continued instability
in the global supply chain and general inflationary
pressures, but still Concentric achieved 15% organic
growth in 2022, Sales also grew due to the impact of
currency +12% and acquisiton of EMP +65%, for total
growth of 92%.

[ |
L—— "B TRUCKS 29%

Hydraulics

INDUSTRIAL
34%

CONSTRUCTION

@ w

B

34.

of total
business
sales

AGRICULTURE TRUCKS
13% 16%

34% 1,365 msex

36% 241 msex
32« 382

Operating income - Group

The reported Operating income for the year amounted
to MSEK 677 (603) resulting in an Operating margin

of 16.7% (19.1). Excluding the profit from the sale of
Chivilcoy, the underlying operating margin for 2022
was 16.5% (20.9). Our Business Excellence programme
continues to deliver strong margins despite inflation-
ary cost pressures from suppliers.



CEQ COMMENT

CEQ review of 2022

Reflecting on
the year

 am honoured and

pleased about taking on

the role as President and

CEQ of the Concentric

Group, in what has g
proved to be a transfor- '0

mational year for the
company.




This has truly been a transfermational year for Cencen-
tric following the successful acquisition and integra-
tion of EMP, which combined with an overall strong
trading performance has increased cur reported net
sales for the full year to SEK 4.1 billion, the highest in
thie Company's history.

At the same time, this has also been a challenging
year, with the war in Europe, the energy crisis, contin-
ued instability in the global supply chain and general
inflaticnary pressures. Despite these challenges, the
Concentric team has delivered strong sales and robust
operating margins each quarter throughout 2022.

Demand has continued to exceed supply throughout
the year, albeit in an environment that has progres-
sively improved quarter-on-quarter. However, the avail-
ability of raw materials and components constrained
sales to our end markets, causing an increase in the
order backlog each consecutive quarter during 2022,
particularty in our North American facilities.

We endeavour to satisfy these customer orders during
2023, This supply and demand imbalance, as well as
the additional difficulties mentioned above, have pres-
surised the global supply chain, resulting in metal and
economic price increases from our suppliers on a scale
and consistency not seen in some time. Our commer-
cial teams have been successful, passing these cost
increases up the value chain working closely with our
customers to maintain our strong operating margins.

This year we tock a major step forward to achieve cur
target of 20% of group sales coming from e-Products
by 2025, following the acquisition of EMP, a business
that already attributes a significant proportion of sales
to electric products. Fer the 2022 period, 17% of our
total sales stemmed from e-Products. This could have
been even closer to our target percentage had it not
been fer the global shortage of semi-conductors, con-
straining sales, We have atso defined other key perfor-
mance indicators, which we have shared with investors
quarterly to track our progress in this increasingly
important strategic growth area.

CEQ COMMENT

Overall, our end-markets remained at a sustained
high-level year-cn-year, constrained by supply but with
a geographically mixed picture. The North American
market was strang with growth in all end-market appii-
cations, Withinthe European market the truck sector
grew modestly, and the off-highway sectors, Construc-
tion and Agriculture contracted. india continued to
offer growth opportunities in both the construction
equipment and medium- and heavy-duty truck seclors;
both markets grewin excess of 10% in 2022. India
remains a pillar of our growth strategy and we recently
announced our first on-highway business nominations
in this region.

The economic situation in China has been affected
by a headwind all year, particularly for Alfdex, our joint
venture wilh Alfa Laval, which has a significant pres-
ence in China, supplying oil-mist separators to key
OEMs to achieve China VI emission standards. Stringent
Covid-19 policies have dampened demand and slowed
economic growth. However, we are hopeful that recenl
announcements in relaxing of the Covid-18 rules will
reinvigorate the economy during 2023,

Financial performance
Group sales, in constant currency and excluding EMP,
were up +15% and reported sales were up +92% for
the full year. Qur Business Excellence programme
enhanced by new pillars such as global sourcing main-
tained the Group's profitabilily at a strong level despite
inflationary cost increases from suppliers.

The full-year reporied operating margin was 16.7%
(19.1).

with the ongoing disruption within our glebal supply
chain, we continued to hold the required levels of
inventory to meet our customers’ production needs.
At the same time, a broader focus on cur working
capital management ensured this year’s profit-lo-cash
conversion ratio of 102%. Strong cash flows from oper-
ations, remeasurement of pensions liabilities and con-
tinuing to paydown term loans, ensured the reduction
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of net debt for the Group to 925 MSEK and a gearing
ratio of 45%. We were atso able to pay a 2021 dividend
to shareholders of SEK 3.75 {3.50) per share and main-
tain a healthy cash and cash-equivalents position at
the end of the year, to the value of MSEK 624 (440). This
is sufficient to both finance the day-to-day operations
and lends room for future acquisitions.

EMP - successfully integrated

The acquisition of EMP during the fourth quarter of
2021 has been truly transformational and a great suc-
cess story because of the hard work and dedication of
all our employees to complete the important integra-
tion work during 2022, which included:

+ The merging of commercial teams managing our
mechanical products business, creating one face
to the customer, which has been well received;

» The completion of training for both Eurcpean and
North American commercial teams to allow them to
cross sell both e-Product and our mechanical product
ranges; and

« Operational synergies in North America in progress,
among them the recently implemented strategic
sourcing organisation,

Whilst much of the integration work is complete, we
will work to identity further opportunities to integrate
operations, reduce cost and maximise sales opportuni-
ties in the coming year,

The strategic rationale for acquiring EMP was to sup-
port our electrification strategy, allowing us to develop
world-class technology with innovative solutions that
meet the sustainability needs of our customers, whether
the powertrain technology is fuel cell, battery or a
hybrid solution. Our combined technology offering
has created a high level of interest from customersin
North America and Eurcpe, particularly for our high
voltage e-Products, mini hybrid cooling systems and

electro hydraulic steering units across the range of
zero emission powertrains. Progress in winning proto-
type orders, shipping prototype units or new business
naminations will be regularly shared with investors.

The strength of Concentric’s balance sheet supports
our ambition for further acquisitions and our dedicated
ME&A team continues to prioritise opportunities which
can offer either technical or geographical revenue
growth.

Sustainability at Concentric
We include the Giobal Reporting [nitiative (GRI} index
in this year's Sustainability Report. Sustainability efforts
constitute an integral part of Concentric’s operations
and is something we consider when engaging with
all our stakeholders. The aim is to ensure a holistic
approach with as many positive results as possible,
environmentally, socially and economically. Most
plants within the Concentric Group are certified to
IS0 14001 or higher, demonstrating the Group’s
enviroamental credentials and commitment ta reduce
emissions and waste. The GRI index is a framework
with tangible goals that provides for a structured way
to plan, execute and follow-up o Concentnic’s sustain-
ability efforts. Our product by its design and high effi-
ciency function is already recognised for reducing
engine parasitic losses, thereby reducing fuel con-
sumption and CO, emissions. Qur next-generation
e-Pumps ratse the bar again, as we help to deliver
“power-on-demand”, further reducing energy wastage.
New sustiainability reporting requirements have
been clarified and Concentric has complied with the
EU Taxonomy financial disclosures requirements.
We welcome the new standard and will work during
2023 to meet further sustainability reporting require-
ments, which will aid our investors to better under-
stand how our sustainable technology will benefit
the global environment.



2023 outlook

The overall published market indices blended tc Con-
centric’'s mix of end-market applications and locations
suggests the market for the full year 2023 will be
weaker than 2022, as regional central banks continue
to increase interest rates to tackle the high inflationary
environment, meaning the macroeconomic picture
remains uncertain. However, near-term demand from
our customers and their medium-term outiook remains
positive, indicating demand for our products could
continue at similar levels to those experienced during
2022. We expect the availability of critical raw materi-
als and components to continue to influence our sales
during 2023 as well as enduring inflationary cost pres-
sures, mainly due to supplier increases and shortages.
Despite this we expect that the initiatives we will exe-
cute during 2023 wil{ enable us to maintain our strong
trading margins.

Whilst the economic outlook is uncertain, our cus-
tomers continue to strive towards CO, neutrality and
zero emissions, and Concentric has the technology and
innovation to support these developments with waorld-
class e-Product solutions. We wiil continue to invest in
people and product to support our electrification strat-
egy, and will search fer further acquisitions to gener-
ate incrganic revenue growth.

The last three years have been challenging, 2022 in
particular, and I'd like to thank all employees for their
commitment and hard work in supporting our custom-
er’s needs whilst creating strong financiat returns for
our shareholders.

CEOQ COMMENT

Personal words on taking on the role

& new leadership team

A vear ago, | took on the role as CEO and President of
the Concentric group. The past year has been a trans-
formationat cne for the company where record results
could only be delivered with excepticnal collaboration
fram our dedicated employees, supported by our sup-
pliers and customers to overcome such a challenging
business environment. Working together as One Con-
centric, the group delivered exceilent organic growth,
record sales and strong margins.

With the integration of EMP into the Concentric fam-
ily, our team expanded by an additional 400 motivated
and skilled employees, exciting our people and custom-
ers with new opportunities. The integration of the EMP
business, created closer ties between employees across
the globe. We instigated diverse, cross-functional
teams to coliaborate on key growth initiatives during
the year with many of these activities providing devei-
opment opportunities for our people and strengthening
our One Concentric appreach.

I am incredibly proud of the achievements of our
team during 2022 and look forward to the continuation
of these efforts to deliver strong performance in the
coming year.

Martin Kunz
President and CEO
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Business model
for innovation

Our business is built around customer-focused innovation based on
our deep technological expertise. With it, we aim to supply sustainable
solutions that add value to our customers’ products.

We work in partnership
with our customers ...

We design, develaop, manufacture and sell, high quality, customer-focused solu-
tions. Qur business model is to supply technology and innovation throughout
our customers’ product life cycle, not just at the evaluation and design phase.
As such we work in close partnership with our customers to supply industry
leading solutions.

Through our Business Exceilence programme, we relentlessly strive for con-
tinuous improvement and to drive out waste and inefficiencies in our opera-
tions.

10



... to develop
products ...

«Engine products
-Hydraulic products

Our products provide:

- Solutions for alternative fuels and
electrification

+ Lower fuel consumption and reduced
ermissions

+ Higher encragy efticiency, including

intelligent products that respond to

the dut e

- Durable and reliable cts which
mp > uptime

« "Fit and forget”™ products designed
for life

11

BUSINESS MODEL

g Two sales channels
" «Direct sales to OEM and
Tier-1 suppliers
« Distribution

... for primary end
markets.

Construction
Trucks
Agriculture

Industrial
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Engine products

Concentric is a Tier-1 supplier to diesel engine manufacturers and major
QOEMs. We offer lubricant, coolant and fuel transfer pumps for diesel
engines and e-Pumps for electric drivetrains, diesel engines and energy
storage among other uses. The acquisition of EMP strengthened our e-Pump
range and added thermal management systems to our offering. Alfdex, our
50/50 joint venture with Alfa Laval, manufactures oil mist separators.

Products

OlL PUMP

High performance positive
displacement pumps that are
designed and validated for 1.5
million km lifetime and beyond.

FUEL TRANSFER PUMP

The Concentric low pressure

fuel transfer pump range
supports the high pressure fuel
injection systems used in medium
and heavy duty diesel engines.
Each bespoke design enables
fast priming and low epergy
performance.

WATER PUMP

Concentric and EMP offer

. conventional water pumps
for commercial and of f highway
vehicles optimised for reliability
and performance.

LICOS CLUTCH

The LICOS clutch system
enable pumps with semi-
variable flow, which reduces
power consumption.

DUAL CONE CLUTCH

The Dual Cone Clutch products
£nable power on and off fune-
tions in hydraulic systems to
eliminate parasitic losses for
vehicle applications.

12

MINI-HYBRID ELECTRIC
COOLING SYSTEM

The electric fan design of EMP’s.
mini-hybrid system outperforms
mechanical fans, resulting in
significant fuel savings.

E-FUEL PUMP

A new range of etectric fuel
transfer pumps delivering
improved fuel system perfor-
mance, including energy savings
and enhanced priming times.
The software also enables fuel
system diagnestics including
predicting fuet filter lifetime.

E-OiL PUMP

e-Pumps are powered by their
own electrical motorand con-
trolled by software, which ena-
bles more precise optimisation of
running parameters. EMP signifi-
cantly adds to our range of
e-Pumps.

E-WATER PUMP

Concentric and EMP offer
complimentary e-water pumps
for cooling of hybrid and electric
commercial vehicles. The seal-
tess wet rotor design enables
high power density and extremely
long lifetimes and are suitable
for the many harsh environments
encountered in on and off high-
way commercial applications

ALFDEX OIL

MIST SEPARATOR

The Alfdex oil mist separator

uses a centrifugal separation
technique to prevent unclean ven-
titated crankcase gases returning
to the intet of diesel engines or
being emitted to the environment.



Market position

Concentric is a Tier-1 supplier with a long history and a
proven track-record within the industry. Today, we are
one of the few global players in the market for both
diesel engine pumps and e-Products. Alfdex is a glebal
market leader in crankease gas ventilation. With the
acquisition of EMP in 2021, we significantly strength-
ened our positicn in e-Product technology and our
presence in North America.

Priorities

- Target the next generation of engine platforms that
will be driven by more stringent emissions regula-
tions for CO, and, especially in cities, micro particu-
lates.

» Support the switch to electrical powertrains and look
for opportunities to transpose e-Product technology
te new end markets like energy storage and distribu-
tion.

- Secure cross-selling opportunities for EMP and
Concentric products.

» Explore fong-term growth opportunities by growing
sales in emerging markets.

Value proposition

We design, develop and manufacture our products to
add value to cur customers’ solutions. That means
working closely with our customers to find the optimal
flow and pressure characteristics and delivering solu-
tions that contribute to lowering fuel consumptian,
emissions and noise tevels.

See articles on pages 16-19 and 30-31 for more
information on our joint value proposition
together with EMP.
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Hydraulic products

Hydraulic products encompass gear pumps and motors, as well as power
packs produced for major OEMs of both on- and off-highway vehicles and
machines and for distributors of hydraulic solutions. We also offer electric
products including our Electro Hydraulic Steering unit to support our

customers, improve system efficiency and reduce emissions.

Products

DC POWER PACKS
Electrohydraulic systems
in¢luding AC and DC motors in
combination with a wide range
of standard and low noise gear
pump preducts provide
solutions for various material
handling and tait gate lift
functions with the integration
of valves and sensors.

TRANSMISSION

PUMPS {ALLIED)

Qur transmission pumps offer
mid pressure lubrication for
engine and gearbox applications
with and without stator support.

HIGH POWER

DENSITY UNITS

The FERRA series offer
increased power density and
higher durability in demanding
hydraulic systems.

CONTROLLED

POWER PACKS CAN
Including CAN control technoi-
ogy these products can provide
power on demand functicnality
offering energy savings and
noise reduction.

MAIN HYDRAULIC PUMPS '
Afull range of high efficiency

hydraulic gear pumps and

mators can be otfered for on-

and off-road hydraulic systems.

The product range provides low

noise technology as well as high

power density products.

SUPPLEMENTARY !
STEERING

These products provide effictent

pressure and flow to customer

steering systems, Together with

integrated safety and protection

functions the proven low noise

gear technology can be used to

reduce pressure pulsation in

steering systems.

LOW NOISE PUMPS

The CALMA series reduces the
outlet pressure putsation by
75 percent which can deliver
8-10 4B lower noise levets.

INTERMNAL GEAR PUMP
The internal gear pump product
provides a complete new gener-
atign for low noise emissions
and improved sound quality
requirements in combination
with electric motors or in tradi-
tional applications.

ELECTRO HYDRAULIC
STEERING

The EHS unit has sufficient
power for ful steering control in
all conditions and is highty effi-
cient, which improves fuel econ-
omy and electric vebicle range,



Market position

The global hydraulics market is fragmented.
There are a few glebal players which compete
mainly in the high-volume areas of the mar-
ket as welt as several regional players. Con-
centric occupy leading positions in selected
niches of the pump market and have a large
market share in specific niche areas such as
hydraulic fan drive systems and complemen-
tary control pumps.

Priorities

- Expand the distributor network, particularly
in Europe and Asia.

» Continue to develop and offer our EHS
product for zere emission vehicles for both
on and off-highway applications.

VALUE PROPOSITION

= Support custemers to deliver on their priori-
ties: energy efficiency, size reduction (which
is due to increasing machine complexity)
and noise reduction.

- Explore new market opportunities, especially
for agricultural machinery.

A ———

Value proposition

We aid in the design and development of
solutions that save energy, increase power
density and reduce noise in select niche
areas of the market where the technology in
the product is more advanced and requires
absolute reliability and customer specific
options.
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The electrification of on-highway
vehicles, such as trucks and buses,
is gathering momentum, says the
International Council on Clean
Transportation {ICCT). This is being
propelled by global regulations for
the reduction of new vehicle fleet
emissions and greater use of zero-
emission technologies, supported
by governments across the world.

Concentric supports
customers in

on-highway
electrification journey

oy

s outlined in the International

Energy Agency's (IEA) Global EV

Outlook 2022, registrations of elec-

tric buses and medium and heavy-
duty trucks saw good growth over 2021, particu-
tarly within China, Europe and the United States.
‘Sales of electric buses increased 40 percent
over the previous year even as the global bus
market remained roughty constant. Global sales
of electric medium- and heavy-duty trucks more
than doubled over 2020 volumes, while total
sales volumes remained at roughly the same
level as the previous year.

The IEA's report further states that, ‘in 2021,
the global electric bus stock totalled 670,000
vehicles, driven by growth specifically within
transit buses that operate in urban areas with
strong needs for emission reductions’. Electric
heavy-duty truck numbers were recorded at

16
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. ELECTRIFICATION

66,000 vehicles. These figures represent around four
percent of the global fleet for buses and 0.1 percent for
medium and heavy-duty trucks respectively.
Research conducted by interact Analysis shows fur-
-ther positive progression within this sector over the
next few years, stating that, by 2030, we should see
these numbers increase to more than nine miilion
battery electric trucks and buses out of a total market
of 21 mitlion. The rate of uptake witl however be influ-
enced by several factors, including the rate of global
charging infrastructure, developments in battery tech-
nology, legislation, and the total cost of ownership of
commercial vehicles.

Concentric supports zero-emission commercial
vehicle development

There's no question that the world is moving towards
a net zero future, and the growing demand for zero-
emission vehictes - both battery and fuel cell tech-
notogy.

As is ctear from the research sources already men-
tioned, buses and short-haul trucks have been early
adopters of new technologies, with heavy-duty vehi-
cles increasingly foltowing suit.

As OEMs increase their production volume of electric
commercial vehicles, the market size for Congentric’s
electric products continues to grow. This provides sig-
nificant growth opportunities for our business in the
coming years. This growth potential is boosted even
further by the fact that e-Products offer increased
functionality and value to cur customers versus
mechanical products.

Looking to the near future
Concentric previously outlined an ambitious electrifi-
cation target, aiming to derive 20 percent of our sales
from electric products by 2025, and believe that our
acquisition of Engineered Machined Products, Inc,
(EMP), a leading US producer of electric and mechani-
cal water and oil pumps, electric fans, thermal man-
agement systems and precision machined components
in late 2021, is assisting us in moving forward, as a
Group. We are currently setting a new sales target for
electric products, to be communicated in due time.
Concentric continues to innovate and respond to the
evolving needs of our customers. As a result, we are
well positioned to continue to make inroads in supply-
ing this market with both electrified and mechanical
products. Known for the robustness and reliability of
our products, as well as the ability to deliver tailored
solutions to meet our customers specific requirements,
we have established a strong presence over time in our
legacy markets, such as buses and trucks, as well as
within the construction and agriculture sectors. These
gualities, established over more than 100 years con-
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tinue to be as important to our customers today as they
have ever been. Indeed, as customers experience
increased market and technology disruption, the ability
to depend on reliable, high quality supply partners is
more important to them than ever.

We now have electric products on vehicles and
construction, agriculture and industrial machines all
around the world and continue to receive nominations
in our legacy markets, such as the important nomina-
tion with a North American OEM-supplier for a electro-
hydraulic steering {EHS) system. This will be used on
a new range of medium-duty battery electric trucks
received in 2021, and a new development contract
attained in 2022 to supply electric coolant pumps to
cool fuel cells for a global truck, bus and construction
OEM.

Concentric’s technology is proudly industry agnostic
and, as is clear, we are able to address any market and
any application using zero emission powertrains, miti-
gating increased heat emitted by new power sources
and providing tempurature controlling systems for the
vehicle.



New market opportunities

As well as continued growth in our core markets,
e-Products are also helping to open up new markets for
Concentric.

An example of this growth is a new development con-
tract recently received by Concentric to supply high
voltage electric coclant pumps for a battery electric

mining machine. The customer, a global construction

power electronics on a farge fully electric mining
machina,

We are constantly analysing opportunities for our
electric products in other adjacent new markets.
Another example is a success that has been realised in
the energy storage market, where our electric coolant
pumps are being used by a market-leading OEM of stor-
age systems for battery cooling.

We have identified other adjacent new markets, and
the organisation is currently looking at the viability and
opportunities that these markets could offer Concentric.

The acquisition of EMP has further supported the
future deveiopment of e-Products and has generated

focus on those targets whlch enhance our exlstmg

ELECTRIFICATION

cross-selling opportunities in both Europe and North
America. We explore the latest status of the integration
of EMP later in the annual report.

We continue to look for ways to support and acceler-
ate our electrification growth plans through further

. acquisitions and have a dedicated team in place to

explore these opportunities. The continued strength
of our balance sheet means that we retam the capamty

CASE Electrification

technology portfolio and deliver on our global growth
strategy.

Exciting opportunities for Concentric

in summary, the trend towards electrification creates
exciting opportunities for Concentric to both grow our
market share, and also our share of watlet with our cus-
tomers. We continue to innovate to deliver products
that meet the needs of ever evolving markets and we
remain well positioned to capitalise on opportunities
for growth in the coming years,
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OUR RESPONSE

. MARKET AND TRENDS

Adapting to a
changing market

Our markets are constantly undergoing change, from the general cyclicality
of markets and long term trends towards a more efficient and CO, neutral
future. Concentric is well placed to benefit from these changes.

Short term characteristics
Cyclicality

Each of our primary end markets, trucks, construction
equipment, agriculturat machinery and industrial
applications are all cyclical markets that closely track
the wider economic cycle.

Whilst the relative impact of economic trends varies
by market, all Concentric’s end markets are impacted
to some extent.

Cancenlric’s business model allows a flexible
cost hase in order to quickly react to changes in
Pto ensuré marging remain strong, We
tly demonstraled ma t leading
bility and responsiven narket
allow i us to deliver strong results in all
o eoandii
Concentr'c continues to maintain

strong relationships with cus

tomoers to gelinsight anc

202/
maove quickly to changes Market Growth

indemand.
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Long term trends

Economic growth

Long term economic growth across the globe drives
increases in our end markets as economies took to
increase preductivity and trade, increasing demand for
trucks, machinery and equipment with mere modern
features and efficiency.

In addition to economic growth, continued popula-
tion growth and urbanisation, particularly in emerging
economies, is driving increased spending on infra-
structure which in turn increases demand in our end
markets.

Owver many years Concentric has developed a
i us to be closer
wing
faslest.
United K
grow with ¢
Concentric romains ane of the t
ploy i the market tor both di

and e Proaduects.




Fuel and energy efficiency

Customers are demanding increasingly more efficient
products to help achieve lower CO, emissions, reduced
fuel costs and longer battery life. This increased effi-
ciency also reduces the total cost of ownership of the
end products.

In addition to customer demand, climate change is
driving society’s demand to reduce CO, emissions, par-
ticulate matter and noise pollution. Legislation is being
introduced around the world, particularly inurban
environments, to meet this societal demand.

Concerlric has beeninvesting for a long time in
improving our pr stob 1e more fuel and
DOISE &1 LI WU g b v e I
mps, low noisc Calma hydraulic pumps,
power density Ferra hydraulic pumps and inter
nal gear pumps amangst other praducts are all
signed to increase ciency and reduce
no
tlore recently, our range of electric pumps
takes this a step further, allowing our products
e output independently to match po
vith that which is required.
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Electrification

To meet societies demand for a more sustainable
future, our customers are moving away from hydro-
carbons as a fuel source and towards electric power
sources such as battery packs and fuel cells. This
results in zero tail pipe emissions for their products
and helps the overall drive for a CO, neutral future.

As different technologies compete, products will
improve and prices will come down allowing the switch
to electric products to pick up pace.

Concentricisny ectric prod-
ross both our Hy Engines
o1 FE . T ,—.\,—.r.ro,.v‘ 3] -~ ch:;;-wru‘w'

systems, water, cil and fuel e-Pumps are all

designed to meet the needs of our electric

customers regardless of power source, battery,

fucl celi or olhers.

The acquisition of EMP cxpands
our electric product port

into fans and thermal man-



. END-MARKETS

Global sales

North America

638.

group sales

27% Construction
15% Trucks

16% Agriculture
10% Industrial
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Europe

28

group sales

7% Construction
13% Trucks

2% Agriculture
6% Industrial

‘P ‘i?

India

%

group sales

1% Construction
1% Trucks
1% {ndustrial

China

%

group sales

1% Construction
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END-MARKETS

v

North America

Escanaba, Michigan, USA
Manufacturing, R&D, Sales

Greenfield, Indiana, USA

Maiufacluiiiy, Sales

Itasca, lilinois, USA
Manufacturing

Muncie, Indiana, USA
Manufacturing, R&D, Sales

Rockford, Illinois, USA
Manufacturing, R&D, Sales

Europe

Birmingham, UK
Manufacturing, R&D, Sales,
Group functions

Hof, Germany
Manufacturing, R&D, Sales

Stockholm, Sweden
Registered office

Markdorf, Germany
Manufacturing, RGD, Sales

Monza, italy
Administration office

Strasbourg, France
Sales office

Landskrona, Sweden
Alfdex, JV with Alfa Laval

Asia
Kunshan, China
Alfdex, JV with Alfa Laval

Pune, India
Manufacturing, R&D, Sales

Seoul, Korea
Sales office

Suzhou, China
Manufacturing, Sales



. END-MARKETS

Construction

< N

36%

of Group net sales

The global construction equipment market fell 7% in 2022 and the latest forecast
suggests the market will slow by 1% over the next 5 years. All regions are forecasting
low single digit growth, other than India which is showing the market remaining flat.

Based on the forecasted production of diesel engines
over the next 5 years, construction equipment is
expected to grow by a CAGR of 0.4% in Europe, 1.3%

in North America, 2.6% in China and fall 0.1% in India.

North America

Market indices published at year-end indicate that
Narth American production volumes for Construction
Equipment increased year-on-year by 10% for diesel
engines. Concentric’s actual sales of engine and
hydraulic products for Construction Equipment were
up 18% year-on-yearin constant currency exctuding
the impact of EMP, ahead of the market index. North
American construction sales make up 27% of total
Group sales and remain a key market.

Europe

European market indices for the production of diesel
engines for the Construction Equipment market
decreased 3% year-on-year. Concentric’s actual sales
for Censtruction Equipment were up 15% in constant
currency ahead of the market index. The European
Construction Equipment sales represent 7% of total
Group sates.

Emerging markets

Market indices for the production of diesel engines for
Construction Equipment were up year-cn-year in India
by 14% but down 18% in China. Concentnic’s exposure
to the Construction Equipment market in these territo-
ries remained relatively low at approximately 2% of the
Group’s total sales for 2022,

Diesel Engines - 0.8 to 2.75 Litres/Cylinder - Excluding 1 and 2 Cylinder engines - Excluding Cars.

North America

. Latin America

{ndia

M curope

China



Trucks

A 29%

of Group net sales

-
coen

END-MARKETS

The global medium- and heavy-duty truck market fell 15% in 2022, driven by a
decline in the China market, all other regions showed growth. The crucial European
market grew 3% year-on-year. Over the next five years the truck market is expected
to remain flat, however the key European market is growing at a CAGR of 3%.

Based on the forecasted production of diesel engines
over the next 5 years, on-highway medium- and heavy-
duty trucks are expected 1o grow by a CAGR of 2.6% in
Europe, 6.0% in India and decline by 4.4% in China and
4.3% in North America.

North America

Market indices published for 2022 indicated that North
American production of diesel engines for medium- and
heavy-duty trucks increased year-on-year by 12%.
Concentric’s actuat sales of engine and hydraulic prod-
ucts for trucks were up 18% year-cn-year in constant
currency excluding the impact of EMP. North American
truck sales represent 15% of total Group sales.

Europe

European market indices for the preduction of diesel
engines for medium- heavy-duty trucks increased year-
on-year by 3%. Concentnic’s actual sales of engine and
hydraulic products for trucks increased 10% year-on-
year in constant currency. The European truck sales
represent 13% of total Group sales.

Emerging markets
The market indices for India indicate the market has
increased year-on-year by 21%, whilst Concentric's
actual sales decreased 14%. The market index for
China has decreased 45% year-on-year, Concentric’s
sales have decreased 22% on a constant currency
basis.

Concentric's exposure to Trucks in these territories
remained relatively low at approximately 1% of the
Group’s total sales for 2022,

Diesel Engines - 0.8 to 2.75 Litres/Cylinder - Excluding 1 and 2 Cylinder engines - Excluding Cars.

Norlh America
W Latin Americe

India

B Eurcpe

China



. END-MARKETS

Agriculture

P 18%

of Group net sales

The global agricultural machinery market declined 3% year-on-year, driven by a
sharp fall in the india market. However, growth is expected over the next 5 years
at a CAGR of 2%, with growth acraoss all regions other than India which only begins

to show recovery during 2027.

Based on the forecasted production of diesel engines
over the next 5 years, agricultural machinery is expected
to grow by a CAGR of 1.3% in North America, 2.7% in
Europe and 3.5% in China. The indices forecast India's
Agricuttural Machinery market to be flat over the next
5 years.

Morth America

Market indices published at year-end indicate North
American production of diesel engines for Agricultural
Machinery increased year-on-year by 10%. Concentric’s
actual sales for Agricultural Machinery increased year-
on-year by 41% in constant currency excluding the
impact of EMP.

Europe

Eurcpean market indices for production of dieset
engines for Agricultural Machinery decreased year-
on-year by 2%. Despite the market trend Concentric’s
actual sales of engine and hydrautic products for Agri-
cultural Machinery increased year-on-year by 13%.

Emerging markets

Market indices for the production of dieset engines for
Agricultural Machinery decreased year-on-year by 13%
in India and increased 3% in China. Concentric’s expo-
sure to Agricultural Machinery in these territories
remained relatively fow in 2022.

Diesel Engines - 0.8 to 2.75 Litres/Cylinder - Excluding 1 and 2 Cylinder engines - Excluding Cars.

North America
B Latin America

. India

. Europe

China



Industrial

o P 17%

of Group net sales

END-MARKETS

The industrial sector has grown by 2% in 2022 and is forecast to grow at a CAGR
of 1% over the next 5 years driven by growth in India, based upon the forecast

production of diesel engines.

Since the industrial sector comprises a wide variety of
applications, there is no single forecast fer this market.
Based on the forecasted producticn of diesel engines
over the next 5 years, off-highway industrial applica-
fions in our two largest territories are expected to grow
by a CAGR of 0.8% in Europe but decline by 2.3% in
North America. The Indian market is forecasting the
highest growth with the market expected to grow by

a CAGR of 4.6%

North America

Market indices published at year-end indicate North
American production volumes for Industrial Applica-
tions increased year-on-year by 9% for diesel engines
and decreased 2% for hydraulic lift trucks. Concentric’s
actual sales of engine and hydraulic products for
industrial applications were up 49% year-on-yearin
constant currency excluding the impact of EMP, signifi-
cantly ahead of the diesel engine index. The North
American Industrial Application market repesents 10%
of total Group sales and is therefore a key market.

Europe

Eurcpean market indices decreased year-on-year by 1%
for the production of diesel engines and 7% for lift trucks
for the Industrial Applications market. Concentric’s
actual sales of engine and hydraulic products for
industrial applications were up 15% year-on-yearin
censtant currency, in spite of the market decline.

Emerging markets

Market indices for the production of diesel engines in
India and China for Industrial Applications were rela-
tively fiat with India showing 1% growth and Chinaa
1% decline. Concentric's exposure te industrial Appli-
cations in these territories remained relatively low at
approximately 1% of the Group's total net sales for 2022,

Diesel Engines - 0.8 to 2.75 Litres/Cylinder - Exctuding 1 and 2 Cylinder engines - Excluding Cars.
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North America
. Latin America

India

] Eurupe

China
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Priorities and

argets

Driving forces

Cyeclicality

tach of our four end markets are cyclical
markets that closely track the wider eco-
nomic cycle.

Economic Growth

Long term economic growth across the globe
drivesincreases in our end markets. Contin-
ued population growth and urbansation,
particularly is emerging economies, is driv-
ing increased spending on infrastructure
which in turn increases economic growth,

Fuel & energy efficiency

Customers are demanding increasinglv more
efficient products to help achieve lower CO,

emissions, longer battery life and lower totat
cost of ownership of their products.

Electrification

To meet societies demand for a more sustain-

able future, our customers are moving away
from hydrecarbons as a fuel source and
towards etectric power sources such as bat-
tery packs and fuel cells. This results in zero
tail pipe emissions but requires new technol-
ogies to support these new fuel sources,
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Stakeholders

Customers

We develop products for our customers o
meet their requirements and improve their
products, benefitting both parties.

Suppliers

We collaborate with our suppliers to incorpo-
rate their products in pur designs, helping
their success.

Employees

We foster a company culture in which we
collaborate to achieve our goals and grow
together.

Shareholders

We work on behalf of shareholders to deliver
areturn on their capital both through divi-
dend distributions and growth.

Financial Institutions

We maintain a strong balance sheet to
ensure financial institutions receve interest
on their loans.

Governments

We operate within legislation and guidance
in all territories in which we operate, bene-
fitting local communities.



Strategies and

success factors

Electrification

Support our customers transition to electric
products, in line with CQ, reductien targets,
will take our business forward into the next
generation of products,

Continuous improvement and innovation
Drive continuous business improvement
improving operating efficiency and reducing
costs.

Global sourcing and supply chain
management

Sourcing glebally to maintain a competitive
cost structure and ensure consistent and
reliable supply to our customers, as well as
consistent management of risk within the
supply chain.

Increased sales via distribution channel
for Hydraulics

increase our sales glebally through our net-
work of distribution partners who help reach
a broader range of end customers.

Long-term growth oppertunities in
emerging markets

Use our global footprint to supply customers
across the world, targeting emerging markets
and supporting growth in these regions.

Financial targets

and outcome 2022

Cutcome 2022

» 124

above marketin

Organic Sales Growth

above marketin

constant currency constant currency

Outcome 2022

» 17

Operating Margin

Qutcome 2022

» 30.

Dividend Payout Ratio

Gearing (Net debt/equity) Outcome 2022

and > ll' 5 %
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The acquisition of EMP in late
2021 was a significant move for
Concentric, and one that was in
line with the company’s strategy
to expand our technical expertise
and develop world-class tech-
nology, allowing us to deliver
innovative solutions that meet
the sustainability needs of our
customers,




EMP’s lengthy track record of developing and com-
mercialising electrical products (e-Products) and
systems, including both water and oit pumps, high
voltage components, as well as its range of
mechanical solutions which complement Concen-
trics’s existing product portfolio, was a critical
influencing factor in this landmark acquisition.

Its extensive in-house electrical engineering team
also played a strong role.

A year in review
Now, one year post transaction, we are pleased to
have achieved EMP's integration within the broader
Concentric group, Several important milestones
have been completed and further key projects with
strategic medium- and [ong-term impact were initi-
ated.

The initial strategic steps towards this unifica-
tion have been putin place. These include:

+ Revenue synergies: Concentric has leveraged the
experienced sales team for EMP Advanced Prod-
ucts to increase its commercial footprint within
the US for its electric-hydraulic steering (EHS)
offering based on a significant overlap in the tar-
geted market segments. In addition to that, major
revenue synergies for cross-selling opportunities
with EMP electric products have been identified
in Europe.

Product line consolidation: we are pleased that
the merging of e-water pump product offering
from both organisations is currently underway. In
addition, we have demonstrable evidence of value
added by Concentric’s seal-less pump technology
to EMP’s thermal system solutions.

Operational benefits: the Group has consolidated
its commercial organisation for conventionat
products in North America and has started to
implement important synergies in the regional
manufacturing crganisation.

Cost synergies: With the acquisition of EMP, Con-
centric¢’s purchasing volumes have significantly
increased, in particular in North America.
Through the implementation of a new global
sourcing organisation, the group’s purchasing
power can be better leveraged and group-wide
expertise witl be enhanced to source raw materi-

EMP INTEGRATION

Stronger together

internally, we continue to open up opportunities on
a global level for all employees, and introduce best
practices across the board for all functions.

We have strengthened our senior leadership
capabilities in the North American region through
the appointment of Boris Gavric as Senior Vice
President for Engines Europe & Asia and Advanced
Products at Concentric. Boris is a member of the
Group Senior Leadership Team reporting directly to
Martin unz, Concentric President and CEQ, and
will be instrumental in the execution of the group
strategic plan and the further development of the
group's combined electrification capabilities.

Growth achieved over the past year

As a business, Concentric has been pleased with its
progress over the past year, shawing growth in rev-
enue of 92% from MSEK 2,115 in revenue for 2021
to MSEK 4,056 in 2022.

We are confident that the integration of EMP into
Concentric is an important step in the successful
execution of our global electrification strategy, as
we have managed to significantly grow our capac-
ity, technolegical know-how and product portfolio
to ensure the acceleration of our growth in electri-
cal products.

Beside the % of sales for electric products from
total net sales, which has grown from 6% in 2021
to 17% in 2022, the amount of prototype orders for
electric products — an important key performance
indicator for future business awards - has increased
significantly over the same period of time. A signif-
icant driver for this very positive development has
been the launch of EMP’s new high voltage fan
product range.

High voltage components can provide more effi-
cient cooling as compared to low voltage compo-
nents, resulting in improved performance in a
smaller package. With high voltage components,
EMP is abie to help simplify the overall electrical
architecture of a vehicle or application, not only
providing more efficient cooling but also eliminat-
ing costly AC-DC converters. This will allow our
customers to help reduce costs and free up space
for larger battery packs. Our high voltage cooling
components can be scaled up or down more easily

bttt liinipbing bl SRS S TP T

CASE EMP

Through the rationalisation and optimisation of our
nowcombined product range, encompassing Con-
centric's legacy electrified engine products and
EMP's electrification advanced products, we
believe that there are many advantages for our cus-
tomers. As a combined group, we have improved
our electrification capabilities through further
investments into in-house software and hardware
devetopment. A broader solution range also ena-
bles Concentric to tailor solutions to meet each
customer’s specific requirements, while our
enhanced inhouse engineering expertise allows
for even greater responsiveness than ever before.
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ing greater fiexibility for future upgrades and
expansions. The apptications we are focused on
witl include the on-highway and off-highway com-
mercial vehicle segments that are using a hybrid
drive, battery electric drive or fuel cell powered
electric drive.

By building a robust, global organisation serving
the needs of current and future valued customers,
Concentric will be well equipped to stand by our
mission to ‘accelerate sustainable mobility and
infrastructure’, targeting new opportunities and
achieving further profitable growth in our identi-
fied target markets.



. RISK ASSESSMENT

Risk assessment

A number of factors, not entirely controllable by Concentric, affect and may come
to affect Concentric’s business. Described below are some of the risk factors
which are of particular significance and how the risk is managed by the Group.

sk area Likelihood Impact

Competition & pricing pressure risk

Concentric operates in competitive markets, where price pressure 15 a natural feature. Stiffer compebbon 09 L 1 @)
and price pressure may impact negatively on the Group’s operations, financial position and earnings, For

example, customers may increasingly opt for preducts competing with the Concentric product range and it

cannot be excluded that more intense competition may adversely affect Concentric’s current margins.

Management

Concentric manages this risk through innovation and product development, which maintain its market-
ieading products that solve its eustomers’ preblems and differentiate Concentric from the competinon.

Risk of losing a customer

Concentric is active 1n several different market segments and has a large number of customers distrib- 90 L [ @]
uted among severai areas of operation. A loss of a major customer or the loss or delay of a major contract

may have an adverse impact on the Group's sales and earmngs. Moreover, if Concenfne’s customers do

not meet their obligations or drashcaily reduce operabons or terminate acthvities, the Group's sales and

earnings may be negatively affected.

Management
Concentric manages this risk by working closely withits customers to solve their problems and meet
their needs, as well as undertaking annual surveys with all of its major customers.

Raw material supply risk

Concentric makes regular assessments of 1ts exposure to bought-in and sem-fimshed goods, such as [ [ @ L | @)
bearings, gears, sintered gerotors, ete. If there were any interruptions to these supply chains due to

quality and/or availability, this could impact the deliveries of Concentric products to its customers,

which could have an adverse effect on the Group's operations, sales and earnings.

Management
Cancentric manages this risk through annual supplier audits and by ensunng that there are at least
dual supply arrangements in place for all key commeodity groups.

Raw materiat pricing risk

The Group depends directly or indirectly on a number of raw materials, semi-finished goods and conver- [ | e [ | @]
sion processes. The greatest exposure on raw materials relates to the supply of aluminium, various steel

grades and cast iron. Concentnic 15 also affected by changes in raw matenals price levels,

Management

Concentric manages the nsk of price changes by ensuring it has contractual material escalator agree-
ments with all its major customers. However, where rising raw matenals prices cannat be offset through
higher prices for Concentnc’s products, the Group’s aperations, financial position and earmings may be
adversely affected.

Risk of production downtime

Damage to produchon facilities caused, for example, by fire, in addition to manutactunng stoppages or O C [ [ @]
disruptions in any part of the production process caused, for example, by break-downs, weather condi-

tions, geographic conditions, labour disputes, terrorist actinties and natural disasters, may have adverse

implications in the form of direct damage to property as well as interruptions that underming the poten-

tiat to meet obligations to custemers. In turn, this may lead customers to select atternative suppliers.

Accordingly, such distuptions or interruptions may impdct negatively on the Company’s operatiens,

financial position and earnings

Management

Concentric employs the same produchon methodology across alt of its sites and, for certan product
fines, 1t conducts production of the same or very similar products at a number of plants, thus there1s the
potential to reduce the implicanons of aninterruption by switching ocutput to other plantsin the Group to
ensure continuity of supply to customers. Although, such action generally resuits in added costs which,
n the short run, will have a negative impact on the Group’s operatisns, financial position and earnings,
given that the current capacity utitisation across the Group s relatively low, the negative impact would
be Limnted. In addition, the Group has insurance cover for property damage and bustness interruption.

@00 tovw @O Mediur GO@ High
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RISK ASSESSMENT

Risk area Likelihood Impact

Risk of failure at produet launch

Requirements from users and legislators for higher safety, lower noise levels and reduced enwviranmental L 0l®] o0
wmpact resultin higher demand for the products provided by Concentric. Accordingly, 1t is essential that

the Group develops new products and continues to improve existing products to satisfy this demand so

that market shares are not only maintained. but also increased.

Consequently, a key parl of Coancentric's strategy invelves developing new products in these areas that
the Group regards as important for growth and/or tor defending market shares. The develepment of new
products always entails the nsk that a product launch will tail tor same reason, which could have signifi
cant consequences. It s the Group’s policy Lo expense evolutionary product deveiopment projects, but
since the Group capitalises certain costs for major new preduct development projects, a failed launch
potentially would give rise to an impairment requirement and may adversely affect the Group’s opera-
tions, inancial position and earnings.

Management
Congentric manages this risk through the design and testing process to ensure our products mee! the
specification as set out in the customers requirements

Risk of product recall, complaints and product liability

Concentric is exposed to complaints in the event that the Group's products fail to function the way they | 0l®] 00
shauld. In such cases, the Group may be obliged Lo recufy or replace the defective products. Recalls per-

tain to cases where an entire production series or a large part has to be recalled from customers in order

to rectify deficiencies. This cccurs accasionally in Concentric’s end-markets.

The Group has ng insurance covering recalls, The assessment 1s that the cost of such insurance would
not be proportionate to the risk covered by the insurance. Cancentric has tistorically not been affected
by any major recalls of products. There is always a risk that customers demand that suppliers cover costs
in addition to replacing the product, such as aceess and restaration costs associated with dismounting,
assembly and other ancillary costs if a product causes damage to a person or property, the Group could
he liable to pay damages. A recalt on a larger seale or & major product liability clawm, may affect the
Group's operations, frinancial position and earmings negatively.

Management

Concentric manages this risk through its internal processes regarding the receipt of goods from suppli-
ers, employing Poka-yoke methodology for all of its manulacturing and testing procedures, as well as
effective use of quality monitoring systems deployed al both supphers and customers. In addition, the
Graup has insurance cover for general product Liability, inctuding access and restoration costs a550ci-
ated with replacing product in the field.

Inteliectuat property rights infringement risk

Concentric tnvests significant resourees 1n product development. To secure returns on these investments, 00O ®00
the Group actively claims its rights and monitors competitors’ activities closely. There is always a risk

that competitors infringe on the Group's patents and other IPR. The risk of the marketing of unlicensed

comes of the Group's products has increased n recent years, particularly in the Astan markets.

If required, the Group protects its PR through legal action. However, it cannot be yuaranteed that
Concentric will be able to defend its granted patenls, trademarks and other IPR or that submitted regis-
tralion applications will be approved. Acceordingly, there can be no guarantee that the Group will receive
trademark or similar legal protection in respect of “CONCENTRIC” in all relevant jurisdictions. Disputes
regarding infringement of 1PR can, just like disputes in general, be costly and time consuming and may
adversely affect Group's operations, financial position and earmngs.

Management

Concentric manages this {PR risk by engaging external tegal adwice to manitor potential infringements

and act early. As a result, the Group has histonically not been adversely affected by any IPR disputes,

In addition, the industries in which Concentric operatles have displayed rapid techrclogical progress in

many respects. Accordingly, there 1s a nsk that new technologies and products can be developed, which

ciroumuent or surpass Concentrin's IPR, as nated in the Product Develapment secharn. s . e

Risk of dispute
Compantes within the Group are occasionally involved in disputes in the ordinary course of business and [ Tele) 900
are subject to the risk, similar te other companies operating in Concentric’s markert, of becoming subjert

10 ¢laims such as those in relation to contractual matlers, product liability, alleged defectsin delivery of

gouds and services, environmental issues and intellectual property nights. Such disputes and claims may

prove time-consuming, disrupt normal operations, involve large amounts and result in significant costs.

In addition, the outcome of complicated disputes may be difficult to foresee.

Management

Concentric manages this nsk through the use of standard contractual lerms wherever possible and

engaging external legal advice when appropriate. The Group has histoncally net been adversely affected

by any disputes.

For financial risks, piease see the Board of Directors’ report on pagas 64-81. Q00 Low GO Medium @@ @ High
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Sustainability Report

Letter from the CEO

I am delighted to give an update on our sustainability activities over the past year and
share some of the key highlights from our work in this important and evolving area.

At Concentric, we strongly believe that a sustainable
business {eads to successful economic performance
and high returns for society. The world is facing an
uncertain future with climate change, natural resource
availability and societal changes being just a few of the
disruptive forces which will likely impact our business
going forward. We acknowtedge the growing impor-
tance of sustainability globally and how it can create
value for all the stakeholders across our entire value
chain so are committed te playing our part.

The phitlosophy of the Board of Directors and Group
Management is that Concentric’s principal contribution
to a sustainable world takes place through the use of
the Company’s products. As cne of the world's leading
pump manufacturers, we have the opportunity to use
innovation to drive increased fuel efficiency and
reduced emissions across the ftow control and fluid
power solutions we offer our customers. | am proud
that Concentric is working towards & sustainable and
carbon neutral future and we are committed to contin-
uing te invest in technology that can deliver on the rap-
idly evolving needs of the market, whilst also actively
supporting organisations in their electrification pro-
cess.

‘ ‘ Sustainability, whether

foecused on products or people,
constitutes an integral part

of our operations
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As well as supporting our customers, health and
safety is also a top priority for our business. We strive
to always offer a safe work environment for all our peo-
ple and do all that we can to minimise the associated
risks. Over the past year, we have reviewed our Health
and Safety strategy with a focus on zero harm and
reducing lost time incidents and we will continue to
embed related leading practice across our organisation
over the coming year.

Indeed sustainability, whether focused on products
or people, constitutes an integral part of our opera-
tions and is considered in the interactions we have with
all of our stakeholders ¢n a day-to-day basis. Under-
pinning our approach are our core values which are
Customer focused and achieved through our people
and Business exceltence in all that we do. These values
are aligned with @ number of commitments including
making sustainable products, cperating transparently
and with integrity. This is one way in which we strive
to embed responsible business principles across our
organisation and I'm pleased to be able to share some
of the ways we have really lived these core values over
the pastyearin this report, as well as our plans for the
coming year.

We are in the early stages of our group-wide sustain-
ability journey, however, we know there is more that we
can do to build on our progress so far to ensure our
business can thrive in the long term. However, we are
excited to be continuing along this journey - thank you
forjoining us.

Martin Kunz
President and CEQ



Stakeholders

Concentric has a wide network of stakeholders across
its value chain comprising customers, suppliers,
employees, financial institutions, sharehclders, the
State and communities.

SUSTAINAEILITY

Concentric aims to maintain an open dialogue with all
of its stakeholders whilst delivering societal and mone-
tary value through its engagements as shown below.

Stakeholder Activities Societal Value Value (MSEK)
Customers Sales of engine and hydraulic products More sustanable products 4,056
Suppliers Procurement of goods and services as well

as depreciation, amortisation Long lasting partnerships -2,500
Employees Wages, ;socwal expensés and skills development Greal place to work -87%
Financial Institutions  Interest 7 - More sustainahle RO! -743
The State Taxes Taxes pa-id -135
Shareholders Net income More sustainable RCI 501

A number of engagement mechanisms are currently
used by Concentric to engage its stakeholders, all of
which help to define which topics should be considered
the most material for the business on an angeing basis:

Vision

Concentric’s vision is to deliver sustain-
able growth for every application in the
markets they serve.
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+ Annuat customer surveys

« Customer accreditation programmes, e.g. CAT
(SQEP) and John Deere {Achieving Excellence)

« Industry accreditation programmes in the US
(Malcolm Baldrige) and Europe (li€ & EFQM)

« Regular supplier days
« Annual employee surveys

- Customer technology roadshows

Concentric’s purpose is to design,
develop, manufacture and sell high
quality, customer-focused solutions
for hydraulic and engine applications
within its global end markets.
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The following table gives details of the sustainability
aspects which have been highlighted as most material
over the past two years. The business will shortly con-

duct a doubte materiality assessment te enhance and

Examples of idenf_ified
% 4ot \ders

update its understanding of the most material topics to
Concentric and this will shape next year's sustainabil-
ity reporting.

Link to Cancentric’s mate-

Stakeholder group  How we work Primary areas pects for rial bility aspects
Customers - Annual customer surveys - Qverall customer - Customer service « Praduct responsibility
« Customer accreditation satistaction & relationship « Climate impact
programmes « Product quality « PPM & warranty - Resource efficiency
+ Technglogy roadshows « On time fultilment of claims record
orders & continuity « Delwery (OTIF %)
of supply - Product development
+ Technology & mnovation to support changes in
emissions legislation
Suppliers - Regutar supplier days - Product guality - PPM & warranty « Ethics & value creation
& workshops & warranty claims record + Preduct responsibihity
- Factery inspections & clarms record - Delivery (OTIF%) + Responsible suppliers
on-site suppher audits + Ontime fulfitment - Product development - Resource efficiency
- Code of conduct for ot orders & continuity - Waste management
suppliers of supply = Human rights
- Technolagy & innovation - Anh-corruption
- Environmental pro- + Risk management
gramme - Co-operation
- tealth & safety
Employees « Annual employee surveys - Recruitment & employer = Company culture - Ethics &value creation

Parsonal development
discussions

- Trainmng & education
Code of conduct

branding

tthics & values
Skills development
Succession planning
Health & satety
Remuneration

Environmentat
compliance

Skills development
Equal opportunrty
Health & satety
Reward & henefits

Equality & diversity
Resource efhciency

The state & tocal

Onyoing dialogue with

Product development

Long-term financial

Ethics & value creation

commuaity emissions iegislators - Energy cthiciency strength of employer - Product responsibility
- Participation in & climate Impact = Social sustanabibity » Chimate impact
government imtiatives, « Involvement in the « Chmate & energy « Responsible suppliers
e, US SuperTruck tocal commumty + Envicanmental - Equabiy & diversity
- Ongoing distogues - Environmental prugram compliance - Resource efficiency
with local community ~ Domestic supply chain
representatives - Waste management
- Human nghts
Shareholders, - Investor roadshows & . Corporate update « Value drivers - Ethics & value creation

analysts & financial
institutions

seminars
One-to-one meenings in
person/by telepnone
Analysts presentations &
capital markets days
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Product development
Debt servicing canabiities
Sustamnability

Human nghts
Anti-corruption

» Risk management

- Dperating leverage

Product responsibiliy

- Climate impact i

Responsible suppliers
Eguabity & diversity
Resource efficiency
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Sustainability Governance

During the past year Concentric has taken several steps
to strengthen its sustainability governance structure to
ensure that sustainability is prioritised and embedded
throughout the organisation. Over the course of the
next year, Concentric aims to fully operationalise its
plans to support the business to grow, whilst also tran-
sitioning to a carbon neutral future.

The Board of Directors have ultimate oversight of
sustainability, setting pelicy and direction. The Board
have established several principles which underpin all
business activities outlined across policy documents
including the Code of Conduct, Code of Conduct to
Suppliers, Information Policy, Insider Policy, Social
Policy, Environmental Policy and Whistleblowing Policy.

As an example of some of the principles built into
Concentric’s business model, the Code of Conduct stip-
ulates that the Group shall comply with the laws and
regulations of each country in which it operates;
demonstrate and promgte a commitment to responsible
business practice in policies, decisions and activities;
contribute towards improving economic, environmental
and sccial conditions through an open dialogue with
the relevant interest Groups in those local societies in
which the Group operates, and integrate the principles
of the Code of Conduct into all critical processes. The
Code of Conduct also includes a precautionary principle
to avoid the use of materials and methods which pose
environmental and/or health risks when suitable alter-
natives are available.

The CE0 and Group Management oversee the sus-
tainability approach. Going forward, Group Manage-
ment will be responsible for delivery of the sustain-
ability strategy in line with policies set by the Board.

Group Management will define Concentric’s approach
to sustainability including its strategy and, in due
course, track progress towards established sustain-
ability goals. In particular, the CEO and SVPs will be
responsibie for strategic implications of sustainability
for the business. The CFO will remain responsible for
sustainability reporting. The recently appointed Vice
President of Human Resources & Sustainability, will
be respensible for delivery of the forthcoming sustain-
ability strategy and ensure intersectional oversight
over sustainability across business functions via the
Sustainability Committee.

Over the next year, Concentric plans to operational-
ise its Sustainability Committee, chaired by the Vice
President of Human Resources & Sustainability. This
committee will serve as a forum to generate ideas and
discuss initiatives at a site level and will meeton a
monthly basis. The committee will be divided intp
sub-committees structured around the business's high-
est priority sustainability areas, open to individuals
from across all business units to share their feedback.
This structure will heip to estabtish site-levelinitia-
tives that collectively will support the broader delivery
of sustainabhility goals determined by Group Manage-
ment.

The Sustainability Committee supplements the tradi-
tional chain of command to ensure responsibility for
sustainability is embedded throughout the organisa-
tion and to facilitate robust bottom-up and top-down
collaboration and dialogues. Over the next year, the
governance structure outlined below will be fully oper-
ationalised to help further embed sustainability across
the organisation:

Board
Group Management
CEO
VP Operational VPHRE
Excellence CFO Sustainability SVPs

Sustainability Committee

B e e

Business Unit Leaders

Business Units
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Sustainability Roadmap

Concentric is eariy on its sustainability journey and is
committed to continue taking action this year to ensure
the business is set up far success. As a priority, the
focus will be on clearly defining an ESG strategy which
is informed by holistic stakeholder insights and under-
pinned with the right metrics, targets and a robust
approach to risk identification and management. The
mechanisms to achieve this will be buitt into Concen-
tric’s sustainability roadmap for the coming year.

in order to develop a leading practice ESG strategy
and accompanying measurement approach, Concentric
will conduct a deuble materiality assessment and an
action plan to prepare for the EU regulatory changes
which will impact the business and reparting approach.
Delivering against this roadmap will help Concentric to
strengthen its sustainable business model and commu-
nicate its progress more effectively with all of its
stakeholders.

Material aspects _ . Results
of sustainability Social contribution Long-term goal Operational goal 2022 2021
Ethics & value Generat Concentric achieves long-term  Underlying operating margin 16.5% 20.9%
creation Long-term financially strong financial growth in an ethical should amount to * 16%

and ethically correct for all our mannor that contributes to the Gearing (Net Debt/Equity) 4% 82%

end-markels {Industrial Appli-  improved weliare of society should amount to 50% * 150%

cations, Trucks, Agricultural -

Drvidends should correspond 30% 42%

Machinery and Construction
aquipment} where we are pres-
ent as an engine and hydraulic
pump suppher

UN’s sustainable
develepment goals:

No.8: Promote sustainabie
economic growth

to at least one third of the

Group's consolidated after-tas

profit over the course of a busi-

ness cycle

No. of ethical breaches based -
on Concentric’s values

Mo, ot insider trading wolations
investigated by Finansinspek-
tionen”

No. of acts of frauduient
behavicur identified

1) Sweden’s financial supervisory authority

EX
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Material aspects _Results
of sustainability Social contribution Long-term goal Operational goal 2022 2021
Preduct responsibil- General Cuncentiiv develops class Procedure n/a n/a
ity & climate Impaet Reduced impact on the climate  leading pumps to enable OEMs  The efficiency of all products
for all our end-markets {Indus- Lo increase energy efficiency is verified ¢uring the customer
trial Applications, Trucks, and reduce the environmental  valbidation process
Agricultural Machinery and wimpact of their vetncles/equip-
Construction Equipment) ment
derived from the mnnovative
development of engine and Cancentric is recogmsed as Improve our averall rating in n/a 3.38
hydraulic pumps acredible and long-term the annual customer survey to o
. . supplier of first choice hy an average score of - 4.00 out customer
UN’s sustainable customers for both on- and off-  of a maximum score of 5.00 survey in
development goals: highway commercial vehictes 2022
No.9: Promate inclusive and
sustainabie industrialisation
and foster innovation
No.13: Combal climale change
and its impacts by regulating
emissions and promoting
developments fo imprave
emissions
Responsible General Concentnc promotes social Procedure 100%  100%
suppliers Ensure the application of responsibihity in its operations  Concentric evaluates and
labour law, human rights, and value chain approves all material suppliers
anti-corruption and enviran- from a sustainability perspee-
mental responsibility in the tive, including environmentat
supply chains for both on- and human rights cntena
and off-highway commereial
vehicles
UN’'s sustainable
development goals:
No.8: Promote sustamnabte
economic growth
Equality General Concentric is an equal oppor-  Increase the number of female 26.0% 23.9%
& diversity Awarkplace that offers diver- tunities organisation that has salarned employees and man-
sity and equal opportunity an even gender distribution agers to 33% by 2025
amongst 1ts salaried eMplOYReS  |nereace the number of female 15.5% 14.1%

UN'’s sustainable
development goals:
No.5: Achieve equal
opportunity

and managers

wage earncrs to 22% by 2025

No. af human rights claims
bBrougnt dudinsi Cuneeiinie
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‘ ‘ EMP facilitates technical mentoring
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People

Cancentric prides itself on its open culture where
employees feel valued and their voices are heard. Key
to this is the annual employee survey which has a high
participation rate across the Group. Inresponse to the
survey, each site is required to develop an action plan
based on the feedback. The success of the business is
based on the competencies and skill set of its work-
force, and therefore enabling a culture where employ-
ees feel empowered is of high priority to Concentric,
Also critical to the organisation is the health and
safety of its workforce, with specific sites having
received International Standardisation Organisation
(1SO) 45001 certification regarding management sys-
tems of occupational health and safety. Across the net-
work Concentric provides a safe work environment. It
takes actions to prevent accidents and work-related

injuries by minimising the risks in work environments

opportunities for students in the

local community.

to the greatest possible extent. Employees also have
access to an gecupational health screening, and thisis
in addition to a dedicated benefits scheme providing
financial, mental and physical health support.

Concentric also endeavours to contribute to the
communities in which it operates and at a site level,
community-based activities are encouraged. This
inctudes sponsoring local schools to help raise money
for teacher grants, an activity which recently took
place at one of the EMP sites. The Group also offers
apprenticeships and internships supporting younger
generations at schools and universities to help them
develop critical skills.

During the last year, significant progress has been
made in relation to the support offered to employees
and wider communities, with key activities highlighted
below:




2022 key hightights

= Employees within the EMP team in Escanaba were
given the opportunity to particigate in cross-func-
tional prejects. As an example, some team members
were involved in a community school’s programme
called First Robotics. This programme consisted of
EMP employees mentoring and educating chitdren
from the local community and competing in robotic

games.

+ Concentric was featured in the 2022 Power Progress
Yearbook which marks the business’s first feature as
an electric product supplier.

Looking ahead to 2023

Concentrics’s success is driven by the value it places
on its people, with several long service employees pro-
viding testament to this. Whilst significant improve-
ments have been made during the last year, Concentric
recognises that more can be done to ensure continued
growth of the business and some of these plans are
highlighted below:

« Improve diversity and inclusion at both a Group and
site level - this includes increasing the number of
apprenticeships and internships that the Group
offers, collaborating with both local schools and
technology colleges.

« Build on the great progress made in 2022 with the
introduction of the flexible working scheme and the
development of the new Health and Safety strategy.
Implementation of the strategy in 2023 will see sites
moving from lagging indicaters to leading indicators
including reporting near misses and site self-assess-
ments. This will allow for continuous improvement
against defined standards. With the implementation
of this strategy focusing on zero harm, Concentric
aims to reduce recordable injuries and lost time inci-
dents consistently year-on-year. Additionally, the

SUSTAINABILITY

- Concentrics’s ongoing commitment to broader soci-
ety is reflected in its charitable donations. At the
Birmingham site, there has been a long-standing
tradition to raise money for Comic Relief, although
in recent years this has been made more difficult due
to the impacts of Covid-19. In the past year, the team
hosted a fund-raising event for the charity to help
tackle homelessness, hunger, domestic abuse and
mental heaith stigma, bothin the UK and Iretand.

business plans to establish a safety committee sup-
ported by an underlying safety and training plan at
each of its sites.

Incorporate sustainability metrics into incentive
plans for the first time during 2023 - this will form
an important part of driving a mindset shift across
the organisation so that employees are more moti-
vated to embed sustainability principles in their
day-1o-day roles, helping the organisation to meet

its related targets.
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Production

As aleader and innovator in flow control and fluid
power, Concentric’s products suppart the transition
towards a sustainable, Net Zero future, The decarbaoni-
sation of the medium and heavy-duty truck market will
play a eritical role globally for countries to meet their
2015 Paris Agreement commitments. As the electrifi-
cation of the medium and heavy-duty truck market
continues to accelerate, Concentric will play an
increasingly significant role supporting organisations
with this process. The Group’s portfolio consists of
both engines and hydraulics.

In addition to providing reliable and quality compo-
nents, several of Concentric’s products offer various
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environmental benefits, including energy efficiency
improvements and associated reductions in green-
house gas emissions. For example, Concentric's varia-
ble flow water pumps can provide fuel savings of at
least 2% on standard drive cycles as well as reductions
of up to 15% in carbon monoxide, hydrocarbon, carbon
dioxide, diesel particulate and nitrogen oxide emis-
sions.

During the year Concentric continued to expand on
its innovative designs ensuring that the demands of a
rapidly evolving market continued to be met. Some
examples of recent developments are highlighted on
the next page.




2022 key highlights

- In 2022, EMP focused its efforts on developing a
range of high voltage (HY) components to meet the
heavy-duty thermal management needs of commer-
cial vehicles as well as on-and-off highway applica-
tions. One of the componentsincludes a HV version
of EMP’s already popular Smart Flow® FiC-15 e-fan,
which is well suited for electric industrial vehicles.
This e-fan presents a significant growth opportunity
for Concentric as the electric vehicle market contin-
ues to expand. The higher voltage of the component
enables the fan blade to run faster, allowing for
increased performance and efficiency of vehicles.

Looking ahead to 2023

There are several different developments in the pipe-
line as Concentric continues to respond to the growing
sustainability needs of its customers whilst also focus-
ing on reducing its own footprint. In order to further
increase the percentage of electric products sold as
part of its breader pertfolio, Concentric recognises
that it must continue to seek out viable opportunities
and leverage its expertise to develop advanced solu-
tions. Some of the developments in the pipetine
include:

+ Expand its e-Pump range with the development of a
hybrid electric ccolant pump. This technolegy pro-
vides further fuel savings in addition to the existing
two speed ciutch product.

- During April last yvear, Caoncentric received a new
development contract to supply electric coolant
pumps for a fuel cell application and this project will
continue in 2023. Fuel cells are one of the key tech-
nology enablers for zero emissions on-highway vehi-
cles and off-highway machines. Providing similar
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« Concentric launched its dual cone clutch product
which is used to declutch air compressors. When
applied to heavy-duty trucks, this technology pro-
vides up to 1% fuel savings, enabling a reduction in
associated greenhcuse gas emissions. Additionally,
the clutch produces a lower noise output when com-
pared tc competing products in the market, highlight-
ing Cencentrics’s innovaticn in this space.

Concentric developed and introduced a new genera-
tion of tow noise internal gear pumps, which in cem-
parison to the previous generation, provideup to a
further 30% noise reduction assisting with lower
noise polluticn.

power density to internal combustion engines, and
therefore suitable for high power and long-range
applications, Concentric’s electric coolant pumps
bring additional benefits including a robust, compact

design with a long service life of over 50,000 hours.

This increases the durability of the product, reduces

the need for replacements and therefore the amount
of waste asscciated.
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Planet

At Concentric, environmental activities are integrated
in all operations and are the subject of continuous
improvement through the Concentric Business Excel-
lence pregramme (CBE}. The CBE programme under-
pins the Group’s approach to sustainability across all
its activities. Whilst the focus of the company is to
develop world class technology and innovative solu-
tions to meet the sustainability needs of its customers,
Concentric also pursues improvements with regards to
its own enviroanmental impact.

The Group's products and processes are designed
in such a way that energy, natural resources and raw
materials are used efficiently, and that any waste
and residual products are minimised, in line with the
Group's Environmental Policy. Concentric's joint
venture, Alfdex, focuses on producing products with
improved separation efficiency and reduced energy
consumption during their lifetime. On top of this, many

of Concentric’s sites have also been certified in aceord-

ance with I1SO accreditations with several complying
with IS0 14001 relating to environmental management
systems. Additionally, at a site level, a number of initia-
tives are in place to ensure Concentric continuously

Specific environmental criteria has
been in place since 2016 to ensure
the business procures from suppliers

who take sustainability seriously.

improves its environmental performance. Global exam-
plesinclude reducing plastic usage and water con-
sumption, installing solar panels and eliminating toxic
elements from product designs and manufacturing
processes.

As well as across Concentric’s own operations, envi-
ronmental screening is a key component of Concentric’s
supplier selection and vatidation process. Specific
environmental criteria has been in place since 2016 to
ensure the business procures from suppliers who also
take sustainability seriously. Concentric expectits sup-
pliers to actively contribute and commit to the principle
of reducing the environmental impact of their own
operations through utilising an environmental rescurce
management and adopting environmental manage-
ment systems such as 150 14001.

Whilst Concentric acknowledges that further pro-
gress is required with regards to its environmental
footprint, significant efforts have been made over the
past year to reduce the negative environmental impact
of operations and optimise energy efficiency. A wide
range of activities have taken place across the business
during 2022, with select examples outlined below:




‘ ‘ Concentric has been in Pune, ;

India for over 30 years.

2022 key highlights

» 2022 saw the appointment of a new Vice President
(vP) for Human Resources & Sustainability to help
drive forwards the development of Concentrics's
Sustainability strategy.

- At the Birmingham site, annual targets have been set
to help reduce waste production. These targets are
approved by management and include initiatives such
asimplementing returnable packaging options where
possible. Additionally, during the last year, 93% of all

Looking ahead to 2023

Concentric remains committed to reducing its environ-
mental impact going forward and a key priority for the
Group in 2023 will be further shaping the role it can
play towards a carben neutral future.

Concentric will continue to implement various envi-
ronmental initiatives across its sites and ensure the
recertification of existing environmental standards
where relevant. Additionally Concentric has the follow-
ing plansin place:

+ Continue to make improvements across sites includ-
ing leveraging technolegical developments and
embedding further the efficient use of rescurces.
This includes obtaining 1SO 14001 certification at
additional sites,
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waste was recycled, and this has now been estab-
lished as a minimum target.

in India, several initiatives and pregrammes tock
place during the year in an effort to protect and pre-
serve the natural environment. This inctuded the
distribution of seed bombs during the onset of the
monsoon season, helping to improve foliage in the
vicinity. Additionally, members of staff have been
exploring the feasibility of rainwater harvesting.

With the VP for Human Resources & Sustainability
role now in place, Concentric will begin to develop
its new environmental strategy, accompanied by a
supporting roadmap for the short, medium and long

ferm.

At the Birmingham site, an ESOS (Energy Savings
Cpportunity Scheme) and SECR (Streamlined Energy
and Carben Reporting) programme has been estab-
lished to run throughout 2023. This programme will
provide recommendations for further efficiency
improvements and help to mitigate the site’s impact
on the environment,
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Introduction to EU Taxonomy

As part of the EU’s drive to become carbon neutral by
2050, the EU Action Pian on Sustainable Finance was
developed to help unlock funding for the projects,
assets and businesses which will play a critical role in
helping the transition to a iow carbon economy. The EU
Taxonomy, a classification system and transparency
teol, is a key part of this action plan and has been
designed to provide useful insights on the most sus-
tainable economic activities. in order to facilitate
investment decisions and enable informed compari-
sons to be made between companies and investment
portfolios, eligible companies are required to disclose
their share of Taxonomy-aligned activities.

The EU Taxonomy recognises those economic activi-
ties that make a substantial contribution to at least
one of the EU’s six climate and environmental ohjec-
tives, referred to as Taxonomy-eligible activities, e.g.
climate change adaptation, whilst also not significantly
harming any of these objectives and meeting minimum
sociat safeguards, referred to as Taxanomy-aligned
activities. Economic activities which are not officially
recognised by the EU Taxonomy Delegated Acts as
making a substantiat contribution to the climate and
environmental objectives, should not, however, be con-
sidered to be harmful to the environment or unsustain-
able. There are also a number of activities which have
the potentiat to make a substantial contribution to
these objectives, but which are not yet recognised as
part of the EU Taxonomy Detegated Acts. As the list of
Delegated Acts develops over time, the Taxonomy's
scepe will expand allowing for a broader range of activ-
ities to be recognised.

In accerdance with EU Taxonamy requirements, Con-
centric has assessed which of its business activities
and products ¢an be classified as ‘Taxonomy-eligible’,
with more detail on this process provided below. Addi-
tionally, for the first time this year and in line with
reporting requirements, Concentric has alsc assessed
which of its business activities and products can be
classified as ‘Taxoenomy-aligned’. To qualify as ‘Taxano-
my-aligned’, as outlined above, products that meet the
eligibility criteria must not significantly harm any of
the climate and environmental objectives, whilst also
meeting minimum social safeguards. As a non-finan-
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cial company, in line with taxonomy requirements for
2022, Concentric is reporting the proportion of revenue,
operating expenses and capital expenditure which are
considered to be Taxonomy-eligible and Taxonomy

- aligned in the information below.

Concentric’s taxonomy-eligible economie activities
Ouring the last year, Concentric has worked to
strengthen its approach and build on its prior year EU
Taxonomy report and this is reflected in the higher pro-
portion of eligible activities which has increased from
5.8% to 33.8%. To determine the Taxonomy-eligibility
of Concentrics’s portfolio, the business mapped its
products against the EU Taxonomy criteria. Specifi-
cally, product descriptions were mapped against NACE
codes to indicate which activities in the Taxonomy its
products are likely to be eligible for. This process was
supported throughout with technical input from key
internal stakeholders to enable complex product
descriptions and end-uses to be captured. Capital and
operating expenditures were also mapped against
NACE codes to indicate which expenses are eligible
within the Taxonomy.

Concentric’s taxonomy-aligned economic activities
As shown in this Sustainability report, Concentric
places great importance on increasing fuel efficiency
and reducing emissions through its technical solutions
and precision engineering. Currently, the EU Taxonomy
is structured in a way which doesn’t recognise a large
number of Concentric’s economic activities as contrib-
uting substantially to the EU's climate and environmen-
tal objectives. This is why, whitst Concentric has high
eligibility figures, it is not possible to reflect Taxono-
my-alignment across the various product lines. How-
ever, as the Taxoncmy matures, Concentric hopes to be
able to report on a greater number of aligned products
to more accurately represent the contribution the busi-
ness makes to a more sustainable future.

To help bring to life the ways in which Concentric’s
products contribute towards climate mitigation and
adaptation, the following examples demaonstrate some
of the most innovative products which lead to
increased fuel efficiency and emissions reductions:




Water e-pumps:

Concentric’s e-water pumps can be used for the cocl-
ing of hybrid and electric commercial vehicles, both of
which are linked to reductions in greenhouse gas emis-
sions. The seat-less wet rotor design enables high
power density, extremely long lifetimes and is suitable
for the many harsh envirecnments encountered in on
and off highway commercial applications, aptimising
both reliability and performance.

Electro hydraulic steering (EHS):
Amongst its hydraulics range, Concentric’s EHS unit
affers sufficient power for full steering control in all
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conditions and is highly efficient, providing power ‘on
demand’ contrary to conventional steering systems
that provide continuous power. This design leads to
power savings of up to 25% when compared to conven-
tional steering units.

Mini-hybrid electric cooling system

Concentrics's mini-hybnid electric cooling system
offers between 7-10% fuel savings on diesel, hybrid
and electric vehicle applications. The cooling system
outperforms mechanical fans, providing considerable
energy efficiency and in some cases zero emissions,

Division Eligible Activities Non-eligible activities
Engines « Semi Variable Flow Water Pumps - Mechamical Fuel, Oil & Water Pumps
+ Electnc Water & Qil Pumps » Other Engine Products
- Clurch « Other Engine Electric Products
«» Fan Brackets
- Transmission Pummp
- Engine Protolype
EMP « Electric Oil & Water Pumps « Mechanical Fuel, il & Water Pumps
« Mini-Hybrid Electric Cooling System « Mechanical Components
- Other Engine Electric Products
« Other Engine Products
. « Electric Fan
Hydraulics « Low Noise Pumps « Main Hydraulic Pumps
- External Gear Pumps & Gear Motors = Calma Pressure Balanced Power Units
- Electro Hydraulic Steering - Transmission Pump
= High Power Density Units = DC Power Packs
« Controlled Power Packs - Supplementary Stecring
- Hydraulic Prototypes - Other Hydraulic Products
Alfdex - Qil Mist Separatars

Revenue
{Turnover)

Eligibility

33.8.

Capital Expenditures
{Capex)

Eligibility

67.5.

LY

Operating Expenditure
{OpEx)

Eligibility

4.0.
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The Concentric share

The Concentric share has been listed on the NASDAQ OMX Stockholm Exchange
Mid Cap list since June 16, 2011, and is traded under the ticker symbol COIC. The
market capitalisation of Concentric at 31 December, 2022 amounted to MSEK 7,414
represented by 37,979,500 shares at a market price of SEK 195.20.

Share development Share development
{1 January 2018-31 December 2022) {1 January 2022-31 December 2022)
SER

350
300
250

200

150
100
50 T T T T 80 T T T T T T T T T T T
2018 2019 2020 202 2022 Jan Teb Mar Apnl May June duly Aug Seo Oel Nov Dec
® {oncentne ® OME Stoekhuoiry ® Innustng goeds ® Concentne & OMR Stacknobm ® Inousttial guods
PHendex and services ndex Plhindex and services ndex
Seuree Masdac Sunee Nasdg

Data per share

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
Basic carmings before items affecting comparability, SEK 13.01 9.82 5.73 8.37 10.22
Basic Earnings, SEK 13.20 8.91 543 837 10.30
Diluted Earnings, SEK 13.18 3.88 5.42 836 10.27
Return on eguity, % 26.6 26.2 17.5 29.5 41.6
Dividend, SEK 4.(;0” 375 3.50 325 4,25
Own shares repurchased, SEK - 0.00 0.00 0.00 360 3.79
Market pnice at year end, SEX 7 7195.20" 281.00 183.20 159.00 119.80
Equily, SEX 54,69 38,584 28.18 30.08 26.55
EBITDA multiple 5.64 256 194 110 77
EBIT multiple 12.32 29.4 25.4 126 88
F/E ratio h 14.79 316 338 18.7 11.4
Payout ratio, % 7 30.3 421 645 53.8 413
Dividend yreld, % a0 1.3 1.9 2.8 35
Dividend and buy-back yield, % 2.0 1.3 1.9 5.1 6.7
Bastc weighted average number of shares (000's) ””377,§61 37,902 37,815 38,369 39,322
Diluted v;feighted average number of shares (000's} o 38:03(.)“. 38,020 37,860 38,403 30,456
No. of shares at 31 December (000's) 37,980 37,930 37,870 37,767 38,633
1) Proposed dividend for consideration at the 2023 AGM
Price trend and trading nrice was SEK 164.80 (164.80). Concentric’'s market
The price paid for the Concentric share decreased 31% value as of 31 December 2022 was MSEK 7,414
{increase 53) in 2022 to SEK 195.20 (281.00) at year- (10,658). In 2022, a total of 9.9 (15.8) million Concen-
end. The Industrial Goods & Services index decreased tric shares were traded, corresponding to 26% (42) of
17% (increase 37) and the OMX Stockholm Pl Index the total number of shares. For the five years ending 31
decreased 25% (increase 35) during 2022. The highest December 2022, Concentric’s shares have given a total
closing price for the share during the year was regis- annual average return to shareholders of 11% (26).
tered at SEK 316.00 {296.00) and the lowest closing Total shareholder return for the year ended 31 Decem-

ber 2022 was -29% {56).
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Ownership

At the end of 2022, Concentric had a total of 8,191
(8,052) shareholders. Foreign shareholders accounted
far approximately 32% (34) of the total number of
shares. Swedish institutions accounted for the main
part of Swedish ownership. At year-end, 59% (57) of the
Cutlipany wes vwned Ly legal entitics and 9% (9) by
private individuals.

Dividend policy

The dividend policy represents the endeavour to pro-
vide a high return to shareholders and the adaptation
of the size of dividends according to Concentric’s strat-
egy, financial position and other financial targets, as
well as risks that the Board of Directors regards as ret-
evant. In accordance with Concentric’s dividend policy,
dividends should correspond to at least one third of the
Group’s consolidated after-tax profit over the course of
a business cycle.

Capital structure
The Group’s objective in respect of the capital structure
is to secure Concentric’s ability to continue to conduct

Dividend development
Dividend development per share for FY 2018-2022.

SEA
b

THE SHARE

its operations sc that it can generate a return for share-
holders and value for other stakeholders and in order to
maintain an optimal capital structure so that the cost
of capital can be reduced. The Board currently uses
special dividends paid to shareholders and repurchase
of own shares te manage the Group’s capital structure.

Concentric’s communication policy
Concentric’s ambition is to communicate information
internally and externally with the aim of maintaining
confidence in and knowledge of the Group and its aper-
ations. The information should be correct, relevant and
well-formulated and adapted to target groups, t.e. share-
holders, capital markets, the media, employees, suppli-
ers, customers, authorities and the general public.

Taking into account the requirements set in non-
disclosure agreements that may occasionally be
demanded by customers, the Company may not always
be at liberty to divulge the custemer’s identity and/or
business in detail.

The official spokesman for the Company is the
President and CEO.

Swedish and foreign shareholders

G9% g

4.5 55%
0 . Inshwiduais Farotan Legat entities
’ {Jwecivn) {Swedish)
35
3.0
2.5
2.0
1.5
- 10 largest shareholders, 30 December 2022
05 — Vates No. of
1 Name capital, % shares
2018 2019 2020 2021 2220
o ld Nordea investment Funds 8.4 3,217,104
i ivide ial divi 1) P »¢ dividend { - -
rdinary dividend Special dividend ] :-:\:z:se{:m‘;t:;,”;hem Syvedbank RE?’E‘I,Fﬂd}”, 66 2,526,348
7073 AGH Forsta AP-Fonden 62 2,353.227
Handelsbankens Fonder 6.0 2,317,141
N State Street Bank and Irust Co, W9 5.8 2,207,617
Distribution of shares, 30 December 2022 Lannebo Fonder 55 2.095.081
-F kri h Fonde 4.9 1,890,527
No. of % of % of total AMF - Forsakring och Fonder 4
No. of shares shareholders shareholders share capital Fjarde AP-Fonden 4.9 1,882.201
Clhens Fonder 4.2 1,602,375
1-500 6,417 78.3 26
CBNY-NORGES BANK 2.1 819,403
501-1,000 904 10.8 2.1
) ! Total 10 largest
1.001-5.0600 657 8.3 &0 external sharehoiders 54.6 20,914,024
5,001 -10,000 67 0.9 1.3 Total other
10,001-15,000 26 0.2 0.6 external shareholders 44.6 17,068,476
15,001-20,000 17 0.2 0.5 Total, excl own holding 99.2 37,979,500
> 20,001 103 1.2 83.6 Own share holding 0.8 318,100
Total 8,191 100.0 100.0 Total shares 109,0 38,_297,600
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Corporate governance in Concentric

Concentric AB is a publicly traded Swedish limited liability company. Corporate
governance in Concentric proceeds from the Swedish Companies Act, other
applicable laws and regulations, NASDAQ OMX Stockholm’s Rule Book for
Issuers and the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance (“the Code”). The basis
for good corporate governance at Concentric is clear goals, strategies and
values that are well understood by the Company’s employees.
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Foundatliun fur coyporate governance within Concentric
Concentric sees good corporate governance, risk management and internal control as key elements in a successful
business and to maintain confidence among customers, shareholders, authorities and other stakeholders.

Shareholders form the annual general meeting and appoint the nomination committee

Elect

Proposition Information

Nomination Committee Annual General Meeting External Auditors

Information Information

Information Information

Board of Directors Audit committee

Reporting and

Targets and strategies Information
Governance

Information

Information
Targets and
strategies

External control system Internal control system
The dish Companies Act, The Articles of Ass tion, Operati rocedures of the B
other applicable legislation ot Duectors, Instructions tor the President, the Concentric
alion: pub! Code ol Conduct and the Ireaste v Paliey, alonag with a numbe
hadud campanics, NASDAQ ol other Group policies and manuals that cantain vates a L
X Stackholm's Rule Boeok asrecemmendations that specity principles and provide quod

Lo and the Code. anve tor Lhe up's uperalions and employees,
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Annual General Meeting

Concentric AB is a publicly traded Swedish limited liability company with
its registered office in Stockholm, Sweden. With no exceptions, Concentric
complies with the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance and hereby
submits its Corporate Governance report for 2022. The report has been
prepared in accordance with the Swedish Companies Act.
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Shareholders and Annual General Meeting

The shareholders exercise their influence by partici-
pating in the Annual General Meeting {and, as the case
may be, at Extracrdinary General Meetings), which is
Concentric’s supreme decision-making body. The Annual
General Meeting is held in Stockholm, Sweden, every
calendar year before the end of June. Extraordinary
General Meetings are held when necessary. The Annual
General Meeting resolves on a number of issues, such

53
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as the Articles of Association, the adeption of the
income statement and balance sheet, the appropria-
tion of the Company’s profit or loss and the discharge
from lLiability towards the Coempany for the Board mem-
bers and the CEQ, composition of the Nomination Com-
mittee, the election of Board members (including the
Chairman of the Board) and auditor, remuneration to
the Board members and the auditor, principles for
remuneration and employment terms for the CEO and
other senior executives and any amendments to the
Articles of Association.

Notice to attend the Annual General Meeting, as
well as Extraordinary General Meetings at which
amendments to the Articles of Association are to be
addressed, are issued not earlier than six weeks and
not later than four weeks prior to the meeting. Natice
to attend other Extraordinary General Meetings is
issued not earlier than six weeks and not later than
three weeks prior to the meeting. Notices are published
in the Official Swedish Gazette (Post- och Inrikes Tid-
ningar) and on the Company's website. An announce-
ment that notice has beenissued is simultaneously
published in Dagens Nyheter.

To be entitled to participate in a General Meeting,
sharehalders must be recorded in the share register
maintained by Euroclear Sweden five weekdays prior to
the meeting and provide notification of their intention
to attend the meeting not later than the date stiputated
in the notice convening the meeting. Such date must not
be a Sunday, other public holiday, Saturday, Midsummer
Eve, Christmas Eve or New Year's Eve and must not occur
earlier than the fifth weekday prior to the meeting.

Shareholders may attend the ALM i person ur by
proxy and may be accompanied. Shareholders are able
to register for the AGM in several different ways: by
telephone, email or letter.

The Board of Directors may before a General Meeting
resolve that the shareholders shall be entitled to vote
by post prior to the General Meeting

Shareholders wishing to have an issue brought
before the AGM must submit a written request to that
effect to the Board of Directors. Any such requests
must reach the Board of Directors no later than seven
weeks prior to the AGM te ensure thal the issue can be
included in the notice.
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Shareholders
Concentric has been listed on the NASDAQ OMX
Stockholm Stock Exchange since June 16, 2011, The
share capital in Concentric AB at 31 December, 2022
totals MSEK 97.3 (97.3), represented by 37,979,500
(37,929,908) outstanding shares, excluding own shares.
Each share carries equal voting right and dividend rights.
The number of Concentric’s sharehotders at 31
December, 2022 amounted to 8,191 {8,052), with Nordea
Investment Funds representing the targest owner with
8.4% {9.2) of the share capital. Swedish ownership
totalled 68% {56) at year end 2022. Information concern-
ing ownership is updated each month on Concentric’s
website, www.concentricab.com.

Annual General Meeting 2022
Concentric’s Annual General Meeting was held in
Stockholm on 21 April, 2022.

The shareholders present represented 57.2% of the
registered shares in Concentric and 57.7% of the out-
standing shares, excluding the own shares.

Resolutions

The minutes of the meeting are available on Concentric’s
website, www.concentricab.com. The reselutions
passed inctude the following:

The meeting resolved that the Board would comprise
seven members with no deputies. Karin Gunnarsson,
Anders Nielsen, Susanna Schneeberger, Martin Skéld,
Joachim Rosenberg, Petra Sundstrom and Claes Magnus
Akesson were all re-elected for the pertod until the
Annual General Meeting in 2023,

It was decided that the registered accounting firm
KPMG AB shall be auditor untii the end of the annual
general meeting 2023.
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Nomination Committee

Concentric’s Annyal General Meeting resolves on prin-
ciples for the appuintment of members of the Nomination
Commitiee and the Committee’s work. The Nomination
Committee’s assignment includes the preparation and
presentation of proposals for the election of members
of the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board,
the Chairman of General Meetings and auditor as well
as preposals regarding the remuneration of Board
members, members of any Board Committees and fees
to the auditor. The 2019 Annual General Meeting
resolved that the Nomination Committee shall consist
of five members, representing the Chairman of the
Board and one member from each of the four largest
shareholders. The names of these four members and the
shareholders they represent will be announced via a
press release and on Concentric's website at least six
months before the Annual General Meeting, based on the
sharehaldings immediately prior to such announcement.

The members’ term of office will end when a new
Nomination Committee has been appeinted. Provided
that the members of the Nomination Cemmittee do not
agree otherwise, the member representing the largest
shareholder is to be appointed chairman of the Com-
mittee. if a shareholder that has appointed a member
of the Nomination Committee during the Committee’s
term of assignment no longer is one of the four largest
shareholders, the member representing such share-
holder may be replaced by a representative of the
shareholder that instead has hecome one of the four
largest shareholders.

Ashareholder that has appointed a member of the
Maminatinn Cnmmittee may atso replace such repre-
sentative with a new member. No remuneration is to
be paid to members of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee's proposals are presented
in the notice convening the Annuat General Meeting and
on Concentric’s website. In conjunction with the issuance
of the notice convening the Annual General Meeting,
the Nomination Committee shali publish on Concentric’s
website a statement in support of its propasal to the
Board. At least one member of the Nomination Commit-
tee shall attend the Annual General Meeting in order to
present and account of the work performed by the Nom-
ination Committae and present and state the reasons
for the Nomination Committee's proposals.
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Nomination Committee for the 2023

Annual General Meeting

In accordance with a decisicn by the 2019 Annual Gen-
eral Meeting, the Chairman of the Board and one repre-
sentative of each of the four largest shareholders have

been appointed to form the Nomination Committee for

the 2023 Annual General Meeting. Based on the owner-
ship structure as of 31 August, 2022, these sharehold-

ers were:

- Forsta AP-fonden, Nordea AR, Handelsbankens
Fonder and Swedbank Robur Fonder. Combined, they
represented 29.8% of the voting rights in Concentric
AB per 31 December 2022.

The shareholders’ representatives who will comprise
members of the 2022 Nomination Committee are:

- Maria Rengefors (Chairman), Nordea AB, Malin Bjorkmo,
Handelsbankens Fonder, Anette Dahlberg, Forsta
AP-fonden and Mcnica Asmyr, Swedbank Robur
Fonder.

The composition of the Nomination Committee was
disciosed through a press release and a posting on
Concentric's website, on 3 October, 2022. The Compa-
ny's shareholders were given the opportunity to submit
opinions and proposals to the Nomination Committee
via e-mail to the address specified on the Company’s
website, under the heading investors - Governance ~
Corporate Governance in Concentric - AGM 2023,

The Nomination Committee’s work during its man-
date included the following:

- Studied an evaluation of the Board's work.

« Reviewed competence needs and discussed Lhe
Board's composition in the light of Concentric’s
strategies.

- Nominated Board members.
- Verified the candidates’ independence.

- Presented remuneration proposals for the Board
{including performance based incentive programmes}
and the Auditor.

- Reviewed and issued a proposal on the principles for
appointing the Nomination Committee for the 2023
AGM.
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Board of Directors

Responsibility and work of the Board

The duties of the Board are set forth in the Swedisn
Companies Act, the Company’s Articles of Association
and the Code. ln addition to this, the work of the Board
is guided by Operating Procedures that the Board
adopts every year. The Gperating Procedures govern
the division of work and responsibility among the
Board, its Chairman and the CEO. The Board sets oper-
atfonal goals and strategies and is responsible for the
Group's organisation and the management of its
affairs, developing and monitoring the overall strate-
gies, deciding an major acquisitions, divestments and
investments, ongoing monitering of operations and
adoption of interim and year-end reports, The Board
is alsa responsibie for ongoing evaluation of manage-
ment, as well as systems for monitoring and internal
controls of the Group’s financial reporting and posi-
tion. Moreover, the Board ensures that the Company’s
external disclosure of information is characterised by
apenness and that it is accurate, relevant and clear.
During Board meetings, the following items regulariy
appear on the agenda: the Group's performance and
position, the business status, organisational matters,
monthly accounts, external communication, disputes,
acquisitions and divestments, major business agree-
ments, development projects and investments.

From a sustainability perspective, the Board continu-
ously evaluates economic, environmental and social
aspects of the Group's perfarmance and reviews spe-
cific issues such as work-related injuries, energy con-
sumption and Code of Conduct adherence.

Responsibilities of the Chairman of the Board

The Chairman, in collaboration with the CEQ, monitors
the Group's operations and performance, prepares and
chairs Board meetings. The Chairman is also responsible
for ensuring that the Beard evaluates its work each year,
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CEO and Senior Management
The CED is responsible for the day-to-day management
and development of the Company in accordance with
applicable legislation and regulations, including tha
rutes of NASDAQ OMX Stockholm and the Code, and the
instructions and strategies determined by the Board.
The CEQ ensures that the Board is provided with
objective and relevant information required in order
for the Board to make well-informed decisions. Fur-
thermore, the CEQ monitors compliance with the tar-
gets, policies and strategic plans of the Company and
the Group that have been adopted by the Board, and
is responsible for keeping the Beoard informed of the
Company’s development between Board meetings.
The CEO leads the work of the senior management
team, which is responsible for overall business devel-
opment. In addition to the CEQ, the senior management
comprises the CFO, the VP Operational Excellence, the
VP HR & Sustainability and the SVP's of EMP, Engine
and Hydraulic divisions, a total of seven persons
including the CEO.

Steering instruments

External

Steering instruments that form the basis for Corporate
Governance in Concentric primarily include the Swedish
Companies Act, other applicable legislation and requ-
lations for publicly traded companies, NASDAQ OMX
Stockholm's Rule Book for Issuers, and the Swedish
Code.

Internal

Internal binding steering instruments include the
Articles of Association adopted by the Annual General
Meeting, and documents approved by the Board that
inciude the Operating Procedures of the Board of
Directors, Instructions for the President, the Concen-
tric Code of Conduct and the Treasury Policy. In addi-
tion, the Group has a number of other policies and
manuals that contain rules as weil as recommenda-
tions that specify principles and provide guidance for
the Group's operations and employees.



Operating Procedures of the Board of Directors

The Operating Procedures requlate the Board of Direc-
tors’ internal division of work, the line of decision
within the Board of Directors, the procedural rules for
Board meetings and the duties of the Chairman of the
Board. The wark of the Board follows a fixed procedure
aimed at ensuring that the Board of Directors’ informa-
tion requirements are met,

Instructions for the CEOQ

The Instructions for the CEQ establishes the bounda-
ries for the President’s responsibility for the opera-
tional administration, the forms for reperting to the
Board of Directors and what this shall contain, require-
ments for internal steering instruments and matters
that require the approval of the Board of Directors or
that notification be provided to the Board of Directors.

Board of Directors independence

The Board's assessment of the members' independence,
in relation to the Company, its senior management and
major Shareholders, is presented in “The Board” on
pages 60-61. All Board members are considered to be
independent of the Company, its senior management
and major Shareholders. Consequently, the Company
meets the independence requirements of the Code.

Meetings attended 2022

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Work of the Board

The Beard of Directors held a statutory meeting

immediately following the Annual General Meeting.
During 2022, the Board of Directors held a total

of 7 meetings. The main issues addressed were:

+ Reviewing relevant policies, procedures and
instructions for the Group.

- Reviewing external communications, including
interim reports and financial statements for the
Group and Parent Company.

+ Reviewing budget and strategic plans, including
proposals for development projects, significant
capital investments and major business agreements.

- Reviewing the Group’s capital structure and ongoing
financing arrangements.

» Appraising acquisition opportunities.
+ Reviewing financial forecasts tc ensure the business

maintained sufficient liquidity to finance operational
needs throughout the global pandemic.

Ongoing monitoring of the Group's operations, includ-
ing evaluating economic, environmental and social
aspects of the Group's performance, end-market
developments, organisational matters, monthly
accounts, disputes and the overall performance

of management.

Board member Board Audit Committe Compensation Committee 2022/23 Board Fees (SEK})
Anders Nielsen? H Y 5 1,025000
Claes Magnus Akesson” 7 6 550,000
Susanna Schneeberger® 7 5 500,000
Karin Gunnarsson 7 & 450,000
Joachim Resenberg 7 375,000
Petra Sundstrém <] 375,000
Martin Skold 7 375,000
3,650,000

1) Chairman of the Board
2) Chairman of the Audit Committee
3} Chairman of the Compensation Commitiee
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Composition of the Board of Directors
Under the Articles of Association, Concentric’s Board
shall consist of not less than three and not more than
ten members elected each year by the Annual General
Meeting for the period up until the next Annuat General
Meeting.

None of the Group’s senior executives or employee
representatives were members of the Board in 2022.
However, Concentric's CEQ participates in Board meet-

ings and the Group's CFQ serves as the Board's secretary.

Other saiaried employees attend Board meetings in con-
nection with the presentation of particular issues.
When electing the Board of Directors, the aim is to
ensure that the Board as a whole, for the purpose of its
work, possesses the reguisite knowledge of and experi-
encein the social, business and cuitural conditions of
the regions and markets in which the main activities of
the Concentric Group are carried out. According to the
Cede, which Concentric follows, the composition of the
Board should be appropriate to the Company's opera-
tions, phase of development and other relevant circum-
stances. The Board members elected by the General
Meeting shall collectively exhibit the necessary diver-
sity and breadth of qualifications, experience and
background. Concentric use section 4.1 in the Code as
its diversity policy, which for example means that the
Company shall strive for gender batance on the Board.
The Chairman of the Beard shall discuss the Company’s
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requirements regarding the competence, experience
and background of its Board members with the Nomi-
nation Committee. The Nomination Committee shall
report on its work and explain its groposals at the
Annual General Meeting and shall pubtish a reascned
statement in support of its proposals on Concentric’s
website.

Pursuant to requirements of the Code, more than
hatf of the members of the Board elected by the Gen-
eral Meeting must be independent of the Company and
senior management. This requirement does not apply
to any employee representatives.

A director's independence is to be determined by a
general assessment of all factors that may give cause
to question the individual’s independence of the Com-
pany or its senior management, such as recent employ-
ment with the Company or a closely related company.
At least two of the members of the Board who are inde-
pendent of the Company and its senior management
are also to be independent in relation to the Company's
major shareholders.

In orcer to determine such independence, the extent
of the member’'s direct and indirect relationships with
major sharehotders is to be taken into consideration.
Major shareholders, as defined in the Code, are share-
haolders wha directly or indirectly control 10% or maore
of the shares or voting capital in the Company.
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Compensation Committee

Tasks

Under the Code and the Swedish Companies Act, the
Board is to establish a Compensation Committee within
its own ranks, or, alternatively, the tasks of such com-
mittee should be performed by the entire Board.

In the inaugural Board meeting after AGM 2022, sep-
arate committees were established. The Compensation
Committee comprises two members, Susanna Schnee-
berger and Anders Nielsen. The main tasks undertaken
during the separately convened Compensation Com-
mittee meetings were to prepare Board resclutions on
issues concerning principles for remuneration, remu-
nerations and cther terms of employment for the seniar
executives, to monitor and evaluate programmes for
variable remuneration for senior executives, and to
monitor and evaluate the application of the guidelines
for remuneration to senior executives resoived upon by
the Annual General Meeting as well as remuneration
structures and levels. During 2022, there were 5
Compensaticn Committee meetings.

Remuneration of the Board of Directors

Fees to the Board members elected by the General
Meeting are resolved upon by the General Meeting
after proposals from the Compensation Committee.
The 2022 Annual Generat Meeting resolved of un-
changed fees totalling SEK 3,650,000 will be paid for
the periad up until the end of the 2023 Annual General
Meegting and be distributed among the Board members
as set outin the table on page 53. The remuneration to
the Board is fixed, with no varizble component.

Guidelines

The terms of emplaoyment for senior executives shall
consist of a batanced combination of fixed salary,
annual bonus, long-term incentive programme, pension
and other benefits and terms for dismissal/severance
payment.

The total annual monetary remuneration, i.e. fixed
salary, bonus and other long-term monetary remunera-
tion, shall be in accordance with market practice on
the gecgraphical market where the senior executive
operates. The total level of the compensation witl be
evaluated annually to ensure that itisin line with mar-
ket practice for correspanding positions within the
relevant geographical market,

The remuneration should be based on performance.
It should therefore consist of a combination of fixed sal-
ary and bonus, which is capped to a percentage of fixed
annual salary, where the variable remuneration forms
a rather substantial part of the total remuneration.

When entering into new pension agreements with
senior executives who are entitled to pension, the
pension shall be based on defined contribution plans
in accordance with local regulations on pension. As a
main principal, pension premiums are based solely on
fixed salary, Certain adjustments may occur in individ-
ual casesin accordance with local market practice.

For more details of the guidelines, please see in
Board of Directors’ report on the pages 71-75.

Basic salary/ Annual variable Longterm variable
Amountsin kSEK Benefits in kind remuneration remuneration Pension Total 2022
President and CEC
David Woolley (until February 22} 1,418 - 2,764 - 4,182
Martin Kunz (from March 22) 4,861 1,887 - 222 6,951
Other senior executives 13,075 3,798 485 281 17,639
Total 19,3364 5,685 3,248 503 28,771

The number of other senior executives are 8 (6). For guidelines on remuneration see pages 71-75.
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Incentive programmes

Concentric AB Anrnual General Meeting 2018-2022
have decided upon five long-term performance based
incentive programmes, under which senior executives
and key employees participating in the schemes are
entitled to receive employee stock options that entitle
them to acquire Concentric shares. The fair value of the
opttons has been raleulated according to the Black &
Scholes-method.

In order to ensure and maximise the management's
engagement in Concentric, allocation of employee
stock options was conditioned upon the participants
becoming sharehglders in Concentric by their own
investments of Concentric shares in the stock market.

Delivery of shares under the LTI pregrammes is con-
ditional upon continuity of employment and holdings
of these savings shares throughout the respective three
year lock up period. Allincentive programmes are
equity-settled. Key data and parameters are included
in the tables helow. See also note 24 for the Group.
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tncentive programme 2022
The AGM resolved on a leng-term incentive programme,
LTI 2022, consistent with previous years.

The programme comprised of 17 senior executives
and ather key employees within the Concentric Group.
in order to participate in LTI 2022, the participants
made their own investments in Concentric shares in
the stock market. Each Concentric share acquired
under LTI 2622 entitled the participants to two free
employee stock options, where each, after a three year
lock-up period, will entitle the participant to acquire
one Concentric share at a price of SEK 172.50 and SEK
258.70 respectively.

For more information about the Company’s LT
schemes, see Group note 8 on pages 91-92.
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Audit Committee

The Board's responsibility for internal controls is regu-
lated by the Swedish Companies Act, the Swedish
Annual Accounts Act and the Code. information on the
main components of the Company’s systems for inter-
nal controls and risk management relating to the finan-
cial reporting must be disclosed annually in the Com-
pany’s corporate governance report.

The processes for internal control, risk assessment,
control activities and monitoring regarding the finan-
cial reporting are designed to ensure reliable overall
financiat reporting and external financial statements
in accordance with IFRS, applicable laws and requla-
tions and other requirements for companies listed on
NASDAQ OMX Stockholm.

The Audit Committee comprises three members,
Claes Magnus Akesson, Anders Nielsen and Karin
Gunnarsson. During 2022 there were 6 Audit Commit-
tee meetings. The principal tasks undertaken during
the separately convened Audit Committee meetings
were:

- Review and analyse the financial statements, interim
reports and Annual Report;

« Quality assessment of internal control systems,
control procedures and risk management;

« Review the audit plan of the external auditors in both
the short-term and long-term;

- Preparation of the Corporate Governance Report;

- Recommendation for the election of external auditars
in consultation with the Management Team, the
Board of Directors and the Nomination Committee
prier to the Nomination Committee’s recommenda-
tion for the Annual General Meeting;

- Review and monitaring of the auditor’s impartiality
and independence regarding approval of fees and
compensation due to the auditors for auditing work
as well as advance approval of the auditor's provision
of non-audit services;
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= Monitoring the statutory audit;

- Reporting and presentation to the Board of Directors
observations noted during review sessions with audi-
tors and Management; and

« Otherwise complete the tasks ptaced on the Audit
Committee according to applicable laws, ordinances
and the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance.

External audit
The Annual General Meeting elects the external auditor
for a period of one year at a time, The auditor reviews
the Annual Report, the accounts, the corporate govern-
ance report, as welt as the administration of the Board
and the CEOQ, and follows an audit schedule setin con-
sultation with the Audit Committee, In connection with
the audit, the auditor shall report its chservations to
senior management for reconciliation and then fo the
Audit Committee. The report to the Board takes place
in conjunction with the adoption of the Annual Report.
The Board meets with the auditor once a year, where
the auditor reports its ehservations directly to the
Board without the presence of the CEQ and the CFO.
The auditor also regularly reports to the Audit Commit-
tee. Finally, the auditor attends the Annual General
Meeting and briefly describes the auditing work and
the recommendations in the Audit Report.

Control environment

The Board has specified a set of instructions and work-
ing plans regarding the roles and responsibilities of the
CEC and the Board. The manner in which the Board
monitors and ensures the quahity of the internal con-
trols is documented in the Operating Pracedures of the
Board and Concentric’s Treasury Policy,

The Board also has a number of established basic
guidetlines, which are important for its work on internal
control activities. This includes monitoring performance
against plans and prior years and overseeing various



issues such as the internal control routines and account-
ing principles applied by the Group. The respensibility
for maintaining an effective control environment and
internal control cver financial reporting is delegated
to the CEQ, although the ultimate responsibility rests
with the Board. Other executives at various levels have
in turn responsibilities within their respective areas of
operation. Senior management regularly reports to
the Board according to established routines, Defined
responsibilities, instructions, guidelines, manuals and
policies together with laws and requlations form the
control environment. All emmployees are accountable
for compliance with these guideiines.

Risk assessment and control activities

The Company cperates a COSO model (developed by the
Committee of Spensering Organisation of the Treadway
Commission) for the identification and assessment of
risksin all areas. These tisks are reviewed regularly by
the Board and include both the risk of losing assets as
well as irregularities and fraud. Designing control activi-
ties is of particular importance to enable the Company
to prevent and identify shortcomings. Assessing and
controlling risks also involves the management for each
reporting unit, where monthly business review meetings
are held. The CEQ, the CFO, and local and regional man-
agement participate in the meetings. Minutes are kept
for these meetings.

information and communication

Guidelines and manuals used in the Company’s finan-
cial reparting are communicated to the employees
concerned, There are formal as well as informal infor-
mation channels to the senior management and to the
Board for infoermation from the empioyees identified
as significant. Guidelines for external communication
are designed to ensure that the Company applies the
highest standards for providing accurate information
to the financial market.
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Evaluation, monitoring and reporting

The Board regularly evaluates the information provided
by senior management. The Board receives regular
updates of the Group’s development between its meet-
ings. The Group's financial position, its strategies and
investments are discussed at every Board meeting. The
Audit Committee is responsible for the follow-up of the
internal contrel activities. This work includes ensuring
that measures are taken to deal with any inaccuracy
and to follow-up suggestions for actions emerging from
the external audits. The Company operates an annual
control self-assessment process for the evaluation of
risk management and internal control activities. This
assessment includes reviewing the application of
established routines and guidelines. The key findings
from this annual assessment process, together with the
status of any actions regarding the Company’s internal
control environment, are reported to the Board.

Internal audit

As the group continues to grow the control environment
becomes more complex and soin 2022 management
made the decision to establish an internal audit function
and following this the position of Group Internal Audit
Manager was created and then subsequently filled in
January 2023, reporting directly to the CFO. The Group
now has a dedicated function to manage the control
framework and montitor compliance against it.
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The Board

Anders Nielsen

Chairman of the Board
and member since 2017

Born 1962

M.Sc. Industriat Engineering and Management.

Claes Magnus Akesson

Chairman of the Audit
Committee and member
since 2010

Born 1959

B.Sc. Busmess Administration.

CTO Vestas Wind Systems A/S from 1 April 2020.
Previously CTO at TRATON, responsible for product
development associated with the brands of Scania, MAN
and Volkswagen Caminhdes e Onibus 2016-2019, CEQ of
MAN Truck & Bus AG 2012-2015. Anders’ career began
at Scania in 1987, culminating with his appointment

as Executive Vice President, Head of Production and
Logistics at Scania AB in 2010, Member of the Board of
Haldex AB 20015-2017, Konecranes Oy 2017-20189.

Shareholding 1w Concentric: 3,700 shares. Independent in
relation to the Company, the sentor Management and to
major shareholders.

Karin Gunnarsson
Member since 2019
Born 1962

B.5c. Business Administration.

Boardmember of Beijer Electronics Group AB and Bulten
AB amang others. Previousty CFC and responsible for
investor Relatiens in HEXPOL AB. Experience from various
nositions in Finance and Controlling, such as SVP Group
Controlling at Telelogic AB and as Group Accounting
Manager at Trelleborg AB.

Sharehoiding in Concentrie: 2,500 shares, Independent in
relation to the Company, the senior Management and to
major shareholders.
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Chairman of IM@Home. Boardmember of Nyfosa AB.
Boardmember of VIE Kapital AB. Previously CFO of JM AB.
Claes Magnus has a broad international experience from
different treasury and controller positions at Ericsson
1987-1998. Boardmember of Handicare Group AB 2017-
2021 and has had several board assignments within the
IM Group.

Shareholding in Concentric: 8,000 shares. independent in
retation to the Company, the semor Management and to
major shareholders.

Petra Sundstrom
Member since 2021
Born 1976

Fil. Orin Human Computer interaction, Master in
Computer Science

Vice President and Head of Digital Offering at Sandvik
Rock Processing. Former chairman of the board ot foT
Sverige. Petra has previously worked at Husgvarna Group
and1s a regularly appointed lecturer in topics such as
Digital transformation, innovation and the Internet of
Things,

Shareholding in Concentric: 200 shares. Independent in
relation to the Company, the seninr Management and to
major sharenolders.



Martin Skold
Membersince 2010
Born 1973

Ph D Business Administration, M.Sc. Industrial
management and Business Administration, and B.5c.
tnnovation Engineering. Ph D Innovation and Operations
Management at Stockholm School of Economics.

Director and member of the Foundation IMIT. Chairman

of Vedum Kék & Bad AB and Kvanum Kbk AB. Corporate
advisor for multinational corporations and assignments
within family firm businesses manufacturing trailers for
the heavy truck industry, and a wholesale dealer for heavy
trailer spare parts.

Shareholding in Concentric: 400 shares. Independent in
relation to the Company, the senior Management and te
major shareholders.

Joachim Rosenberg
Member since 2021
Born 1970

#M.Sc. Industriat Engineering and Management, Master of
Business Administration and Master of Economics.

Executive Vice President for Volvo Group. Joachim has
warked within the Volve Group since 2005 and has heen
a member of the company’s Executive Board since 2012,
He is President of Volvo Energy since 2021. Betore Volvo,
Joachim worked at McKinsey & Company for eight years,
based in Europe and the USA.

Sharehoiding in Cancentric: 1,000 shares. Independent in
relation to the Company, the senior Management and to
major sharehelders.
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Susanna Schneeberger

Chairman of the
Remuneration Committee
and member since 2015 -

Born 1973 L,
‘\‘ i

M.Sc. International Business Administration and MBA
European Affairs.

Senior Advisor. Previously Executive Board Member and
Chief Digital Officer at KION Group 2018-2021, Vice
President at Konecranes Corporation and CEQ at DEMAG
Cranes & Components 2015-2018, as well as global roles
within the Trelleborg Group 2007-2014. Eartier experience
mcludes multiple commercial managerial positions inter-
natiopally. Boardmember of Hempet A/S and SKF Group.

Shareholding in Concentric: 1,000 shares, Independent in
relation to the Company, the semor Management and lo
major shareholders.
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Group Management

Martin Kunz

President and Chief
Executive Officer as
of 1 March 2022

Born 1965

M. Se. Mechanical engineering and Business
Administration

Martin Kunz joined Concentric in March 2022 as President
and Chief Executive Officer. Prior to that he worked for 6
years at Xylem Inc. as Vice President & General Manager
of Applied Water Systems EMEA and the global Specialty
Flow Control business, and most recently as Vice President
Commercial, Europe responsible for sales of more than
sthn. Before joining Xylem, Martin held global functional
and General Management responsibilities at Pentair inc,
Ahlstrom QY and Acument Global Technologies (previousty
Textron Fastaning Systems),

Shareholding in Concentric: 12,660 shares,

Jennifer Todd-Wilson

Vice President Human
Resources & Sustainability

Born 1979

Diploma of Business from the Toyota Training Institute

Jennifer joined Concentric in January 2023, Jennifer holds
a Diploma of Business from the Toyota Training institute
as wetl as a Bachelor of Commerce in Industrial Relations
from University of Wollongong, New Scuth Wales,
Australia. fennifer joins us from Xylem where she has held
several leadership roles over the last ten years, including
Director Service, Rental and Continucus Improvement and
various international HR pasitions in the Applied Water
Systems division. Prior to jeining Xylem Jennifer worked
for Qnesteel Distribution & PPG and Toyota.

Shareholding in Concentric: 0 shares.
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Marcus Whitehouse
Chief Financial Officer
Born 1971

Fellow of the Assotiation of Chartered and Certified
Accountants

Marcus Whitehouse joined Concentric as Group CFO in
January 2018 from JCB, where he had worked for the last
10 years, most recently as Director of Group Finance.

At JCB, Marcus held a number of senior financial roles
leading strategy and operational improvements for the
international manufacturer. Prior to joining JCB, Marcus
worked for Linpac (PE owned), the Huntsman Group
{NYSE) and Albrght & Wilson PLC {LSE).

Shareholding in Cancentric: 6,388 shares,

Riccardo Cavaltari

Vice President Operational
Excellence

Born 1872

BSc Information Technology

Riccarde joined Concentric in August 2022 as VP
Operational Excellence. Betore he held different
leadership positions with Xylem, a global teader in wate
technolegies, pumps and fluid management. During 13
years at Xylem he cerved as Lean Six Sigma Champion &
Master Black Belt, Plant Manager, Director Continuous
improvement & Quatity Director and most recently as
Director Operational Excellence for a globally operating
diviston. {n his earhier career Riccardo worked for Emerson
as Industnal Engineering Manager ard Lean Six Sigma
Program Manager,

Sharehotding in Concentric: 0 shares.



Boris Gavric

Senior Vice President
Engines Europe & Asia
and Advanced Products
Born 1974

B.Sc. Biology - University of Windsor

Hon. Applied Science Mechamcal Engineering - University
of Windsor

M.Sc. Biomedical £ngineering - Wayne State University
M.B.A. - Michigan State University

Boris joined Concentric in October 2022 as SVP Engines
and Thermal Selutions. Boris previously worked as the
COO0 of the QM Group, a midsize plastic injection molder
with global presence. Prior to this, he worked for Henniges
Automotive, a global leader in automotive weather
sealing. There is held roles ranging inresponsibitity from
engineering, program management, operations, M&A and
ending with Global Vice President of Sales and Marketing.
In 2010, the SAE Foundation recognized Boris with the
Young Manufacturing Leadership Award.

Shareholding in Concentric: O shares.

Brandon Larche

Senior Vice President
Engines North America

Born 1683

B.5c. Business Administration

Brandon Laiche joined Concentric as SVP and COQ

when EMP was acquired by Concentrie in October, 2021,
Brandon has over 16 yeais of manufacturing experience.
Prior to his current role, Brandon held roles as CFO,

€00 and President at EMP. In addition to his upper
management respoensibilities, Brandon has hetd numerous
financial and nperational positions.

Sharehoiding in Concentric: 4,400 shares.
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Fernando Palmero

Senior Vice President
Hydraulics Division

Born 1958

£MBA IESE Business School, BSe industnial Engineering

Fernando joined Concentric in March 2022 as Interim
Manager for the Hydraulics plantin Hof and Commercial
Leader for Europe. in August 2022 he took over the
Hydraulics business as SVP. Qver his career, he held
several senior leadership roles within the automotive
sector and other engineering producis markets, working
across rmultiple diverse geographical sites within

IBM, Faurecia, Acument Glohal Technologies and PSM
International.

Shareholding in Concentric: 0 shares.
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Board of Directors’ report

General

The Board of Directors and the CEO of Concentric AB,
corporate identity number 556828-4995, hereby pres-
ent the annual consolidated and Company accounts for
the financial year 2022. The Company has its registered
office in Stockholm, Sweden and its visiting and postal
address at Box 5058, 102 42 Stockholm, Sweden.
Unless otherwise stated, all amounts have been stated
in SEK million ("MSEK"). information in brackets refers
to the preceding fiscai year. The terms "Concentric”,
“Group”, and "Company™ all refer to the Parent Com-
pany - Concentric AB - and its subsidiaries.

Overview of Concentric

Group

Concentrie produces and sells a range of products to
QEMs, Tier-1 suppliers and distributors, based on its
core technicat competence in pumps, fans, thermal
management systems and clutches. Core products are
developed together with customers, to provide custom
solutions to their specific flow and pressure require-
ments, whilst achieving the customer’s goals an reduc-
ing fuet consumption, noise levels and emissions.
Atypical product development period can be upto
three years, and a typical product life is in excess of
ten years. Concentric’s customers are spread globally,
and their products principally serve four end-markets;
Trucks, Construction Equipment, Industrial Applica-
tions and Agriculturat Machinery,

Qur critical success factor has been to develop and
offer a wide range of high performance, high efficiency
pumps with low to high-pressure capability and the
ability to integrate these pumps seamlessly with elec-
tric motors, controlters and software that deliver
world-class reliability, low energy use and full diagnos-
tic capabitity.

During 2022, Concentric had, on averaqe, a total of
1,207 (817) employees at its sites in China, Germany,
india, United Kingdom, United States, and its sales
offices in France, South Korea, Italy and Sweden.

Operating segments

Following the acquisition of EMP and an internal organi-
sation and reporting review, the Board has decided the
business will report by technology segments, namely
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Engines & Hydraulics, rather than geographical regions,
which is consistent with both how the business will be
managed and reported internally in the future.

The Engine division will include all Conecentric, Licos
and EMP branded engine products, including royalties
and net income from our joint venture, Alfdex. The
Hydraulics division will include Concentric and Allied
branded hydraulic products. This change is effective
from 1 January 2022 and comparative quarterly finan-
cial information for 2021 can seen in the 2022 Interim
reports.

Sales and business performanece

Sales for the year, were MSEK 4,056 (2,115), up 92%
year-on-year in absolute terms. After adjusting for the
impact of currency (+12%) and EMP (+65%), sales in
constant currency were up +15%.

This has been a transformational year for Concentric
following the successful acquisition and integration
of EMP, which combined with an overall strong trading
performance has increased our net sates for the full
year to MSEK 4,056, the highest in the Company’s his-
tory. However, this has also been a challenging year
with the war in Europe, the energy crisis, continued
instability
in the global supply chain and general inflationary
pressures, but despite these chaltlenges Concentric has
delivered robust operating margins throughout 2022,
mainty through the commitment and dedication of cur
employees.

Consolidated gross income was MSEK 1,065 (620),
resulting in a gross margin of 26% (29%). Reported
FBIT and EBIT margin amounted to MSEK 677 (403} and
16.7% (19.1) respectively. Reported EBIT was impacted
by the sale of our facility in Chivilcoy, Argentina, MSEK
S. The operating margin before items affecting compa-
rability for the year was 16.5% (20.9).

Economic uncertainty will continue from the war in
Europe, ongoing inflationary pressures and the eco-
nomic situation in China, however Concentric will con-
tinue to maintain our strong trading margins through
nur Business Excellence programme and enhanced
capabilities built up during the past year. With the
global supply chain stabilising further, we also aim to
reduce inventory.



Engines
External sales for the year amounted to MSEK 2,691
{1,115). Sales for the year were up 141% and after
adjusting for the impact of currency +9% and EMP
+122% salesin constant currency were up +10%.
Overall sales of Engine products were flat year-on-
year, maintaining a sustained high. Sales into Agricul-
ture Equipment and Industrial Application sectors were
particularly strong this year, whilst sales into Medium
and heavy-duty Truck and Construction Equipment
sectors showed single digit growth. North America had
the strongest growth in the year whilst the Europe and
India regions showing a more modest increase.
Reported EBIT and EBIT margin as a percentage of
external sales amounted to MSEK 427 (289} and 15.9%
(25.9) respectively. The year-on-year margin decrease
is a result of the mix change following the acquisition
of EMP.

Hydraulics

External sales for the year amcunted to MSEK 1,365
(1,000). Sales were up year-on-year by 37% and after
adjusting for the impact of currency +16%, sales in
constant currency were up 21%. Sales to the Neorth
American and European markets fared particularty well
and showed double digit growth across most sectors,
only the North American Truck market showed a
decline year-on-year. China imposed stringent controls
for the majority of the year to limit the spread of Covid-
19, which negatively impacted the broader economy.
Our sales in the region wére lower year-on-year, how-
cver they romain a small pereentage of gur Group’s net
sales.

Reported EBIT and EBIT margin as a percentage of
external sales amounted to MSEK 241 (154) and 17.7%
(15.4) respectively, The increase in margin is a result of
the increase in sales whilst maintaining cost control.

Net financial items, taxes and net earnings

Net financial expenses for the year amounted to MSEK
43 (13), comprising of pension financial expenses of
MSEK 5 (5), interest expenses for leases MSEK 4 (5],
interest expense on the loan of MSEK 44 (3) and other
net interest income of MSEK 10 (nil). Accordingly, con-
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solidated income before taxation amounted to MSEK
634 (390) for the year.

The Group's tax expenses for e calendar year 2022
amounted to MSEK 133 (52). The Group's effective
annual tax rate was 219% (14).

Earnings after taxation amounted to MSEK 501
(328). Basic and diluted earnings per share amounted
to SEK 13.20 (8.91) and SEK 13.18 (8.88) respectively.

Cash flow

Cash flow from operating activities for the year
amounted to MSEK 526 (260) which represents SEK
13.95 (6.89) per share, resuiting in a strong cash con-
version of 162%.

Investments and product development
The Group's net investments in property, plant and
equipment for the year amounted to MSEK 62 {21).
Every year, the Group makes investments in develop-
ment projects to mainlain its market-leading products.
Product development and application engineering
expenses for the year amounted to MSEK 91 (37), which
represents 2.2% (1.7) of the Group’s annual sales value.

Financial position and liquidity

The carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities
are considered to be reasonable approximations of
their fair values. Financial instruments carried at fair
value on the balance sheet consist solely of derivative
instruments. As of 31 December 2022 the fair value of
those derivative instruments that were assets was MSEK
30 (3), and the fair value of those derivative instruments
that were liabilities was MSEK 0 {8). These tavr value
measurements belong to level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy.

Foliowing a final review of the actuarial assumptions
used to value the Group’s defined benefit pension plans,
the total cumulative net remeasurement gains for the
year was MSEK 75 (81).

As a result, the Group's net debt at 31 December
2022 was MSEK 925 (1,192}, comprising bank loans of
MSEK 1,174 {1,146), loans related to leasing MSEK 114
(125) and net pension Labilities of MSEK 261 (361), net
of cash amounting to MSEK 624 (440).
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Shareholders’ equity amounted to MSEK 2,070
{1,462), resulting in a gearing ratio of 45% {82).

In 2021 Concentric signed new financing agree-
ments with its existing banks, securing a new term
loan for a tenor of four years in the amount of MUSD
100, and 50% of the term loan will be repaid quarterly
in equal instalments over the four years starting in Q1
2022. [n addition, a new multi-currency revelving
credit facility for a minimum of three years in the
amount ¢f MEUR 60 was signed. At year end, this
amounted to MSEK 1,174 at closing 2022 FX rates.

The loan agreements in the Group contain financtal
covenants which the Group must comply with. The cov-
enants are net debtin relation to EBITDA and in rela-
tion to Equity. At the year-end Concentric AB fulfilled
these covenants with broad margins.

The amount of available unused credit facilities at year-
end was FUR million 37 (38), or about MSEK 407 (388).

Acquisitions
There were no acquisitions in 2022,

Related party transactions

Other than routine transactions related to intra-group
financing and cash pooling arrangements, no transac-
tions have been carried out between Concentric AB
and its subsidiary undertakings and any related parties
that had a material impact on either the Company's or
the Group's financial pasition and results. Over the last
five years, the AGM has decided upon five leng-term

incentive plans for the management and key personnel.

Environment and corporate social responsibitity
Most of Concentric’s sites are certified to 15014001
(environmental management) and some sites to
15045001 {healthy and safety management). Concen-
tric environmental programmes are characterised by
continuous improvement, technical development and
resource efficiency. Concentric’s environmental policy
covers all activities performed at Concentric sites.
Ceoncentric has adopted a social policy based on the
UN's Universal Declaration of Human Rights, the UN
Global Compact initiative, the International Labour
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Organisation’s {ILQ) basic principles on labour law

and the OECD guidelines for multinational companies.
Our 2022 Sustainability Report has been prepared in
accordance with GRI Standards: Core option, as a sepa-
rate part and is included on pages 34-47 and 126-133.

Equal opportunity

Concentric’s commitment to employees is that all
employees shall be treated with respect and be offered
equal opportunities, be provided the conditions for a
safe and healthy work envirenment and have the right
to join an association to represent their interests.

Risk and risk management

A number of factors, not entirely controllable by Con-
centric, affect and may come to affect Concentric’s
business. Described below are some of the risk factors,
which are considered to be of particular significance to
Concentric's future development. The Board of Concen-
tric AB bears an overriding responsibility for identify-
ing, following up and managing all risks.

industry and market risks

Competition and price pressure

Concentric operates in competitive markets, where
price pressure is a natural feature. Stiffer competition
and price pressure may impact negatively on the Group’s
operations, financial position and earnings. Far example,
customers may increasingly opt for products competing
with the Concentric product range and it cannot be
excluded that more intense competition may adversely
affect Concentric’s current margins.

Concentric manages this risk through innovation
and product developrment, which maintain its market-
leading products that solve its customers’ probiems
and differentiate Concentric from the competition.

Customers

Concentric is active in several different market seg-
ments and has a large number of customers distributed
among several areas of operatian. A loss of a major
customer or the loss or delay of a major contract may



have an adverse impact on the Group’s sales and earn-
ings. Moreover, if Concentric's customers do not meet
their obligations or drastically reduce operations or
terminate activities, the Group’s sales and earnings
may be negatively affected.

Concentric manages this risk by working closely with
its customers to solve their problems and meet their
needs, as well as undertaking annual surveys with all
of its major customers,

Raw materials and prices of raw materials

The Group depends directly orindirectly on a number
of raw materials, semi-finished goods and conversion
processes. The greatest exposure on raw materials
relates to the supply of aluminium, various steel grades
and cast iron. Coneentric is also affected by changes
in raw materials price levels. Concentric manages the
risk of price changes by ensuring it has contractual
material escalator agreements with all its major cus-
tomers. However, where rising raw material prices
cannot be offset through higher prices for Concentric’s
products, the Group’s cperations, financial position
and earnings may be adversely affected.

In addition, Concentric also makes regular assess-
ments of its exposure to bought-in and semi-finished
goods, such as bearings, gears, sintered gerotors, etc.
If there were any interruptions to these supply chains
due tg quality and/or availability, this could impact the
deliveries of Concentric products to its customers,
which could have an adverse effect an the Group’s
opérations, sales and earnings. Concentric manages
thixrisk through annual supplier audits and by
ensuring that there are at least dual supply arrange-
ments in place for all key commodity groups.

Company-related and operational risks

Praduction

Damage to production facilities caused, for example,
by fire, in addition to manufacturing stoppages or dis-
ruptions in any part of the production process caused,
for example, by break-downs, weather conditions, geo-
graphic conditions, labour disputes, terrerist activities
and natural disasters, may have adverse imptications in
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the form of direct damage to property as well as inter-
ruptions that undermine the potential to meet cbliga-
tions to customers. In turn, this may lead customers to
setect alternative suppliers. Accordingly, such disrup-
tions or interruptions may impact negatively on the
Company’s operations, financial position and earnings.

Concentric employs the same production methodol-
ogy across all of its sites and, for certain product lines,
it conducts producticn of the same or very simitar prod-
ucts at a number of plants, thus there is the potential
to reduce the implications of an interruption by switch-
ing output to other plants in the Group to ensure conti-
nuity of supply to customers. Although, such action
generatly results in added costs which, in the short run,
will have a negative impact on the Group's operations,
financial position and earnings, given that the current
capacity utilisation across the Group is relatively low,
the negative impact would be limited. In addition, the
Group has insurance cover for property damage and
business interruption.

Product development

Requirements from users and legislators for higher
safety, lower noise levels and reduced environmental
impact result in higher demand for the products pro-
vided by Concentric. Accordingly, itis essential that
the Group develops new products and continues to
improve existing products to satisfy this demand so

that market shares are not only maintained, but also
increased.

Consequently, a key part of Concentric’s strategy
involves developing new products in those areas that
the Group regards as 1mporvant fur yrowth and/fon o
defending market shares.

The development of new products always entails the
risk that a preduct launch will fail for some reason,
which ceuld have significant consequences. Itis the
Group's policy to expense evolutionary product devel-
opment projects, but since the Group capitalises cer-
tain costs for major new product development projects,
a failled launch petentially would give rise to an impair-
ment requirement and may adversely affect the Group's
operations, financial position and earnings.



. BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Complaints, product recalls and product liability

Concentric is exposed te complaints in the event that
the Group’s products fail to function the way they
should. In such cases, the Group may be obliged to
rectify or replace the defective products.

Recalls pertain to cases where an entire production
series or a large part has to be recalled from customers
in order 1o rectify deficiencies. This occurs oceasionally
in Concentric’s end-markets. The Group has noc insur-
ance covering recalls. The assessment is that the cost
of such insurance would not be proportionate to the
risk covered by the insurance. Concentric has histori-
cally not been affected by any major recalls of prod-
ucts. There is always a risk that customers demand that
suppliers cover costs in addition to replacing the prod-
uct, such as access and restoration costs associated
with dismounting, assembly and other ancitlary costs.
If a product causes damage to a person or property, the
Group could be liable to pay damages. Arecaliona
larger scate or a major product liability claim, may
affect the Group's operations, financial positicn and
earnings negatively. Concentric manages this risk
through its internal processes regarding the receipt of
goods from suppliers, employing Poka-yoke methodol-
ogy for all of its manufacturing and testing procedures,
as well as effective use of quality monitoring systems
deployed at both suppliers and customers. In addition,
the Group has insurance cover for general product lia-
bility, including access and restoration costs associ-
ated with replacing product in the field.

Legal risks

Intetlectual property rights (“IPR”)

Concentric invests significant resources in product
development. To secure returns on these investments,
the Group actively claims its rights and monitors com-
petitors’ activities closely. There is always a risk that
competitors infringe on the Group's patents and other
IPR. The risk of the marketing of unlicensed copies of
the Group's products has increased in recent years,
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particutarly in the Asian markets. |f required, the Group
protectsits [PR through legal actien. However, it cannot
be guaranteed that Concentric will be able to defend
its granted patents, trademarks and other IPR or that
submitted registration apptications will be approved.
Accordingly, there can be no guarantee that the Group
will receive trademark or similar legal protection in
respect of “CONCENTRIC” in atl relevant jurisdictions.
Disputes regarding infringement of IPR can, just like
disputes in general, be costly and time consuming and
may adversely affect Group’s operations, financial
position and earnings. Concentric manages this IPR
risk by engaging external legal advice to monitar
potential infringements and act early. As a result, the
Group has historically not been adversely affected by
any IPR disputes.

tn addition, the industries in which Concentric oper-
ates have displayed rapid technological progressin
many respects. Accordingly, there is a risk that new
technologies and produets can be developed, which
circumvent or surpass Concentri¢’s IPR, as noted in the
Product Development section.

Disputes
Companies within the Group are occasionally involved

in disputesin the ordinary course of business and are
subject to the risk, similar to other companies operat-
ing in Concentric’s market, of becoming subject to
claims such as those in relation to contractual matters,
product liahility, alleged defects in delivery of goods
and services, environmental issues and intellectual
property rights. Such disputes and claims may prove
time-consuming, disrupt normal ¢perations, involve
large amounts and result in significant costs. 'n addi-
tion, the outcome of complicated disputes may be diffi-
cult to foresee. Concentric manages this risk through
the use of standard contractual terms wherever possi-
bte and engaging external lega! advice when appropri-
ate. The Group has historically not been adversely
affected by any disputes.



Financial risks

Liquidity risk

The Group’s liquidity risk is the risk that the Company
will be unable to meet its immediate capital require-
ments either through holding sufficient cash and cash
equivalents or through granted and unused credit facil-
ities that can be utilised without conditions. The goal
accerding to the Group's finance policy is that cash and
cash equivatents and available credit facilities must
total at least 10% cf the rolling annual net sales for the
Group at any point in time, These funds amounted to
MSEK 1,031 {827) at year-end, corresponding to 25%
{39} of the annual net sales.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest
rates will have a negative impact on the Group’s finan-
cial position and earnings. The Group’s only significant
interest bearing asset is cash and liquid funds. Reve-
nues and cash flow fraom operating activities are, in all
significant respects, independent of changes in market
interest rates. The Group's interest rate risk arises from
its borrowings in USD which incurs a floating interest
rate, to manage this risk an interest rate swap is used
to hedge the exposure to variability in the interest rate.
If interest rates increase or decrease by 1%, the direct
impact on the yearly interest expense for Group borrow-
ings {including liabilities for leasing, but excluding
pensions} will increase or decrease by MSEK 9 (13).
Please refer to the sensitivity analysis in note 25 for
indirect impact of interest rate movements on the
Group's pengion liahilities

Exchange rate risks
The following significant currency rates have been

applied during the year:

Average rates Closing rates

Currency 2022 2021 2022 2021
EUR 10.6317 101449 11.1283 10.2269
GRBP 12.4669 11.8022 12,5811 12.1780
uso 10.1245 8.5815 10.4371 9.0437
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The table below shows the currency effect in SEK
mitlion on Netincome for the year and Equity if the
respective currency changes by 10%. The analysis
assumes that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain censtant.

Net income

for the year Equity
Currency 2022 2021 2022 2021
EUR 22 i8 17 7
GBP 8 8 37 39
usp 44 4 209 177

Through its international operations, Concentric is
exposed to exchange rate risks. Exchange rate risks
refer to the risk of exchange rate fluctuations having
an adverse impact on Group’s consclidated income
statement, balance sheet and/or cash flows. Foreign
exchange exposure oceurs in conjunction with goods
and services being bought or sold in currencies other
than the respective subsidiary’s local currency (trans-
action exposure) and during conversion of the balance
sheets and income statements of foreign subsidiaries
into “SEK” (translation exposure). Moreovery, the com-
parability of Concentric’s result between periods is
affected by changes in currency exchange rates.

Transaction risks
in accordance with the Group's Treasury policy, 65%
of the anticipated net flows for the estimated volumes
during the ferthcoming 12-month period should be
hedged, with a permissible deviation of +/-15%. At 31
December, 20272, 54% (b} uf the antivipated net flows
was hedged via derivative instruments. The Group's
Treasury policy governs the types of derivative instru-
ments that can be used for hedging purposes as well as
the counterparties with whom contracts may be
signed. Currency forward contracts were used during
the year to hedge invoiced and forecast currency flows.
At 31 December 2022, the Group had outstanding
derivatives with a total net neminal value of MSEK 224
{185) with a fair value of MSEK -4 (2).
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Translational risks

Cancentric’s aperations give rise to extensive cash
flows in foreign currency. The most important curren-
cies inthe Group’s cash flow are SEK, USD, EUR and
GBP. The effects of exchange rate movements have an
impact on the Group’s earnings when the income state-
ments of foreign subsidiaries are transiated to SEK.
Since the Group’s earnings are mainly generated cut-
side of Sweden, the impact on the Group’s consolidated
income statement may be significant. In connection
with translation of the net assets of non-Swedish sub-
sidiaries into SEK, there is a risk that exchange rate
fluctuations witl affect the Group's consolidated balance
sheet. [f the measures Concentric undertakes to hedge
and otherwise control the effects of exchange rate move-
ments should prove not to be sufficient, Concentric’s
sales, financial position and earnings may be adversely
affected.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises when a party to a transaction cannot
fulfil their obligations and thereby creates a loss for
the other party. The risk that customers will default
on payment for delivered products is minimised by
conducting thorough checks of new customers and
following up with payment behaviour reviews of exist-
ing customers, including robust credit stop procedures.
The Group’s accounts receivable amounted to MSEK
521 (392) at year-end and are recognised at the
amotints expected to be paid. Concentric customers
are primarily major GEMs, engine manufacturers and
hydraulics distributors. During 2022, no single cus-
tomer accounted for more than 24% (20) of sates. The
Group's customer losses are historically low and nor-
mally are less than 0.1% of sales.

The Group also has a credit exposure in cash and cash
equivatents. As per December 31, 2022 the Group had
MSEK 532 (294) placed in banks with a long term rating
frem Moody's of Aal-Aa3, MSEK 31 {52) in banks with a
Moody's rating of A1-A3 and MSEK 59 {83} in banks
with a Moody’s rating (or equivalent} of Baal-Baa3.
The remaining MSEK 2 (1) of cash and cash equivalents
was placed in various banks with different ratings.
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Changes in value of fixed assets

Concentric has substantial fixed assets, of which good-
will represents the largest part. The carrying vatue of
goodwill is reviewed annually and tested as appropri-
ate to identify any necessary impairment requirements,
In the event that future tests regarding continuing
changes in the value of tangible as well as intangible
assets would lead to write-downs, this may have a sub-
stantial adverse effect on Concentric’s tinancial posi-
tion and earnings.

Pension gbligations

In the United States and the United Kingdom, funded
defined benefit plans are operated with assets held
separately from those of Concentric. The U.S. scheme
is underfunded and Concentric therefore makes top-up
payments, which are recognised to continue for at least
a further 10 years. According to the latest report from
the responsible actuary, the UK plans are sufficiently
capitalised, even though there is currently a deficit.
However, under the rules applicable to the UK plans,
the supervisory authority may request that they be
fully capitalised should an event take place having a
significant negative effect on Concentric’s ability to
meet its pension commitments. The Company feeis
that there is no reason to assume that such a situation
will arise, but it cannot be ruled out that the authority
might assess the situation diffarently at some pointin
time. See also “Penston obligations” in note 25.

Capital risk

The Group’s objective in respect of the capital structure
is to secure Concentric's ability to continue to conduct
its pperations so that it can generate a return for share-
holders and value for other stakeholders and in order to
maintain an optimal capital structure sco that the cost
of capital can be reduced. The Board currently uses
special dividends paid to shareholders and repurchase
of own shares to manage the Group's capital structure.
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Share-related information

Cwnership status

The Company’s shares have been listed on Nasdag OMX
Stockholm since 16th June, 2011. Concentric AB had
8,191 (8,052) shareholders at the end of the financial
vear. The Company’s largest shareholder was Nordea
Investment Funds 8.4% {9.2). At year-end there were
no shareholders that hold in excess of 10% of the votes
and capitat of the Company. The four largest share-
holders held together 27% (30).

Share capital, shares outstanding and rights
Since the listing date, there have been no new shares
issued.

The totat number of holdings of own shares at 1
January 2022 was 115,865 {123,255) and shares trans-
ferred to an Employee Share Ownership Trust ("E£50T")
was 251,727 (304,812). Including these shares the
company’s holding was 367,600 (428,067) and the total
number of shares in issue was 38,297,600 (38,297,600).

No transfer to the ESOT in this year (), but a transfer
of 41,780 (53,085) own shares to Concentric was made.
The ceampany has not repurchased any own shares dur-
ing 2021 and 2022, but has sold 49,592 (60,375) of own
shares, to exercise and satisfy the Company’s LTl-pro-
grammes, which were exercised.

The total number of holdings of own shares at 31
December 2022 was 108,153 {115,965} and the total
number of shares inissue was 38,297,600 {38,297,600).
Consequently the company's total holdings of own
shares now represent 0.3% {0.3} of the total number
of shares. In additicn to this, the total number of own
shares transferred to the E50T 209,947 {251,727).
Including these shares the company’s holdings was
318,100 (367,682) representing 0.8% (1.0) of the total
number of shares.

The number of shares outstanding at year-end,
exciuding any dilution from share options, was
37,979,500 (37,929,908). All shares convey equal rights
to a percentage of the Company’s assets, profits and
any surplus upon liguidation. Each share carries one
vote and there is only one class of shares. Thereis no
limit to the number of votes a shareholder may cast at
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the Annual General Meeting or with respect to transfer
of shares. The Company is not aware of any agreements
between shareholders which may limit the right to trans-
fer shares. Further information about the Concentric AB
share is provided on pages 48-49.

Board authorisations
At the last AGM in April 2022, the following board
members were re-elected: Anders Nielsen, Claes
Magnus Akesson, Martin Skold, Susanna Schneeberger
Karin Gunnarsson, Petra Sundstrom and Joachim
Rosenberg.

In addition, authorisation was provided to the board
to resolve on the acquisition and transfer of own shares.

Corporate governance

Supported by Chapter 6, Section 8 of the Annual
Accounts Act, Concentric AB has elected to prepare its
Corpoerate Governance Report as a separate document
from the Annual Report. The Corporate Governance
Report, which, among other things includes an account
of the Group's governance and work of the Board of
Directors over the year, is presented on pages 50-63.

Executive remuneration policies
The below executive remuneration policies were
adopted at the 2021 AGM and are valid until the 2025
AGM. The actual remuneration during the year is
detailed in note 8.

Estimated costs for variable remuneration and L Ti-
schemes will be about MSEK 12 (12}, including sociat
security cost, for 2023.

Guidetines for salary and other remuneration

The Annual General Meeting 2021 resolved on the
following guidelines for salary and other remuneration
to directors, the Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) and
other senior executives. The group of senior executives
encompassed by these guidelines comprises the CEQ
and other members of the group executive manage-
ment who report directly to the CEQ and have strategic
accountability for business unit operations and govern-
ance matters directed by the Board. These guidelines



are valid for agreements entered into after the general
meeting’s resolution and for changes made to existing
agreements thereafter. These guidelines do not apply
to any director fees decided or approved by the general
meeting or such issues and transfers as are covered by
Chapter 16 in the Swedish Companies Act.

The guidelines’ promation of the company’s business
strategy, long-term interests and sustainability

In short, Concentric’s business strategy is the following:

Concentric is one of the world’s leading pump manu-
facturers and seeks to deliver sustainable growth for
every application in the markets the company serves.
Concentric strives to improve fuel economy, reduce
emissions and improve engine control threugh techni-
cal solutions and precisicn engineering.

Concentric create value for its customers through:

- developing world class technolegy with innovative
solutions that meet the demands of customers/end
markels;

- selling locatly to global customers by capitalising
on the global infrastructure and teams the company
have; and

- emhedding business excellence in all that the
company do.

The people are Concentric’s most valuable asset and
the company aim to leverage and nurture the unique
skilis of the company’s teams across the globe through
a strang and inclusive corporate culture.

Concenrrie 3im o deliver strong and sustainable
shareholder returns and target growth both erganically
and through acquisitions which deliver complementary
technologies.

For more information regarding the company’s busi-

ness strategy, please see www.concentricinvestors.com.

It is of fundamental importance to the company and
its shareholders that these guidelines, in both a short
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and long term perspective, enable the company to
attract and retain senior executives and other employ-
ees with excellent competence. The purpose of these
guidelines is to increase transparency in remuneration
and to create incentives for senior executives, to exe-
cute strategic plans and deliver effective operational
results to support the company’s business strategy and
long-term interests, including its sustainability. To
obtain thisitisimportant to sustain fair and internally
balanced terms that are at the same time competitive
on the market with respect to structure, scope and
compensation levels. These guidelines enable the com-
pany, regardless of geographical market, to offer the
senior executives a competitive total compensation.

Remuneration and remuneration forms

The terms of employment for senior executives should
consist of a balanced combination of fixed remunera-
tion, annual bonus, pension and other benefits and
terms for dismissal/ severance payment. Furthermore,
the Board may prepare and the general meeting
resolve, on share and share-price related incentive pro-
grammes, Such a combination of compensation fosters
and supports management and achievement of objec-
tives in both a short and long-term perspective.

The remuneration should be based on performance
and be competitive. The various types of remuneration
that may be paid out are described below. As a share of
the total compensation the following guidance shatl

apply:

« Fixed remuneration 50%
< Annual bonus ?5%
- Long-term incentive programme (LTI) 25%

The total compensation of the senicr executives shall
be evaluated against relevant (geographical and indus-
try) market data to maintain fair and balanced terms
which are at the same time competitive within the
market.
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Fixed remuneration

The fixed remuneration shall be individuatly deter-
mined and shall be based on each individual’s responsi-
bility and role as well as the individual's competence
and experience in the relevant position.

Annual bonus

Senior executives have an annual bonus that is payable
after each year end. The annual bonus is structured as
a variable part of the total compensation. Bonus objec-
tives shall primarily be based on the outcomes of finan-
cial objectives for the entire company as well as clearly
defined individual objectives with respect to specific
assignments. The latter is to ensure that the senior
executive also focuses on non-financial objectives of
specific interest. The finangial and non-financial objec-
tives shall be designed so as to contribute to the com-
pany’s business strategy, long-term interests, including
its sustainability,

The financial objectives for the company shall be
established by the Board annually. On behalf of the
Beard, the Compensation Committee establishes the
financial objectives for individual units proposed by the
CEOQ. The Compensation Committee shatl make its
annual evaluation based on the latest financial infor-
mation made public by the company.

The individual abjectives for senior executives are
set up to a maximum of four which account for between
15 and 30 per cent of the total annual bonus award.
ndividual objectives will focus on strategic targets
related to people, revenue growth in all economies and
accelerating technology.

The individual objectives for the CEO are directly
aligned to strategic growth and development of the
business and are agreed by the Compensation Commit-
tee. in turp, the individual abjectives for the senior
executives have the same focus and alignment to
ensure flow-down through each business and function.
The individual objectives are proposed by the senior
executives in agreement with the CEO, with final
approval from the Compensation Committee. At the
end of the bonus period, each senior executive will
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provide an evidence-based assessment of their perfor-
mance against individual objectives for agreement and
approval by Llhe CEQ. The CEQ's assessment of
performance will be agreed and approved by the Com-
pensation Committee.

The part of the total compensation consisting of the
annual bonus varies depending on position and may be
up to 50 per cent of the fixed remuneration at full
objectives achievement. The bonus objectives are con-
structed so that no bonus will be paid if a certain mini-
mum performance level is not achieved. All bonus
schemes within the organisation are discretionary and
payable only after approval by the Compensation Com-
mittee unless payment is guaranteed by an existing
legal agreement or contract,

The company does not have any potential deferral
periods or according to agreements any possibility to
reclaim variable remuneration.

Remuneration payable to directors

In certain cases, directors elected by the general meet-
ing should be able to receive fees and other remunera-
tion for work carried out on the company's behalf,
alongside their Board work. Fees at market rates, to

be approved by the Board, may be payable for such
services.

Pension

When entering into new pension agreements with
senior executives who are entitled to pension, the
pension shall be based on defined contribution plans.
Senior executives retire in accordance with local regu-
lations on pension.

As a main principle, pension contributions are based
solely on fixed remuneration and the pension
scheme(s} in operation will be appropriate to comply
with governing local legislation. Senior executives in
the UK are invited to participate in a defined contribu-
tion plan which sets 12 per cent employer contribution
rate. Senior executives in the USA participate in a
401(k) pension scheme. The company ensures adher-
ence to the scheme rules of each plan.



For employments governed by rules other than
Swedish, pension benefits may be duly adjusted for
compliance with mandatory rules or established local
practice, taking into account, to the extent possibie,
the overall purpose of these guidelines.

Other benefits

Other benefits, such as company car, compensation
for healthcare and health and medical insurance shall
form a minor part of the total compensation and shall
correspend to what may be deemed market practice cn
each relevant market.

For employments governed by rules other than
Swedish, other benefits may be duly adjusted for com-
pliance with mandatory rules or established local prac-
tice, taking into account, to the extent possibie, the
overall purpose of these guidelines.

Special remuneration

Further variable remuneration may be awarded in
extraordinary circumstances, provided that such
extraordinary arrangements are limited in time and
do not exceed 36 months, and may only be made on an
individual basis, either for the purpose of recruiting or
retaining executives, or to induce individuals to move
to new places of service or accept new positions or as
remuneration for extraordinary performance beyond
the individual’'s ordinary tasks. Further, the total com-
pensation must not exceed an amount equivalent to
two times the remuneration the individual would have
received in the absence of an agreement on special
remunerations, Any rasolutinn nn snch remuneration
shall be made by the Board based on a proposal from
the Compensation Committee.

Long-term incentive programme

In order to foster a long-term perspective in the deci-
sion-making and to ensure long-term achievement of
objectives, the Board may propose the general meeting
to resolve on long-term incentive programmes.
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The Board has used long-term incentives in order to
ensure that senior executives within the company have
a long-term interestin a stable value increase ol Lhe
Concentric share, which support the company’s busi-
ness strategy, including its sustainability. By imple-
menting an incentive programme that is connected to
the company'’s profits and at the same time its increase
in value, the long-term growth of the company is
rewarded and fostered. Further, long-term incentive
programmes aiso aim to make the company a more
attractive employer, which contributes to the compa-
ny’s ability to retain key empioyees within the group as
well as to recruit new key employees.

The Board has several times proposed long-term per-
formance based incenlive programmes under which
senior executives and key employees have been enti-
tled to receive employee stock options, that entitle the
participants to acquire shares in the company. The
structure of the scheme reqguires the employee to
acquire shares in Cancentric AB in order to participate
in the scheme. Under the programmes, the employee
stock options can, after three years and subject to cer-
tain conditions, be exercised to acquire Concentric
shares. This will be possible during a three-month
period from the date when the company's report for
the first quarter after those three years is published.

The LTI scheme is subject to proposal and agreement
within a clear governance structure which, in order, is
the Compensation Committee, the Board and finally,
the annual general meeting,

Terms for dismissal ete.

Terms for dismissal and severance pay shall correspond
to what may be deemed market practice on each reie-
vant market. The CEQ has a notice period of 12 months.
Other senior executives have a notice period up to 6
months. In additicn hereto, agreement may be made
with senior executives on severance pay upon termina-
ticn of employment by the company, correspending to
a maximum of 12 months’ fixed remuneration.
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Remuneration and employment conditions for other
employees

In the preparation of these guidelines, remuneration
and employment conditions for employees of the com-
pany have been taken into account by including infor-
mation on the employees’ total income, the compo-
nents of the remuneration and increase and growth
rate over time, in the Compensation Committee's and
the Board’ basis of decision when evaluating whethes
the guidelines and the limitations set out herein are
reasonable.

The decision-making process to determine, review
and implement the guidelines

The Board and its Compensation Committee resolve on
the structures of remuneration systems, as well as lev-
els and forms of remuneration to senior executives.
The Board shall prepare a proposal for new guidelines
at least every fourth year and submit it to the general
meeting. The guidetines shall be in force until new
guidelines are adopted by the general meeting. The
Compensation Comumittee shall monitor and evaluate
programmes for variable remuneration for the
executive management, the application of the guide-
lines as well as the current remuneration structures
and compensation levels in the company.

The members of the Compensation Committee are
independent of the company and its executive manage-
ment. The CEQ and other members of the executive
management do not participate in the Board process-
ing of and resolutions regarding remuneration-related
matters in so far as they are affected by such matters.
Conflicts of interest are counteracted in all decisions
and any potential conflicts of interest are handled in
accordance with the company's framework for govern-
ance, consisting of a code of conduct, policies and
guidelines.

Derogaticn from the guidelines

The Board may temporarily resolve to derogate from
the guidelines, in whole orin part, if in a specific case
there is spectal cause for the derogation and a dernga-
tion is necessary to serve the company’s long-term
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interests, including its sustainability, or to ensure the
company's financial viability. As set out above, the
Compensation Committee’s tasks include preparing
the Board’s resolutions in remuneration-related mat-
ters. This inctudes any resolutions to dercgate from
the guidelines.

Description of material changes to the guidelines

and how the views of shareholders’ have been taken
into consideration

The content of the guidelines has been reviewed and
adapted to the legal requirements imposed by Directive
{EU} 2017/828 of the European Parliament and of the
Council amending Directive 2007/36/ EC asvegards
ercouragement of the long-term shareholder
engagement.

Provisions of the Articles of Association: Appoint-
ment and discharge of divectors and amendments
There are no provisions in the Articles of Association
on appeintment and discharge of directors and amend-
ment of the Articles of Association. In accordance with
the provisions in the Company’s Act, directors are
elected by the AGM for the period extending until the
close of the first AGM after that at which they were
elected, and amendrents to the Articles of Association
are determined by resolution of a General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Significant agreements

The Company is not party to any significant agree-
ments that will take effect, be aitered, or become null
if control over the Company changes due to a public
takeover bid. Nor are there any agreements between
the Company and directors which require compensation
if such persons resign, are terminated without reasonable
cause, ar their employment is terminated due to a public
takeover bid in respect to shares in the Company.

Contingent liabilities
The Group's contingent liabilities amounted to MSEXK 1
(1) at the balance sheet date,



Significant post balance sheet events

There have been no material post balance sheet events
which would require disclosure or adjustment to these
financial statements.

Parent Company
Net sales for the year amounted to MSEK 29 (28), gen-
erating an cperating profit of MSEK 3 (loss 2).

Net saies reflected mostly the royalty income received
from the joint venture, Alfdex AB.

During the year the company received a dividend of
MSEK 48 {46) from Aifdex AB. Exchange rate losses on
foreign liabilities to subsidiaries was MSEK 78 (53) in
the year, and the remaining financial items netted to
MSEK —44 (-6). Income from shares in subsidiaries
amounted to MSEK 138 (-5), related to dividends of
MSEK 363 (1,018) and write-downs of shares of MSEK
225 (1,023). Accordingly, earnings before tax was a
profit of MSEK 67 (loss 20) for the year.

Accounting principles

The Group applies international Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) te the consolidated accounts, as
adopted by the European Commission for application
within the European Union (see note 2 for more details).

Sustainability report

According to the statutory requirements the Sustain-
ability Report is prepared as a separate report and can
be found on pages 34-47 and 126-133.

Qutlonk far 2023 )

Economic uncertainty will continue for the new year
with a potential recession, the war in Europe, ongeing
inflationary pressures and the economic situation in
Chira. However, near-term demand from our customers
across our four end-market applications remains con-
sistent with the demand we have enjoyed throughout
2022. Lgoking into the first quarter of 2023, we esti-
mate sales to be similar to the sales performance
achieved during the fourth quarter 2022. We will con-
tinue to maintain our strong trading margins through
cur Business Excellence programme and enhanced
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capabilities built up during the past year. As the global
supply chain is expected Lo stabilize further, we also
aim to reduce inventory levels during 2023. As cuslom-
ers might do the same, there is a potential risk of tem-
porary adjustment of customer demand.

Dividend policy

The Company's policy for distributing unrestricted cap-
ital to the shareholders remains unchanged, whereby
at least one-third of annual after-tax profit over a busi-
ness cycle is 1o be distributed to the shareholders
through dividends taking into account the Group's
anticipated financial status. The Board of Directors
propose ta the sharehelders at the Annual General
Meeting a dividend of SEK 4.00 {3.75) per share for
2022, which equates to around 30% (42) of earnings
per share.

Proposed appropriation of earnings

As stated in the Parent Company balance sheet, the
Annual General Meeting has the following funds at its
disposal:

Amounts in kSEK

Profit brought ferward 2,109,842
Net income for the year 84,193
Total 2,194,035

The board of directors and the president propose that
the funds of KSEK 2,194,035 be allocated as follows:

Amounts in kSEK

Dividend of SEK 4.00 per share to shareholders 151,818
Carried forward 2,042,117
Total 2,154,035

The record date for determining who is entitled to
receive dividends is proposed to be Thursday April 20,
2023. The dividend will be distributed on Tuesday, April
25, 2023. For additional information, see Note 21, for
the parent company.
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Concentric Group

Consolidated income statement

Note 2022 2021
Net sales 4,056 2,115
Cost of goods sold -2,991 -1,495
Gross income 1,065 620
Selling expenses ] -118 -60
Administrative expenses ) -210 -159
Product development expenses -91 -37
Share of nat income in joint venture 19 62 81
Other operating income 11 42 40
QOther operating expenses 11 -73 -82
Qperating income 4,5,7,8,9,10,17 677 403
Financial income 2z 17 4
Financial expenses 12 -60 -17
Financial items - net 43 ~-13
Earnings before tax 634 390
Taxes 13 -133 -52
Net income for the year 501 338
Attributable to: o
Parent Company sharetolders 501 328
Non controlling interest - -
Basic earnings per share, SEK 14 13.20 8.91
Diluted earnings per share, SEK 14 13.18 8.88
Basic weighted average number of shares {000) 14 37,961 37,802
Diluted weighted average number of shares (000) 14, 24 38,030 38,020
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

2022 2021,

Netincome for the year 501 338
Other comprehensive income
ftemns that will not be rectasstfied ro profit or loss:
Remeasurement gains of net pension tiabilities 75 81
Tax arising on remeasurement gains of net pension liabilities -23 -24
items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss;
Exchange rate differences related to liabilities to foreign operations -78 -53
Tax arising from exchange rate differences related to liabilities to foreign operations 18 11
Cash-flow hedging 27 3
Tax arising from cash-flow hedging -6 -1
Share of OCl related to jeint venture 5 9
Foreign currency translation differences 223 153
Total other comprehensive income 239 179
Total comprehensive income 740 517
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Consolidated balance sheet

Note 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Assets
Fixed assets
Goodwll 15 1,455 1,303
Other intangible fixed assels 15 435 447
Right of use fixed assets 16,17 99 112
Other tangible fixed assets ) ) o o ) 16, 17 450 430
Share of net assets in joint venture 19 - 7 116
Deferred tax assets 7 7 7 7 18 98
Long-term loans receivable from joint venture 7 8 - -
Other long-term receivables 7 8 35 o
Total fixed assets - ) - o ) 2,729 2,510
Current assets ) S
Inventories 20 538 382
Accounts receivable ) ) 21, 38 521 392
Short-term loans receivable from joint venture ) ' 29,38 2 1
Otherr current receivables ) 22,38 81 58
Cash and cash equivalents 23,38 ' 624 440
Total current assets 1,766 1,273
Total assets ) ) . A,A95 3,783
Shareholders” equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ Equity ) 24 )
Share Capital ) 97 97
Additional Contributed Capital i 583 583
Reserves 461 274
Retained Earmings 929 508
Total Shareholders’ equity 1L 1,462
Long-term liabilities ) o
Pensions and similar obligations ) 25,34 261 361
Deferred tax liabilities - o S N 131
Long-term liabilities for right of use fixed assets 26,27, 34,38 97 105
Other long-ferm interest-bearing liabilities o 26,27,34,38 ] _ _ ?83 ) 791
Other provisions o o 2 ) b
Other tong-term tabilities 26,38 - 1
Total long-term liabilities o o 1.“,‘2?3 . 1393
Current liabilities ) o
Short-term liabilities for right of use fixed assets ) . 26,28,34,38 17 ) 20
Other short-term interest-bearing liabilities ) ) ) 26, 28, 34, 38 391 ) 355
Short-term loans payable to joint venture o ) ) 29,38 - -
Accounts payable 26,38 401 313
Other provisions 30 . 33 36
Other current liabilities 26, 31,38 300 204
Total current liabilities 1,142 928
Total Shareholders’ equity and liabilities 4,495 3,783

Information of pledged asscts and conlingent Habilities, see note 52
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Consolidated changes in shareholders’ equity

__ Reserves
Additional
Share contributed Hedging Translation Retained

capital capital reserve reserve earnings Total

Opening balance January 1, 2021 97 583 - 151 236 1,067
Net income for the year - - - - 338 338
Other Comprehensive income - - 2 121 56 179
Total prehensive i ~ - 2 121 394 517
Dividend - - - - -133 -133
Buy-back own shares - - _ _ _ _
Salé of own shares to satisfy LTl-options exercised - - - - 8
Lang-term incentive plan - - - _ 3
Closing balance December 31, 2021 97 583 2 272 508 1,462
Opening balance January 1, 2022 97 583 2 272 508 1,462
Net income for the year ) - ~ 7 ’ - ) . . 501 - ) 501
Other Comprehensive income - - 21 ) 166 sz 239
Total comprehensive i - - 21 166 . 553 40
Dividend - - - - 142 142
Buy-back cwn shares - - _ - - _
Sale of own shares to satisfy LTl-options exercised - - o . - ' 7 7
- 3 3

Long-term incentive plan - - -

Closing balante December 31, 2022 14 583 23 438 929 2,070
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Note 2022 2021
Cash flow from operating activities
Earnings before tax ) EBZ 390
Reversal of depreciation, amortisation and write-down of fixed assets 188 98
Reversal of net income from joint venture - - _52 ;31
Other adjustments 33 3 44
Taxes paid -125 -54
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital ) . 638 397
Change in working capital
Inventories -84 -92
Current receivables -76 -71
Current liabilities 61 26
Change in working capital -109 137
Cash flow from operating activites 529 260
Cash flow from investing activities )
Investments in subsidiaries -16 -1,206
Closure of subsidiary - -22
Net investments in property, plant and egquipment " -62 -21
New loans paid to joint venture ' - -
Loans repayment frem joint venture - 25
Other repayment of long-term receivables - -
Cash flow from investing activities ~78 -1,224
Cash flow from financing activities o
Dividend -142 -133
Dividend received from joint Vehture- 48 4“6
Buy-back of own shares - -
Selling of own shares to satisfy LTI - options exercised 7 8
New leans 34 - 1,073
Repayment of loans 34 -153 -52
Pension payments and other cash flows from i‘inancing activities 34 -83 -65
Cash flow from financing activities _-323 877
Cash flow for the year _ s -87
Cash and bank assets, opening balance 460 505
Exchange-rate difference in cash and bank assets 56 22
Cash and bank assets, closing balance 624 440
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Group notes

NOTE 1

General information

Concentric AB (Parent Company) and its subsidiaries form the
Concentric Group. Concentric offers innovative proprietary
solutions to the global manufacturers of construction machinery,
diesel engines and large trucks. The main focusis on products
related to fuel efficiency and reduced emissions.

Concentric AB, Corp, ID. No. 556828-4995 is a registered lim-
ited tiability corporation with its registered office in Stockholm,
Sweden. The postal address is Box 5058, 102 42 Stockholm,
Sweden, The Company is listed on the Nasdag OMX Stockholm
Mid-Cap list, since June 2011,

The annual report and the consolidated accounts were
approved for publication by the board of directors on 23 March,
2023. The statements will be adopted by the Annual General
Meeting on 18 April 2023.

Unless otherwise stated, all amounts have been stated in SEK
million (*“MSEK"). Certain financial data has been rounded in this
annual report. Where the sign “-” has been used, this either means
that no number exists or the number has been rounded to zero.

NOTE 2
Summary of important accounting principles

New and amended standards and interpretations adopted
by the Group

None of the new IFRS and IFRIC interpretations endorsed by the
EU are considered to have a material impact on the Group.

New standards, amendments and interpretations to exist-
ing standards that have not yet been endorsed

None of the new standards, amendments and interpretations
issued but net yet endorsed by the EU is expected to have any
material impact on the Group.

a) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (iFRS) and IFRIC interpretations as adopted by the EU,
RFR 1 “Additional rules for group accounting” and related inter-
pretations issued by the Swedish Financial Reporting Board and
the Swedish Annual Accounts Act. The basis of accounting and
the accounting policies adopted in preparing these consclidated
financial statements are consistent for all periods presented.

b) Going concern
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared on a going concern hasis.
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¢) Consolidation

Subsidiaries are defined as all entities over which the Group has
the power to govern the financial and operating policies, gener-
ally accompanying a shareholding of more than one half of the
voting rights. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible are considered
when assessing whether the Group controls another entity. Sub-
sidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which controlis
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases. The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations. The consider-
ation transferred for the acouisition of a subsidiary is the fair
value of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the
equity interests issued by the Group, The consideration trans-
ferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets ;
acquired and liabilities and contingent ifabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises
any non-controtling interest in the acquiree either at fair value
or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquirer’s net assets. The excess of the consideration trans-
ferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree, and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the Group's
share of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. if this is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the differ-
ence is recognised directly in the statement of comprehensive
income. Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated, Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure con-
sistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Consolidation of joint venture

IFRS 11 classifies a joint arrangement as either a joint operation
or ajoint venture. In a joint operation the parties to the arrange-
ment have direct rights to the assets and obligations for the lia-
bilities. In such an arrangement, assets, liahilities, income and
expenses shall be recagnised in relation to the interest in the
arrangement. A joint venture gives parties rights to the net
assets and earnings relating to the arrangement. Under IFRS 11,
aninterest in a joint venture must be recognised using the
equity method. This means that one-line consolidation is used;
the share of net profitin the income statement and the share of
equity in the balance sheet. The proportionate methed is not
permitted for joint ventures. Management has assessed that
Concentrie’s interest in Atfdex constitutes a joint venture under
IFRS 11.



Non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-rontrolling interests as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. For purchases
from non-controlling interests, the difference between any con-
sideration paid and the relevant share acquired of the carrying
value of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

d) Translation of foreign currency
The functional currency for the Parent Company is Swedish
kronor (SEK) and aisc the presentaticn currency for the Group.

Advance consideration

The interpretation in I[FRIC 22 concerns situations where an
entity pays or receives consideration in foreign currency in
advance of the item it relates to - which may be an asset, an
expense orincome. IFRIC 22 clarifies that the resulting asset,
expense or income should be recognised at the exchange rate
which existed when the entity initially recognised the advance
consideration.

Transactions and balance sheet items

Transactions in foreign currency are translated into SEX using
the exchange rates at the transaction date. Exchange gains and
losses resulting from these transactions and the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities at the closing rate are recognised
in the consolidated income statement, Exchange rate gains or
losses from transactions that fulfil the reguirements for hedge
accounting are recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Subsidiaries

The balance sheets and income statements of subsidiaries with
a different functicnal currency than that of the Group's pres-
entation currency are translated by translating assets and tiabil-
ities at the closing rate and income and expenses at the average
rate during the year. Translation differences resutting from the
translation of foreign subsidiaries’ net assets at different rates
on the opening and the closing dates are recognised directly in
the translation reservesin OCJ, Exchange rate differences on
loans and other instruments that are used as hedging instru-
ments for net investments in foreign currency are recogiised
directly in the translation reserves in OCI.

Receivables and liabilities

Receivables and liabilities in foreign currencies are valued at
the year-end rate. Exchange gains and losses pertaining to
operational currency flows are recognised in operating income.
Exchange gains and losses on financial transactions are recog-
nised as financial income or expense in the income statement.
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e) Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

The Group's recognised net sales pertain mainly to revenues
from sales of goods. Net sales are reduced by the value of dis-
counts granted and by returns. Revenue from the sale of goods
are normally recognised when the goods are delivered to the
customer, which is when the customer obtains control over the
goods and Concentric satisfies the performance obligation in
the contract with the customer.

Design and development

The Group also has scme revenue that arises from design and
development services. Preduct development creates a special-
ised asset that does not have an alternative use te Concentric
and the Group also has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date. Revenue from product develop-
ment is therefore recognised over time. Revenue from sale of
pre-production and off preduction prototypes are recegnised
when control transfers to the customer {i.e. upon delivery).

Variable consideration - prompt payment discounts

Some of the Group's facilities offer prompt payment discounts,
The prompt payment discounts constitute variable considera-
tion, which mean that the outcome of the discount is estimated
as part of the transaction price when revenue is first recognised
{provided certain conditions are met).

f} Leases

All ieases, except for leases of low value (kSEK <10) and short-
term leases (12 months or less), are reported as fixed assetsin
the balance sheet. The leasing obligations are reported as liabil-
ities in the balance sheet. Fixed assets are depreciated accord-
ing to plan over their useful life, while lease payments are rec-
ognised as interest expenses and amortisation of debt.

g) Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets consisl of buildings (offices, factories, and
warehouses), land and land improvements, machines, tools and
installations. These assets are measured at cost less deprecia-
tion and any impairment losses. Scheduled depreciation is based
on the acquisition value and estimated economic life of the assets.
The following depreciation rates are used:

« Buildings: 25-50 years
- Machinery and equipment:  3-10 years
- Heavy machinery: 20 years

Land is not depreciated. The assets’ residual values and useful
lives are reassessed every reporting closing day and adjusted if
needed. The tangible assets are free from any pledges or other
encumbrances.
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h} Intangible assets

Preduct Development

Costs for developing new products are recognised as intangible
fixed assets when the following criteria are met: it is likely that
the assets will resultin future financial benefits to the Company;
the acquisition value can be calculated reliably; the Company
intends to finish the asset and has technical and financial
resources to complete its development. Documents to verify
capitalisation of product development costs can consist of busi-
ness plans, budgets or the Company's forecasts of future earn-
ings. The acquisition value is the sum of the direct and indirect
expenses accruing from the pointin time when the intangible
asset fulfils the above criteria. Intangible assets are recognised
at cost less accumulated amortisation taking into account any
impairment losses. Amortisation begins when the asset
becomes usable and is applied in line with the estimated useful
life and in relation to the financial benefits that are recognised
to be generated by the product development. The useful life is
nat normally assessed as exceeding five years. Product Develap-
ment, which are acquired through business acquisitions, are
recognised at fair value an the day of acquisition. Product
Development have a determinable useful life over which
straight-tine amortisation is applied to distribute the costin the
income statement. The recognised useful life of Product Devel-
opment is estimated at 7 years.

Brands, licenses and patents

Brands, licenses and patents are recognised at cost less accu-
mulated amortisation plus any impairment losses. Brands,
licenses and patents, which are acquired through business
acquisitions, are recognised at fair value on the day of acquisi-
tion. Brands, licenses and patents have a determinable useful
life over which straight-line amortisation is applied to distribute
the cost in the income statement. The recognised useful life of
brands is estimated at 15-20 years. The recognised useful life
of licenses and patents is estimated at 3-15 years.

Customer relations

Customer relations acquired through business combinaticons are
recognised at fair value on the day of the acquisition and subse-
quently at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impair-
ment losses. Customer relations have a determinable useful life
estimated at 10-17 years. Straight-tine amortisation is applied
over the estimated useful life of customer relations.

Software and IT systems

Acquired software licenses and costs for the development of
software that is recognised to generate future financial benefits
for the Group for more than three years are capitalised and
amortised over the recognised useful life 3-5 years.

Goodwill

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree, and the acquisi-
tion-date fair vatue of any previous equity interestin the
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acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill.

Impairment

The carrying amounts of Concentric’s non-financial assets are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. tf any such indication exists the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable
amounts of units containing goodwill are not only estimated
upon indication of impairment, but also once per year, at the
same time of the year. An impairment loss is recognised if the
carrying amount of an asset or is cash-generating unit exceeds
its recoverable amount. A cash-generating unitis the smallest
identifiable asset group that generates cash flows that are
largely independent from other assets and groups. Impairment
losses are recognised in the income statement. Impairment
lasses recognised in respect of cash-generating units are allo-
cated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allo-
cated to the unit and then to reduce the carrying amount of
other assetsin the unit on a pro rata hasis. The recoverable
amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its
value in use and its fair vaiue less costs to sell. In assessing
value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present valtue using a discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset. An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is never
reversed. In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed if there is an indication that the loss has decreased or
no longer exists and if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverahle amount. An impairment loss
is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impatr-
ment loss had been recognised.

i) Financial instruments

Initial measurement

Financial assets and financial iiabilities are initially measured
at fair value including transaction costs that are directly attribut-
able to their acquisition or issue. However, trade receivables
{that do not have a significant financing component} are meas-
ured al their transaction price.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
All the Group's financial assets, except for derivative assets (see
separate section below), are measured at amortised cost since
the assets are held within a business model whose objective1s
to hold financiat assets in order to collect the contractual cash
flows and the contractual terms of the assets give rise onty to
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount out-
standing. They are included in current assets, with the exception
of items which are due more than 12 months after the balance
sheet date, which are classified as fixed assets.



Classification and subsequent measurement

of financial liabilities

All the Group's financial Liabilities, except for derivative liabili-
ties (see separate section below), are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method. Any difference
between proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the income statement over the period of
the borrowings sing the effective interest method Bank over-
draft facilities are recognised in the balance sheet as borrow-
ings under current liabilities.

Derivative instruments

Merivative instruments are recognised in the balance sheet as of
the trade date and are measured at fair value, both initially and
during subsequent revaluations. The method used for recognis-
ing the profit or loss arising at every revaluation occasien
depends on whether the derivative has been identified as a
hedging instrument and. if this is the case, the nature of the
hedged item. The Group identifies certain derivatives as either:

1. Hedging of the fair value of assets or fiabilities;
2. Hedging of forecast flows (cash flow hedging} or

3. Hedging of net investment in a foreign operation.

To qualify for hedge accounting, certain documentation is
required concerning the hedging instrument and its relation to
the hedged item. The Group also decuments goals and strate-
gies for risk management and hedging measures, as well as an
assessment of the hedging relationship’s effectiveness in terms
of countering changes in fair value or cash flow for hedged
items, both when the hedging is first entered into and subse-
quently on an engoing basis.

Cash flow hedging of forecast sales
The Group applies hedge accounting for derivatives used to
hedge foreign exchange risk exposure in future cash flows from
sales. The partion of changes in the value of derivatives that
satisfy the conditions for hedge accounting is recognised
directly in OCL. Any ineffectiveness is recognised directly in the
income statement, among financial items. The unrealised profit
or less that is accumulated in OCI is reclassified and recognised
in the income statement when the forecast sale that has been
hedged actuaily occurs.

if a derivative instrument no longer meets the requirements
for hedge accounting, or is sold or terminated, what remains of
any accumulated fair value in GCI, which is recognised in the
income statement at the same time as the forecast transaction
is finally recognised in the income statement. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the accumulated
profit or loss recegnised in equity is immediately transferred to
the income statement.
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Cash flow hedging of interest rate risk

The Group uses an interest rate swap to hedge the exposure to
variability in interest rates on its floating rate borrowing in USD.
The portion of changes in the value of interest rate swap that
satisfy the conditions for hedge accounting is recognised
directly in OCI. Any ineffectiveness is recognised directly in the
income statement, among financial items. Interest coupons paid
or received on the swap are recognised as part of “Financial
expenses”.

Hedging of net investments

Accumulated gains/losses from revaluation of hedges of net
investments that fulfil the conditions for hedge accounting are
recognised in OCl. When operations are divested, the accumu-
lated effects are transferred to the income statement and affect
the Company's net profit/loss from the divestment.

Calcuiation of fair value

Fair value of financial instruments that are traded in an active
market (for example, publicly quoted derivative instruments) are
based on the quoted market rate on the clesing day. The quoted
markel rates used for the Company’s financial assets are the
actual bid prices; guoted market rates used for financial liabili-
ties are the actual asked prices, These instruments are catego-
rised as level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
{for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is detarmined by
using valuation technigues. These valuation techniques maxim-
ise the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. I all signif-
icantinputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
The only financial instruments that are measured at fair value
are forward contracts which are categorised in level 2.

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

A financial asset or financial liability is recognised in the balance
sheet when the Company becomes a party according to the con-
tractual terms. Accounts receivable is recorded in the balance
sheet when the invoice is sent. Liabilities are recognised when
the counterparty has performed and there is a contractual obli-
gation to pay, even if the invoice has not been received. The
Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from financial asset expire, or it trans-
fers the rights to receive the contractual cash flow in a transac-
tion in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of owner-
ship of the financial asset are transferred or in which the
Company neither transfer nor retains substantially all of the
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risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control

of the financial asset. The Company derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire. The Company also derecognises a financial
liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the
modified liability are substantially different, in which case a
new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised
at fair value.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount presented in the balance sheet only when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the amounts and there is
an intention to settte on a net basis or to realise the assetand
settle the liability at the same time.

i} Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lowest of the acquisition cost, in
accordance with the first-in first-out principle and the net real-
isable value. The cost of finished goods and waerk in progress
comprises raw materials, diract labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads {based on normal operating
capacity).

k) Impairment of financial assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group recognises
a loss allowance at an amount that is equal to the expected credit
losses over the lifetime of the receivable. The Group makes an
individual assessment of the expected credit loss for receivables
where there is objective evidence that the due amounts will not
be collected in full. For other receivables, the Group makes a
loss allowance for expected credit losses based on loss statistics
that is regularly updated to ensure that the loss reserve is for-
wards looking. Receivables are reported net of the aliowance for
expected credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the pres-
ent vatue of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive.)

1) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash, cash in banks and
other short-term investments that fali due in less than three
months.

m) Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when
their carrying amountis to be recovered principally through a
sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probabte. They
are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
cost to sell.

n) Provisions
Provisiens are recognised in the balance sheet when the Group
has future obligations resulting from an event that is likely to
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resuit in expenses that can be reasonably estimated. Provisions
for restructuring costs are recognised when the Group has pre-
sented a plan for carrying out the measures and the plan has
been communicated to all affected parties. Provision for
restructuring is calculated individually for each plan and con-
sists of cost for redundancy of employees. Provision for war-
ranty obligation is based on experiences of historical fulfilment
of warranty obligations.

o) Employee benefits

Pension commitments

The Group has both defined-contribution and defined benefit
pension plans. Administration of the pilans is handled by a third
party e.g. afund management company, an insurance company
or a bank. Defined-contribution plans mainly include retirement
pensions, disability pensions and family pensions, and a defined
contribution, normally expressed as a percentage of current sal-
ary, is paid to a separate legal entity.

The employee is responsible for the risk inherent in these
plans and the Group does not have any further obligations if the
fund’s assets decline in value. No debt is recognised in the bal-
ance sheet, Contributions are expensed to the profit and loss
account asincurred.

Oefined benefit plans state the amount an employee can
expect to receive after retirement, caleculated on the basis of
factors such as age, tength of service and future salary.

The debt recognised in the balance sheet pertaining to
defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation on the balance sheet date less the fair value
of the plan assets, including any remeasurement gains/losses.
Defined benefit pension obligations are calculated annually by
independent actuaries using the projected unit credit method.
The present value of the obligations is determined by discount-
ing the estimated future cash flow.

Fair value changes from plan assets are recognised in the
income statement at the discount rate applied for discounting the
matching defined benefit pension liabilities. The rest of the fair
value changes of plan assets are recognised in OCl as remeasure-
ments that are not recognised in the income statement.

The discount rate is the interest on balance sheet date on high
quality corporate bands, including mortgage bonds, with a
maturity corresponding to the Group's pension obligations.
When thereisn't a viable market for such bonds, the market for
government bonds with a similar maturity is used.

According to practice, Swedish Group companies calculate
tax on pension costs by taking the difference between pension
costsin accordance with I1AS 19, and pension costs determined
in accordance with local requlations.,

Share-based payment

The Annual General Meeting 2012-2022 decided upon share-
based payment plans for the Group in the form of incentive pro-
grammes directed at senior executives and key employees. The
Company obtains services from emplayees as compensation for



equity instruments {options) in the Group. The fair value of the
services is recognised as expense over the vesting period,
meaning the period during which the stated vesting conditions
are to be fulfilled. The fair value of the services is estimated as
the fair value of the options on grant date. The total expense
recognised is adjusted for any options being forfeited due to
non-completion of the required service period; while expenses
recngnised do net take into consideration any effects of
changes in the share price, including opticns not being exer-
cised due to the share price being below the exercise price. For
further information about the incentive programme, see note 8.
Expenses for social charges related to the option programme
are recognised according to the same principle, with the differ-
ence that the fair value is recalculated on each reporting date.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those expected to be settied
wholly before twelve manths after the end of the annual report-
ing period during which employee services are rendered, but do
not include termination benefits. Examples include wages, sala-
ries, profit-sharing and bonuses and non-monetary benefits
paid to current employees. The undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in respect of service rendered by
employees in an accounting pericd is recognised in that period.
The expected cost of short-term compensated absences is rec-
ognised as the employees render service that increases their
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when
the absences occur, and includes any additional amounts an
entity expects to pay as a result of unused entitlements at the
end of the period.

Profit-sharing and bonus payments

An entity recognises the expected cost of profit-sharing and
bonus payments when, and only when, it has a legal or con-
structive obligation to make such payments as a result of past
events and a reliable estimate of the expected obligation can
be made.

Termination benefits
Atermination benefit liability is recognised at the earlier of the
following dates:

= When the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of those ben-
etits - additienat guidanee s nrovided on when this dale
oceurs in relation to an employee’s decision to accept an offer
of benefits on termination, and as a result of an entity's deci-
sion to terminate an employee’s employment.

» When the entity recognises costs for a restructuring under
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets which involves the payment of termination benefits.

Termination benefits are measured in accordance with the
nature of employee benefit, i.e. as an enhancement of cther
post-employment benefits, or otherwise as a short-term
employee benefit or other long-term employee benefit,
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p) Taxes

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to the
extent that it relates to items recognised in Ol or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in OC| or directly
in equity, respectively. The current income tax charge is calcu-
lated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
inceme, Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
requlaticon is subject to interpretation. it establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts recognised to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consoli-
dated financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are
not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of good-
will; deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset er liability in a transaction other
than a business combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date
and are recognised to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is set-
tied, Deferred income tax assets are recagnised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be availa-
ble against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred income taxis provided on temporary differences aris-
ing on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for
deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlied by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities
are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

q) Cash flow statement

The cash flow statement is prepared using the indirect method.
This means that the earnings before tax is adjusted for transac-
tions that do not entail receipts or disbursements during the
period, and for any income and expenses referable o cash flows
for investing or financing activities.

r) Government grants
Government grants connected to the acquisition of fixed assets
reduce the acquisition value of the particular assets. This means
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that the asset has been recognised at a net acquisition value, on
which the size of depreciation has been based.

s) Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on consali-
dated net income attributable to the Parent Company share-
holders and on the weighted average number of shares out-
standing during the year. When caleulating diluted earnings per
share, the average number of shares cutstanding is adjusted to
take into account the dilutive effects of potential ordinary
shares. During the recognised pericds, potential ordinary shares
comprise share options granted to senior executives and key
employees. The options are dilutive if the exercise price is lower
than the share price. Dilution is greater, the greater the differ-
ence between the exercise price and the share price. The exer-
cise price is adjusted by an addition of the value of future ser-
vices calculated as remaining cost to recognise in accordance
with IFRS 2.

t) Hyperinflationary economy

Concentric closed its operations in Argentina in January 2022,
Since 2018, Argentina has been a hyperinflationary economy
under the criteria in IAS 29. Concentric has assessed the impact
of making the adjustments required by 1AS 29 and has con-
cluded that the impact on the Group's financial statements is
non-material due to the limited extent of the operations in
Argentina compared with the Group as a whole.

NOTE 3

Important estimations and assumptions

The Censolidated Financial Statements contain estimations and
assumptions about the future. These are based on both histori-
cal experience and expectations for the future. The areas with
the highest risk for future adjustments of carrying amounts are
mentioned below.

Goodwill

During the year the Group's goodwill was tested for impairment.
As at 31 December 2022, the total goodwill amounted to MSEK
1,455 (1,303). The testing was performed at the operating seg-
ment level. The Engine segment and the Hydraulics segment
constitute the Group's cash generating units. The gocodwill value
assigned to the Engine segment amounts to MSEK 1,379 (1,237)
and the Hydraulic segment amounts to MSEK 78 {66). The
change between the years is due to different currency rates
being used when translating the amount into SEK. The impair-
ment testing is performed by discounting expected future cash
flows translated into SEK, as determined in the individual seg-
ments business plans. The value is set in relation to the carrying
amount of the segment’s goodwill. Future cash flows are caltcu-
lated on the basis of official market data relevant to Concen-
tric’s type of industry, while consideration is also taken for Con-
centric’s historical financial performance and future benefits
from committed restructuring programmes.
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The forecast period for testing of goodwilt is five years and
after the explicit forecast period, a residual value is assigned,
which is assumed to represent the value of the business follow-
ing the final year of the forecast period. In addition to the latest
pubtished end-market indices and historical performance, the
Group's forecasts are compited using preduct sales plans, pre-
ductivity initiatives, capital investment programmes and work-
ing capital targets prepared by each individual operating loca-
tion. The key assumptions for the forecast of cash flows during
the coming five years are sales growth, EBIT margin, level of
working capital and capital expenditures, The residuat value has
been calculated on the basis of an assumption concerning a sus-
tainable level for the free cash flow (after the forecast periad)
and the level of growth. The growth after the end of forecast
period has been estimated at 2 {2) percent. The calculation of
the residual vatue includes all future cash flows after the end of
the forecast period. When discounting recognised future cash
flows, a weighted average cost of capital after tax (WACC) of
7.2% (5.6) was used. This corresponds to WACC hefore tax of
7.6% (8.%3). The weighted average cost of capital was calculated
on the basis of the following assumptions:

- Risk-free interest rate: Ten year government bond market.
« Markets risk premium 6% (6).
- Beta: Established beta value for the Group's operating segments.

- Interest expense: Has been calculated as a weighted interest
rate on the basis of the current debt instruments and gearing
in the Group's operating segments, which is considered a good
proxy for the long-term financing structure.

Tax rate: According te the tax rates applying in the specific
countriesin that segment,

The impairment tests performed in 2022 did not reveal any need
to impair goodwill. A reasonable possible change in any of the key
assurnptions would not tead to impairment.

Income taxes

The Group pays tax in many different countries. Detailed calcu-
lations of future tax obligations are completed for each tax
object within the Group, The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes witl be due. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and deferred
income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

Warranty reserves

The Group continuously assesses the value of the reserves in
relation to the estimated need. The warranty reserve amounted
to MSEK 33 (36) and represented 0.8% (1.7) of net sales as of
December 31, 2022.



Pensions

The pension liabilities recognised in the balance sheet are actu-
arial estimates based on annual assumptions and amounts to a
defined benefit cbligation of 1,767 (2,349), plan assets of 1,506
{1,988) and net pension liabilities of MSEK 261 (361) at year-end
2022. The principal assumptions are described in Note 25. At 31
December 2022, there was an increase in the assumed discount
rates used fur Lhe actuanal estimates of Lhe defined benefit
pension plans in the UK, US and Sweden, which lead to remeas-
urement gains in the current reparting period. Given the sensi-
tivity of the discount rate to these actuarial calculations, we have

NOTE &

Segments and revenue

Operating segments are reported in a manner that matches how
internal reporting is submitted to the Group’s highest executive
decision maker, considering that it is at this level that the Group’s
earnings are monitored and strategic decisicns are made. The
Group has divided its operation inte two reporting segments;
Engines and Hydraulics.

The operating segments derive their revenues from the devel-
opment, manufacture and distribution of hydrautic tifting sys-
tems, drive systems for industrial vehicles and pumps for lubri-
cants, cacling water and fuel in diesel engines.
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reviewed the impact of a +/- 0.5% change in the rates assumed.
Our actuaries estimate that a 0.5% increase in the assumed dis-
count rates used would decrease the present value of the
Group's defined benefit obligations by approximately MSEK 88
{158). Conversely, a 0.5% decrease in the assumed discount
rates used would increase the present value of the Group’s esti-
mated pension obligations by approximately MSEK 96 (175).
Singe the Group's UK companies accaunt for approximately 70%
{71) of the Group’s total estimated defined benefit obligations,
fluctuations in the UK discount rate would have the greatest
impact.

The evaluation of an operating segment’s earnings is based on
operating income or EBIT. Assets and liabilities not allocated to
segments are financial assets and liabilities.

No single customer accounts for more than 24% (20) of the
comprehensive income cf the Group as a whole. There are two
(two) customers with more than 10% of the Group’s net salesin
2022, These customers contributed net sales of MSEK 1,495
(668), or 36.9% (31.6) and were supplied from both the Engines
and Hydraulics operating segments. The location of the customer
forms the basis of sales by gecgraphic area.

Engines Hydraulics Elims/Adijs Group

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Total net sales 2,702 1,124 1,366 1,001 o -1z -10 4,056 2,115
External net sales 2,69_1_ 1,115 1,365 1,000 - - 4,056 2.115
Operating income before items affecting comparability 427 289 241 154 - - 668 443
Operating income ' 427 289 241 154 9 <40 677 403
Operatiﬁg rn-argir_u bef_o-re iterns affecting comparability, % 159 25.9 177 154 n/a n/a 16,5 20,9
Operating margin, % ) ) 15.9 259 7.7 154  n/a n/a 16.7 19.1
Financial income and expense - - - - 43 -13 43 -13
Farnings before tax S 289 241 154 -34 .53 634 390
Assets 3,282 3,013 599 514 616 256 4,495 3,783
Liabilities ©78¢ 644 388 468 1,255 1,200 2425 2321
Capital employed 2,756 2467 225 204 141 78 3,422 2,749
Return on capitél eﬁxployed hefore items affecting ) o
comparability, % 15.6 24.2 1132 nfa nfa 218 30.1
Return on capitat employed, % Al 242 133.2. . afa n/a 221 27.4
Net investments in property, plant and equipment 55 18 - 3 - - 62 21
Depreciation, amortisation and write-downs 169 79 18 18 1 1 188 98
Number of em pioyecs,-average 825 486 382 331 - - 1,207 a1y
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Disaggregation of revenue

Segment external sales reporting . Englnes  Hydraulies  Gvowp
by geographic location of customer 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
USA 1,725 338 677 471 2,402 809
Rest of North America 116 46 22 1 138 57
South America - 35 3 2 3 37
Germany 198 202 177 170 37s 572
Uk 165 129 57 39 222 168
Sweden 46 34 70 58 - 116 92
Rest of Europe 281 236 180 126 461 355
Asia 122 69 161 123 283 192
Other 38 26 18 6 56 32
Total Group 2,691 1,115 1,365 1,000 4,056 2,115
_ Engmes  Hydraulies Group
Total sales by product groups 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Concentric branded products 924 722 1,277 921 2,201 1,643
EMP branded products 1,530 168 ) . - - 1,530 168
LICQOS branded products 2357 225 - - . 237 225
Allied branded products - - 88 79 88 78
Total Group 2,691 1,115 1,365 1,000 4,056 2,115
__ Engines  Hydraulies  Group
Total sales by end-markets 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Trucks 950 449 234 198 1,184 647
Construction 925 315 507 373 1,432 688
Industrial 259 160 442 295 701 455
Agriculture 557 191 182 134 739 325
Total Group 2,691 1,115 1,365 1,000 4,056 2,115
Revenues from contracts with customers Tangible assets by eperating tocation 2022 2021
Total amount of revenue from contracts with customers under
IFRS 15 corresponds with reported net sales for the Group. The usA B 389
. . Germany 39 36
Group does not have any performance obligations that are part - :
of a contract that has an criginal expected duration of more UK ) — 7
. . . . . South America - _
than cne year. Therefore, no infarmation is provided concerning ) =
transaction price allecated to unsatisfied performance obliga- Asla 23 i
tions as is permitted by IFRS 15. Total Group 349 542
Intangible assets by operating location 2022 2021
Contract balances
The Group’s contract balances consisted of accounts receivable USA 1,420 1,274
and contract assetsin the form of acerued income. For a specifi-  Germany _ 56 55
UK 414 421

cation of opening and closing balances of account receivables,

see note 21. Accrued income is specified in note 22. Total Group 1,890 1,750

9%



NOTE 5
Costs distributed by type

NOTE 7
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Salaries and other remuneration

2022 2021 2022 2021
Direct material costs _2_,052 1,037 Salaries and remuneration 752 382
Fersonnel costs 879 470 Pensicn costs 20 14
Warranty cost 1 5 Social security costs _ 710 52
Depreciation and amorlisalivn 188 98 External cost for temporary personnel 25 14
Share of net income in joint venture -62 -81 Other personnel costs 12 8
Gther operating income ~47 -46 Total personnel costs 879 470
Other operating costs 368 229
Total operating costs 3,379 1,712 Salaries and remuneration to the Board of Directors, CEO and
site General Managers amounted to MSEK 43 (30). The Board of
Directars, consists of 7 (7) members, of whom 3 (3) are women.
NOTE & For information on the individual remuneration paid to them and
Average number of employees the CEQ, refer to Note 8 for the Group.
2022 2021
Women 355 215
Men 852 602
Total 1,207 B17
NOTE S

Information on remuneration of Board of Directors, CEO and Executive Committee

2022 - 2021
Annual  Long-term Annual Long-term
variable variable variable variable
Directors’ remune- remune- Directors’ remune- remune-
Amounts in SEK (thousands) fees ration ration Pension Total fees ration ration Pension Total
Board of Directors
Kenth Erikssan, Chairman
2020/2021 - - ~ - - 206 - - - 206
Anders Nielsen, Chairman
2021-2023 1,010 - - - 1,010 800 - - - 800
Marianne Brismar - - - - - 81 - - - a1
Karin Gunnarsson 443 - - - 443 419 - - - 419
Martin Lundstedt - - - - - 81 - - - 8
Joachim Rosenberg 370 - - - 370 263 - - - 263
Petra Sundstrém N 370 - - ) - 370 263 - - - 263
Susanna Schneeberger 493 - - - 493 419 - _ - 419
Martin Skold 370 - - - 370 344 - - - 344
Claes Magnus Akesson 542 - - - 542 493 - - - 493
Total Board of Directors ";75,593;\) e SRR 5,368 - - - 3369
2022 2021
Basic Annual  Long-term Basic Annual Long-term
salary/  wvariable variable salary/  wvariable variable
Benefits remune- remune- Benefits  remune- remune-
A ts in SEK {th ds) in kind ration ration Pension Total in kind ration ration Pension Total
President and CEOQ o ] o o )
David Woolley 1,418 - 2,764 - 4182 6,125 4,164 2,036 - 12,325
Martin Kunz - 4,841 1887 - 222 6950 - - - -
Cther senior execulives ™ 13,075 3,798 485 281 17,639 9,796 1,460 210 361 11,827
Total 19,334 5,685 3,248 503 28,771 15,921 5,624 2,246 361 24,153

1) Other semor executives consisted of 8 (6) people, of whom 1 (2) are women.
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Employee stock options LY 2022 LT 2024 1Tl 2020 171 2019
President and CEQ
David Woolley - - - 70,760
Martin Kwpnz 51,960 - - -
Other senior executives 58,744 17,920 7,512 28,424
Total stock options B 110,704 - 17,820 7,512 99,184
Employee stock options o 55,352 8,960 3,756 49,562
Performance stock option 1 - 27,676 4,480 1,878 24,796
Performance stock option 2 27,676 4,480 1,878 24,796
Total stock options {=NMumber of shares) L. 110,704 17,920 7,512 99,186
2024 EPS 2023 EPS 2022 EPS 2021 EPS
Criteria for performance stock option 1 __=SEK10.50 = SEK 8.00 2 SEK9.50 = SEK 12.00"
2019-21
2024 EPS 2023 EPS 2022 EPS Average ROE
Criteria for performance stock option 2 > SEK 12,50 = SFK 10.00 = SEK 12.00 > 30%"
Number of i tives 17 6 2 6
Conditioned by own investment of shares 27,676 4,480 1,878 24,796
Changes in number of stock options 2022 2021 2020 2019
Opening balance, 1 January 131,016 319,876 331,444 390,380
Granted 110,70{0 22,320 97,712 128,304
Options exercised -49,582 -100,349 -102,800 -169,400
Lapsed LTI 2017 ) - - - ~17,840
Lapsed LTI 2018 o - - - -
Lapsed LTI 2019 B -49,592 22,640 ~6,480 -
Lapsed LTI 2020 ~ -2,000 -88,200 -
Lapsed LTI 2021 -4.400 . _ -
Closing balance, 31 December - 136,136 131,016 319,876 331,444
Key parameters LTI 2022 LTI 2021 LI 2020 LTI 2018
Average exercise price, SEK ) 194.40 162.80 142.00 128.25
Average price per option, SEK 4780 34.83 2895 23.1%
Risk free interest rate, % - 0.05 -0.25 -0.32 -0.24
Expected volatility”, % . 306.00 25.00 28.00 26.00
Assumed dividend during 3 year period, SEK 12,737 16.60 15.09 14.32
Average share price at grant date, SEK ) é15.60 180.90 157.80 142.50
Lock up duration of scheme, years 3 3 3 3
Personnet cost recognised in year 2022, MSEK 1.6 0.3 0.1 1.9
Annual cost of scheme, MSEK ) 2.4 0.3 0.1 1.9
Total cost of scheme over 3 year vesting period, MSEK 73 0.9 0.3 5.8

1) Critenia for the pecformance stock optians were not acheved,

2} Thevolatility applied in the valuauon has been estimated ba<ed on the weighted average of the 109-day historical volatibity for the shares traded on
NASDAQ OMX Stockhalm.
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NOTE 9 NOTE 12
Auditing fees Financial items - Net
2022 2021 2022 2021
KPMG Financial income
Audit assignments 5 4 Interest income, external ) 8 1
Other assignments - - Foreign exchange rate gains, net 9 3
5 4 Total financial income 17 4
Financial expenses
NOTE 10 Interest expenses, external -44 -3
Depreciation and Amortisation Pension financial expenses 5 5
Interest expenses for right of
2022 2021 e p g use assets, . "
Cost of goods sold 100 44 Other financial items, external -7 -4
Administrative costs 13 10 Total financial expenses -60 -17
Product development costs 2 2
Other operating expenses 73 42 Financial items - net -43 -13
Total depreciation and amortisation 188 a8
NOTE 11 NOTE 43
Other operating income and expenses Taxes
2022 2021 2022 2021
Qther operating income Current tax -163 -70
Revenue from toolingetc 8 11 Deferred tax 36 19
Income from royalty from joint venture 22 - 24 Withholding tax -6 -1
Export incentives - 2 Total income tax -133 -52
Sale of Chivilcoy 9 - - - '
Other income 3 3 Deferred taxes relates mainly to pensions, provisions and intan-
62 40 gible fixed assets. The withholding tax was related to dividend
from India to UK.
Other operating expenses The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the theo-
Amartisation of acquisition related retical amount that would arise using the weighted average tax
surplus values 42 ) ] ) o
T rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as fotlows:
Acquisition costs 18
Closure of subsidiary cost - 22
Other expenses - - Reconciliation of effective tax rate 2022 2021
73 82
Earnings before tax (MSEK) 634 390
Applicable tax rate in Sweden, % -21 =21
Effect of different tax rates in
fareign ranntries of operation, % -2 3
Withholding taxes, % - ol
Non-tax deductible expenses, % - -
Non-taxablre income, % 1 -
Tax attributable to prior years, % -2 2
Utilisation of previously
unrecognised tax losses, % - 2
Change in temporary difference, % ) - -
Change in temp diff without capofdeftax, % - -2
Effect of changes in tax rates, % 3 2
Reported effective tax rate, % -21 -14
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NOTE 14
Earnings per share
2022 2021
Net income for the year, KSEK 501,223 337,526
Basic weirghted average number of shargs 37,960,750 37,902,337
Adjustments for the option programmes 69,386 117,447
Dituted weighted average no of shares 38,030,136 38,019,784
Basic earnings per share, SEK 13.20 891
Dituted earnings per share, SEK 13.18 8.88
NOTE 15
Intangible fixed assets
Other Capitalised

Goodwill intangible assets?  development costs Total
Acquisition value
Opening Balance at 4 January 2021 653 558 k13 1,245
Investments through business combinations 558 348 906
Other investments - - - -
Sales/discards/reclassifications - - - -
Effect of movements in exchange rates 97 T4 - 171
Closing Balance at 31 December 2022 1,308 980 34 2,322
Opening Balance at 1 January 2022 1,308 280 34 2,322
{nvestments through business combinatons - - - -
Other investments . N _ .
Sates/discards/reclassilications - - - -
Effect of movements in exchange rates 156 104 - 260
Closing Balance at 31 December 2022 1,464 1,084 3% 2,582
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation,
including write-downs?
Opening Balance at 2 January 2021 4 4438 34 486
Depreciation and amortisation - 42 B 42
Sales/discards/reclassifications - - - -
Effect of movements in exchange rates 1 43 - 44
Closing Balance at 31 December 2021 5 533 34 572
Opening Balance at 1 January 2022 5 533 34 572
Depreciation and amortisation - 73 - 73
Sates/discards/reclassifications - - - -
Effect of movements in exchange rates 4 43 - 47
Clesing Balance at 31 December 2022 9 649 34 692
Carrying amounts
As at 31 December 2021 1,303 447 - 1,750
As at 31 December 2022 1,455 435 - 1,890

1) The acguisivon value of ctrer intangible assets of MSEK 1,084 (S80) refates to Customer retatonstips and contracts of MSEX 678 (611),

Brand MSEK 150 (173), Technology MSEK 290 (171) und other intangible assets MSEK 26 {25},
2) Accumutaied write-downs amounted to MSEK 32 {32) and relates 1o Capriatised deveinpment coste,
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NOTE 16
Tangible fixed assets

Machinery Construction
Right of use and other Equipment, in progress
fixed assets Land and land technological toolsand and advances
- IFRS16  Buildings impr ts i ments installations to suppliers Total
Acquisition value ) )
Opening Balance at 1 January 202 154 96 22 773 291 3 1,344
Investments through business 7 "
combinations - 109 13 175 19 17 333
Other mvestmenfs 6 1 - 11 - 4 5 - 27
Sales/discards/reclassifications -6 -1 - 25 -9 16 -7
Effect of movements in exchange rates 12 16 1 74 22 1 126
Closing Batance at 31 December 2021 166 221 ) 36 1,058 327 15 1,823
Opening Balance at 1 January 2022 ) 166 221 36 1,058 327 15 1,823
investments through business
combinations - - - - - - -
Other investments ' 4 - R 35 7 9 55
Sales/discards/reciassifications - - - -2 - - -2
Effect of movements in exchange rates 12 32 6 101 36 2 189
c_losing__Balance at 31 December 2022 182 253 &2 1,192 370 26 2,065
Accumulated depreciation and amortisation o
Opening Balance at 1 January 2021 34 87 14 729 272 - 1,136
Depreciation and amortisation B 21 3 1 24 7 - 56
Sales/discards/reclassifications ) -3 - - - - ) - -3
Effect of movements in exchange rates 2 9 2 60 19 - 92
Closing Balance at 31 December 2021 ) 54 99 17 813 ) 298 ) B 1,281
Opening Balance at 1 January 2022 54 99 17 813 298 - 1,281
Depreciation and amortisation 24 8 3 66 13 - ) 114_
Sales/discards/reclassifications ) - - - -1 - - -1
Effect of movements in exchange rates 5 13 2 70 32 - 122
Closing Balance at 31 December 2022 83 120 22 948 343 - 1,516
Carrying amounts )
As at 31 December 2021 ' 112 122 19 245 29 15 542
As at 31 December 2022 99 133 ) 20 244 27 26 549
NOTE 17
Leases
The Group apply the accounting principles for Leases according The weighted average incremental borrowing rate used for the
to IFRS16. IFRS 16 calculation is 2.6%. There were no short-term leases in
2021-22. The total cash-flow from leases amounted to MSEK 27
(24).
Right of use assets - by type of assets L .
Acquisition value Depreciation Acquisition VEI"L Depreciation
31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021 31 Dec 2021
Land and building 162 .n 155 45
Machinery 6 3 3 3
Vehicles o g 6 6 ) 4
Other 5 3 2 2
Total right of use assets ) 182 83 166 54
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NOTE 18 2022 2021
Deferred Taxes

. T t A1 Janu -33 92
Deferred income tax receivables and liabilities are offset when A ary - :
. . Income statement charge (note 13) 36 16
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current taxes and Tax charaed di 16 001 e 15
. . L ax charged directly to - ~
when the deferred income tax receivables and hiabilities relate g ) Y e -
. . . . . Re-classification to current taxes - -2
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either Acquired th hb binati e 119
. . fe: - uire rou smess compination bd -
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there isan “a ! ) gh business combination 7
. . ) Exchange differences -13 -8
intention to settle the balances on a net basis. See table oppo-
At 31 December ~23 -33

site for the gross movement on deferred income taxes.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are summarised in the tables below:

2022 Assets Liabilities Net

Tax loss carry-forwards . 30 ) - 30
Tangible fixed assets - -13 -13

Intangible assets oo - -

Provisions 16 ) - ) 16

Pension and similar ohligations 67 ) -3 b4

Acquisition related surplus values " - ) ~127 - B - -127 -
Hedging ) - -8 B —8
Other . I - .18
Netting -11 11 -

Net deferred tax receivables/tax liabilities 117 -140 =23

2021 Assets Liabilities Net

Tax loss carry-forwards 11 - 11

Tahgible fixed assets - . -9 -9

Intangible assets - - -

Provisions 16 - 16

Pension and similar obligations a3 -4 29

Acquisition related surplus values - -146 ~146

Other 6 - 6

Netting ~-28 28 -

Net deferred tax receivables/tax liabilities 98 -131 -33

NOTE 19

Shares of net assets in joint venture

Company name Corp. reg. no. Reg'd office Participations % 2022 2021
ALfde)_( AB ) 556647-7278 Landskrona 50,000 50% 138 116
Alfdex AB is a joint venture with Alfa Laval Holding AB, and constitute 100% of the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses in
Concentric AB has 50% of the shares and voting rights. See the joint venture. Adjustments to correspond with Concentric's
also Note 8 for the Parent Company. The following amounts accounting principles have been made.
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Income statement 2022 2021 NOTE 21
Rk Accounts receivable

MNet Sales 7 036 761
Cost of goods sold” -415 -457 2022 2021
Gross income 221 305 :

) - - Accounts receivable, gross 542 408
Operating expenses? -69 -94 o .

—— Provision for doubtful receivables -21 -16
Operating income 152 211 -

A o o Accounts receivable, net 521 392
Elﬂpanmal items - net 1 - : : N
Earnings before tax 1 244

9 EEEE LA Current receivable 432 323
Taxes -29 -50 X P -
Nets o 124 161 Overdue receivable:
et 1ncome ror e N
year 1-30 days 7 71 4B
. o o 31-60days 19 17
i Depreciatien and amortisation - o
in Income statement -15 -16 >.60 days % 20
o Sum of overdue receivable 110 85
Accounts receivable, gross 542 408
Balance sheet 2022 2021
Provision for doubtful receivable
Fixed assels a5 71 . ’ ’

- - C e e Provision on January 1 R 1
Current aSbSEti - . ;z‘; - 265 Change in provisicon for anticipated losses, net 5 15
Cash and ban 142 Provision on December 31 21 16
Total assets 511 478 o
Equity 276 231 The year's net cost for doubtful accounts receivables amounted
Pensicns and similar obligations 15 20 to MSEK 10 (2).

Deferred tax liahilities ez 16
Current liabilities - 198 211
Long term liabilities - - NOTE 22
Total equity and liabilities 511 478 Other current receivables
2022 2021
. e 2
Movement in shares of net assets in joint venture 2022 2021 VAT , , Nt 12
Share of net assets, opening balance 116 72 Tax receivables 27 5
Share of net income in joint venture 62 81 Prepaid expenses and accrued income e
Dividend _ -48 -46 Rents and insurance el 5
Other comprehensive income 8 9 Accrued income = 1
Share of net assets, closing balance 138 116 Other prepaid expenses 1%
Derivative instruments ) e o5
Other current receivables 18 13
NOTE 20 .. 8t 58
inventories
2022 2021 The financial instruments recognised at fair value in the balance
sheet belong to Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, meaning that
Raw materials sz B8 310 their fair value is determinable, directly or indirectly, from
Semi-manufactured products § 36 28 observable market data.
Finished products 34 38 Claims related to income tax, VAT and other taxes of MSEK 38
538 382 {17) are not included in Note 38 regarding financial assets.
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NOTE 23
Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021
Bank accounts and cash 620 434
Deposits 4 6
Cash and cash equivalents 624 440

NOTE 24

Shareholders’ equity

See alsc notes 8 and 14 for the Group and note 12 {or the Parent
Company.

Share capital
Refers to the share capital in the Parent Company.

Additional contributed capitat

Refers to equity contributed by the owners. Totai contribution is
MSEK 680, of which MSEK 97 has been issued as share capilal.
The remaining amount, MSEK 583, is reported as additiona!l con-
tributed capital.

Reserves
Translation reserve consists of foreign currency translation dif-
ferences, arising from translation of the Group's foreign enti-
ties' financial reports, that have been prepared in a currency
different to the Group’s currency; Swedish kronor. Reserves also
cantain the gains and losses from hedges of net investments.
Hedge reserve consists of the fair value of the hedge instru-
ments, i.e. forward contracts at the end of the period, that have
not yet been recognised in the income statement. The Group
applies hedge accounting, as defined in IFRS 9. Gains and losses
on derivative instruments are recogmsed in the hedging reserve
to the extent that the hedge is effective. Gains and tosses are
released to profit and loss at the same time as the hedged item
impacts earnings.

Retained earnings

Retained Earnings includes earnings and other comprehensive
income for the year, plus the surplus/deficit in earnings carried
forward in the Group, net of any sharehalder distributions,
either through dividends or own share buy-backs, and any LT1
related equity adjustments.

Capital management

The Group's objective in respect of the capital structure is to
secure Concentric’s ability to continue to conduct its operations
so that it can generate a return for sharehelders and value for
other stakeholders and in order to maintain an optimal capital
structure so that the cost of capital can be reduced. To manage
the capital structure, the Group could change the dividend paid
to the shareholders, repay capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets in arder to reduce debt.
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Capitalis defined as Equity and refers to the equity attributa-
ble to the owners of shares in the Parent Company.

Shareholders’ equity amounted to MSEK 2,070 (1,462), result-
ing in a gearing ratio of 45% {82).

Cash dividend decided by the Annual General Meeting 2022
was SEK 3.75 (3.50) per share or tofal of MSEK 142.2 {132.5).
The Company's policy for distributing unrestricted capital to the
shareholders remains unchanged, whereby at least one-third of
annual after-tax profit over a business cyele is to he distributed
to the shareholders through dividends taking into account the
Group's anticipated financial status. The Board of Directors pro-
pose to the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting a divi-
dend of SEK 4,00 (3.75) per share for the financial year 2022,
which equates to around 30% (42} of the earnings per share.

Annual General Meeting, 2018-2022 have decided upon five
lang-term performance based incentive programmes, under
which a number of senior executives and key employees partici-
pated in the schemes, entitling them to receive employee stock
options that entitles them to acquire Concentric shares. For fur-
ther details, see note 8 for the Group.

During 2021 and 2022 Concentric AB didn’t buy-back any own
shares, but have sold 49,592 (80,375} of its own shares, repre-
senting 0.3% (0.2) of the shares of the Company.

No transfer was made into the Employee Share Ownership
Trust (ESOT) in this year or last year, but a transfer of 41,780
(53,085) own shares to Concentric was made. The total number
of holdings of own shares at year-end 2022 was 108,153
(115,965}, which represented 0.3% (0.3) of the total number of
shares of the Company. In addition to this, the total number of
own shares transferred to an ESQT are 209,947 (251,727).
Including these shares the company’s holdings was 318,100
(367,692) representing 0.8% (1.0) of the total number of shares.

The repurchase is made on the purpoeses determined by the
Annual General Meeting, i.e. in order to increase the flexibility
for the board in connection to potential future corporate acqui-
sitions, as well as to be able to improve the Company’s capital
structure and to cover costs for, and enable delivery of shares
in accordance with the optian programmes.

In 2021 Concentric secured a new term loan for a tenor of four
years in the amount of MUSD 100. 50% of the term loan will be
repaid quarterly in equal instalments over the four years which
started in Q1 2022. In addition, a new multi-currency revolving
credit facitity for a rminimum of three years in the amount of
MEUR 60 was signed. This replaced the previous revolver of the
same amount. At the acquisition, Concentric borrowed MUSD
125, at year end, this amounted to MSEK 1,174 at closing FX
rates.

The loan agreements in the Group contain tinancial covenants
which the Group must comply with. The covenants are net debt
in relation to EBITDA and in relatton to Equity. At the year-end
Concentric AB fullilled these covenants with byoad margins,

The amount of available unused credit facilities at year-end
was EUR miliion 38 (38), or about MSEK 407 (388).
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Pensions and similar obligations

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -~ GROUP

2022 2021

Detined benefit plans

Defined benefit obligation

261 361

Fair value of plan assets Net defined benefit lHabitity

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Opening Balance at 1 January 2,349 2,309 -1,988 -1,847 361 462
Included in income statement: o
Current service cost ) 7 7 - - 7 7
interest cost 45 7 ) 35 ;40 -30 5 7 5

) ) 52 42 -40 ~30 12 12

Included in Other Comprehensive Income: 7
Remeasurement loss (gain) 655 112 " 580 30 -75 -82
Effect of movements in exchange rates 124 199 -98 -177 26 22

-531 87 482 -147 -49 -60
Other: o ’ ) 7
Contributiens paid by the employer ~ - - 59 -53 -59 -53
Benefits paid 103 -89 C 99 89 -4 -

=103 -89 40 36 -63 -53
Closing Balance at 31 December 1,767 2,349 -1,506 -1,988 261 361
Represented by plans in: o o
Sweden 38 51 - - 38 51
Germany 182 237 -105 -93 57 14k
UK 1,229 1,675 -1,140 -1,582 119 93
USA 338 386 -291 -313 47 73
Closing Balance at 31 December 1,767 2,349 -1,506 -1,988 261 361

Overview of the Group’s defined benefit plans

Below you can find descriptions of the defined benefit plansin
each country. Concentric has defined benefit plans for pensions
in Sweden, Germany, Great Britain and in the USA, The pensions
under these plans are based mainly on final salary, Contribution-
based ptans are alsc found in these countries. Net remeasure-
ment gains on pension obligations and planned assets were
MSEK 75 (82) during 2022.

These plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as lon-
gevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk.

The return on plan assets recognised in the income statement
totaled MSEK 40 (30), while the actual return was MSEX 45 {35).
The plan assets consist primarily of shares, interesi-bearing
securities and shares in mutual funds.

Sweden pension plans

There are three different plans in Sweden, of which two minor
plans correspand to 15% (14) of the pension's liability. The obli-
gations for the major plan that Concentric Group have within
the ITP 2-plan are lifelong retirement pensions. The benefits in
the lifelong pensions are established by different percentages in
different salary intervals. The salary intervals are established in
relaticn to the income base amount. The planis based on final
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salary. The plan is closed for new employees and is unfunded.
The minimum funding target is decided by PRI Pensionsgaranti,
this is mandatory in order to stay in the system and get insur-
ance for the pension liability.

As of 31 December 2022 the pension obligation amounted to
MSEX 38 (51), corresponding to 2% (2) of the Group's total obli-
gations.

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the
pericd ending 31 December 2022 i5 15 (16) years.

The best estimate of pensions to be paid by the Group for the
year commenciid 1 Januaty 2025 is M3EK 2 (2).

Germany pension plan

This pension plan is a so-called direct pension promise accord-
ing to the German Company Pensions Act. As such, itis a defined
benefit plan according to 1AS 19. Benetits which originate from
the direct pension promise are partially funded via pledged rein-
surance contracts. The plan also comprises lump-sum payments
in case of death during employment and optional old-age bene-
fits based on employee contributions, which are both set up as
so-called direct insurance promises. These parts of the promise
are also reported as part of the defined benefit plan and the
directinsurance contracts are considered as plan assets.
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The plan has been closed to new entrants since 2005. From 31
March 2017, the plan has been closed to further service accrual.
The plan grants employee benefits to entitied employees in
case of reaching the retirement age and in case of disabhitity. In
case of death of the entitled employee benefits are granted to

the surviving dependents.

The normal retirement age is reached at the age of 65. The
old-age benefit plan formula represents a so-called average
finai-pay plan. The pension amount depends on the creditable
years of service and the highest average pensicnabie salary dur-
ing five consecutive years of service within the last ten years of
service before retirement.

The Company holds plan assets in the form of direct insurance
and pledged re-insurance contracts. Certain benefits that are
funded by direct insurance contracts are fully funded {100%
asset liability matching).

The remaining benefits that are funded through re-insurance
contracts are only partially funded according to 1AS 19.

As no market quotation exists for direct insurance and re-in-
surance policies in an active market, the fair value at the bal-
ance sheet date is derived from the so-called active value, which
has been notified by the insurance company.

No curtailment gains have been recognised in 2022, There
were no curtailment gains arising from the notice to close the
plan to further service accrual.

As of 31 December 2022 the pension obligation amounted to
MSEK 162 (237), corresponding to 9% (10) of the Group's total
obligations. The fair value of the plan assets amounted to MSEK
105 (93). Net defined benefit liability amounted to MSEK 57 (144).

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the
period ending 31 December 2022 is 18 {19) years.

The best estimate of contributions to be paid by the Group to
the plan for the year commencing 1 January 2023 is MSEK 1 {6).

UK pension plans

The Group sponsors two plans, which are funded and provide
benefits which are linked to each members final pay at the ear-
lier of their date of teaving or retirement. Both plans are closed
to new entrants and further service accrual.

These plans operate separate Trustee administered funds
holding the pension plan assets to meet long term pension Ha-
bilittes for about 2,000 past employees in Concentric. The level
of retirement benefit is linked to changes in inflatien up to
retirement.

The plans are subject to the funding legislation outlined in
the Pensions Act 2004, This, together with documents issued by
the Pensions Regulator, and Guidance Notes adopted by the
Financial Reporting Council, set out the framework for funding
defined benefit occupational pension plans in the UK.

The Trustees of the plans are required to act in the best inter-
est of the plan’s beneficiaries. The appointment of the Trustees
is determined by the ptan’s trust documentation. Itis policy that
at least half of all Trustees should be nominated by the members.
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Itis the policy of the Trustees and the Group to review the
investrment strategy at the time of each tunding valuation, The
Trustees'investment objectives and the processes undertaken to
measure and manage the risks inherent in the plan investment
strategy are documented in the ptan's Statement of Investment
Principles.

As of 31 December 2022 the pension obligation amounted to
MSEK 1,229 (1,675), corresponding to 70% (71) of the Group's
total obligations. The fair value of the ptan assets amounted to
MSEK 1,110 (1,582). Net defined benefit liability amounted to
MSEK 119 (93).

The average duration of the defined benefit abligation at the
period ending 31 December 2022 is 14 (15) years.

The best estimate of regutar contributicns to be paid by the
Group to the plans for the year commencing 1 January 2023 is
MSEK 29 (28).

USA pension plans

During 2022 the Group sponsored 2 (2} different plans in the
USA which eomprised both pensions and other post-retirement
benefits.

The Defined Benefit Plan is equivalent to 99% (99) of the total
pension liability and the SERP-plan (Supplementary Executive
Retirement Plan) corresponds to 1% (1). Both plans are frozen in
the sense that no new participants are allowed to enter the plans.

The benefits under the Pension Plan are based on annual sat-
ary earned over the career as contrasted with a final average
salary earned over the last few years before retirement. As such,
the Plan desigh controls the growth of benefit obligations very
carefully. The number of participants in the Plan has been
declining since 2006 as beneficiaries pass away and some active
participants leave the Company.

The benefits for the SERP are fixed and will not change.

The defined benefit Pension Plan has a Trust by which bene-
fits are financed. The investment manager has established a
Statement of Investment Objectives which has been signed by
the Trustees of the Plan. Virtually all investments are made in
highly diversified, passively managed mutua!l funds. The invest-
ment manager consults every month with the Plan Trustees and
the actuary to make certain that all parties understand and
agree with the investment strategy. The investments are con-
servative, with preservation of capital being a very important
companent of the strategy. If there is an imminent financial
threat, the investment manager, the actuary and all Trustees
have the ability to cali an emergency meeting to discuss the
iIssue with the others. Inflows into the Trust from corporate con-
tributions continue to exceed the ocutflow of pension benefits.

No curtaitment gains have been recognised in 2022 There
have been no other amendments or settlements in the plans
during the accounting period.
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As of 31 December 2022 the pension obligation amounted to Total pension costs 2022 2021
MSEK 338 (386), corresponding to 1% (11) of the Group's total Danci red d " od ; ;
R ensions veste erio
chiigations. The tair value of the plan assets amounted to MSEK | tn 1 Tw' ol uning the pert 45 .
nterest on cbligations ;
291 (313). Net defined benefit liability amounted ta MSEK 47 {73). Caleulated ret gat l . w0 30
] . o alculated return an assets - -
The average duration of the defined benefit obligation at the enp
. . . Settlement - -
period ending 31 December 2022 is 12 (13) years. —— te dofined borert ot - =
‘ ension costs, defined bene ans
The best estimate of contributions to be paid by the Group to the Ponsi . ‘d fined rib l: l 12 ;
: ension costs, defined-contribution plans
plans for the year commencing 1 January 2023 is MSEK 2 (16). - ‘ P
Total pension oocte ?4 19
Total __
DBO remeasurement losses (gain) arising from Sweden Germany UK USA 2022 2021
Experience adjustment & 1 99 -1 103 -7
Demographic assumpticns - - 8 -3 5 -2
Financial assumptions o -15 -88  -566 ~94 -763 -103%
Total BBO remeasurement losses (gains) -11 -87 -459 -98 -655 -112
Defined Benefit Obligation Total
Members, % Sweden Germany UK USA 2022 2021
Active members - 34 - 16 6 7
Deferred members 32 13 38 25 33 40
Pensioners 68 53 62 59 61 53
Fair value of plan assets ] Total
Instruments Sweden Germany UK USA 2022 2021
Equity instruments? - - 462 61 523 1,055
Debt instruments? - - 457 227 684 597
Property Y - - - _ - 39
Cash and cash equivaients - - 24 - 24 3
Sum - - 943 288 1,231 1,694
insurance policies - 105 167 3 275 294
Total - 105 1,110 291 1,506 1,988
1) Allinstruments have quoted prices in active markets.
Actuarial assumptions 2022, % Sweden Germany UK USA
Discount rate 3.70 3.60 5.05 2.70
Recognised salary increase 3.00 2.00 n/a n/a
Recognised intlation 2.00 1.85 2.70 nfa
Turnover, personnel 2.00 1.60 n/a n/a
Actuarial assumptions 2021, % Sweden  Germany UK USA
Discounl rate 1.75 g.90 1.85 2.70
Recagnised salary increase 3.20 2.00 nfa n/a
Recognised inflation 2.20 1.85 2.90 n/a
2.00 1.60 nfa n/a

Turnover, personneg
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Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions
constant, would have affected the DBO by the amounts shown below.

31 Decamber 2022 Sweden Germany . UK USA
Defined Benefit Obligation Increase Decrease  Increase Decvease Increase Decrease  Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) -2.3 2.6 -10.4 11.7 -61.8 66.7 -13.9 151
Future salary growth {0.5% movement} - - 2.1 -2.0 n/a n/a n/a n/a
Future pension growth {0.5% movement)} 2.5 -2.3 8.7 -8.0 -12.2 11.8 n/a n/a
Future mortality (+/- 1 year) 1.3 -1.3 6.4 -6.6 -36.6 35.7 7.8 -8.0
NOTE 26
Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

0-6 months 7-12 months __13-60 months >60 months Total i
Nominal amount 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Term loan 65 57 65 57 783 790 - - 913 904
Mu-lti-currency revolver loan = - - - 261 226 - - 261 226
Loans related to leased assets 8 10 g 10 75 62 22 43 114 125
Other sheort-term interest-bearing
liahilities - 6 - - - - - - - 16
Accounts payable 401 313 - - ) - - - - 401 313
Other current liabilities 163 133 - - - - - - 163 133
Total financial liabilities 637 529 7% 67 1,119 1,078 22 43 1,852 1,717
Expected total future
Interest payments 40 12 34 11 130 53 7 18 211 G4
NOTE 27
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities

2022 2021 The interest rate on the Term {oan was 5.3241 percent as of 31

December 2022 and the average interest rate on the loan during

erm loa o1 2022 was 3.4310 percent. The int trat th Lti
' . c . Interest rate onthe m -
Loans related to leased assets 103 c eW ; evolvin [r 4.6741 ent 31D ] mb
rrency rey sS4
=~ % ving loan wa percent as o ecember

2022 and the average interest rate on this loan during 2022 was
2.7810 percent.
The amount of available unused credit facilities at year-end

years in the amount of MUSD 100. 50% of the term loan will be was EUR million 38 (38), or about MSEK 407 (388). See also note
repaid quarterly in equal instalments over the four years which

started in Q1 2022, In addition, a new multi-currency revolving

In 2021 Concentric secured a new term loan for a tenor of four

15 for the Parent Company.
Total loans related to leased assets according to IFRS 16 is
credit facility for a minimum of three years in the amount of MSEK 124 (125) at year-end. See also Note 28 below.
MEUR 60 was signed. This replaced the previous revolver of the
same amount. At the acquisition of EMP, Concentric borrowed
MUSD 125, at year end, this amounted to MSEK 1,174 at closing
FX rates.
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NOTE 28 NOTE 29
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities Short-term loans receivable and payable, joint venture
2022 2021 2022 2021
Term loan 130 114 Accounts receivable from Alfdex AB 2 1
Ace ts payable to Alfdex AB -
Multicurrency revolver loan 261 226 ceounts payable to Alfdex bl
: C Leoans from Alfdex AB - -
Loans related to leased assets ar 20 2 1
Consideration owed to seliers of EMP - 15
408 375
NOTE 30

Other provisions

Provision for share Total long-term
based payments provisions
Opening balance January 1, 2022 [ 4
Provisions " '
Utilisation of provision o3 -3
Exchange rate differences - -
Closing balance December 31, 2022 2 2
Warranty Total short-term
reserves provisions
Opening balance January 1, 2022 36 36
Provisions 4 ' - 1 1
Acquired through business combination - -
Utilisation of provision ' -6 -5
Exchange rate differences 2 2
Closing balancg_l'_‘ ber 34, 2022 33 33
NOTE 31 NOTE 32
Other current liabilities Pledged assets and contingent liabilities
2022 2021 2022 2021
Liabilities for VAT and social security casts 1 - Centingent liabilities 1 1
Tax liabilities 137 71
Derivative instruments o - ’_ -
Accrued expenses: , NOTE 33
Personnel costs 105 85 Other adiustments
Other accrued expenses 47 60
Other currant liabilities 10, 8 2022 2021
300 204 Financial pension expenses 5 5
Provision tO/Release of restructuring reserve - -8
The financial instruments recognised at fair value in the batance Leases according to IFRS 16 4 4
sheet belong to Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, meaning that Financial interests -5 -1
their fair value is determinable, directly or indirectly, from Cost for LTl-schemes g7 4
observable market data. Acquisition costs T 18
Liabilities for income tax, VAT and other tax liabilities of MSEK Closure of subsidiary - 22
138(71) are not included in Note 26 and 37 related to financiat 3 &b

liabilities.
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NOTE 34
Reconciliation of interest-bearing liabilities
from financing activities

Loans  Pension? Total
Opening balance January 1, 2022 1,256 361 1,617
Cash flow, pension
and other loans -127 ~B4 -191
Cash flow, financial
Gabilities IFRS 16 -27 - -27
Non-cash items, financial
Habilities WFRS1E 15 - 15
Other non-cash items 171 -36 135
Closing balance December 31, 2022 1,288 261 1,549

1) For additional information, see Note 25 - Pensicn and similar obligations.

NOTE 35
investments in subsidiaries
There were no acquisitions or divestments in 2022.

NOTE 38

Categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities and disclosures of fair value

The carrying ameunt of financial assets and liabilities are
considered to be reasonable approximations of fair value for
each class of financial assets and financial liabilities. The
Group’s interest bearing liabilities have floating base interest
rates. Hence, changes in the base interest rate do not materially
affect the fair value of the liabilities. Furthermore, there has not
been any change in credit spread during the yearthat in
Concentric’s view would materially impact fair value.

NOTE 36

Related party transactions

The Parent Company is a retated party to its subsidiaries and
assaciated companies. Transactions with subsidiaries and asso-
ciated companies occur on commercial market terms. Remu-
neration to senjor executives is presented in Note 8, See also
Note 2 for the Parent Company.

Other than the routine transactions related to intra-group
financing and cash pooling arrangements, no transactions have
been carried out between Concentric AB and its subsidiary
undertakings and any related parties that had a material impact
on either the Company’s or the Group's financial position and
results, Qver the tast five years, the AGM has decided upon five
long-term incentive plans for the management and key personnel.

NOTE 37

Significant events after balance-sheet date

There have been no materiat post batance sheet events which
would require disclosure or adjustment to these financial state-
ments.

Accounts receivable and payable are all short-term and there-
fore their carrying amounts are also considered to be reasona-
ble approximations of thetr fair values. The table below shows
the carrying amount of financial assets and financial liabilities
per measurement category in IFRS 9. For a description of the
Group’s exposures to financial risks, and its financial risk manage-
ment, please see pages 69-70 in the Board of Directors’ report.

Derivatives Financial assets measured
used for hedging at amortised cost . Total _
Note 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Financial assets at fair value
Long-term derivatives 32 - o - - 32 -
Short-term derivatives 22 - 3 N - . 3
Financial assets not at fair value
Long-term receivables - - 4 4 4 4
Accounts receivable 21 - - 521 ) 3493 521 383
Short-term loans veceivable from joint venture 29 - - 2 1 2 1
Other current recevables 22 - - 2 38 44 38
Cash and cash eguivalents 23 - - 624 440 624 440
Total financial assets 32 3 1,196 875 1,228 878
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Derivatives Financial liabilities
used for hedging at amortised cost Total
Note 2022 2021 2022 2024 2022 2021
Financial liabilities at fair value o I
Short-term derivatives 31 2 - - -2 -

Financial ljabilities not at fair value

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 27 o - 880 896 912 896
Short-terminterest-bearing liabilities 28 - - o huy 575 5/b 58
Accounts payable 26 ) - - 401 313 401 313
Other current liabilities 31 - - 163 133 164 133
Total financial liabilities ) 2 - 1,852 1,747 1,851 1,717
The fair vatues of the foreign currency derivatives belong to Hedge accounting is applied for the derivatives that are used to
Level 2 in the fair value hierarchy, meaning that their fair values hedge foreign currency transactions. Derivative assets are

are determined directly or indirectly from observable data. The reported under “Other current receivables” (note 22) and deriva-
fairvalues of the financial derivatives are based on valuations tive Liabilities are reported under "Other current Liabilities” (note
received from the financial institution that is the counterparty 31). During the reparting period an amount of MSEK 3.6 (1.9)

tc each contract. was reclassified from the hedging reserve and included in

finance net and an amount of MSEK 5.6 {0.5) was reclassified
and included in Cost of goods sold.
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Parent Company

Parent Company income statement

Note 2022 2021
Net sales 2 29 28
Operating costs ) 2,5, 4 - 33 -26
Other operating income/expenses 7 —4
Operating income 3 -2
Incame from shares in subsidiaries 5 - 138 -5
Income from shares in joint venture 5 48 46
Interest income and similar items 5 &2 7
Interest expenses and similar items 5 -164 -66
Financial items - net ) 64 ~-18
Earnings before tax 67 -20
Taxes 5 17 10
Net income for the year o B4 -10
Statement of comprehensive income in Parent Company
2022 2021
Net income for the year _ 84 -10

Other comprehensive income - -

Total comprehensive income 84 -10
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Parent Company balance sheet

Note 34 Dec 2022 34 Dec 2021
ASSLTS
Shares in subsidiaries 7 4,329 4,243
Shares in joint venture 8 10 10
Long-term loans receivable from subsidiaries 9 1044 1,017
Long-term loans receivabie from joint ventures 9 - -
Deferred tax assets 3 28 11
Total financial fixed assets ) o o 5,411 o 5,281
Other current receivables ) 10 s 10
ShOrt—term loans receivable from subsidiaries ] 136 128
Short-term loans receivable from joint ventures o2 -
Cash and cash equivalents 11 536 290
Total current assets 683 428
Total assets 6,094 5,709
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND LIABILITIES S
Share Capital 12 97 97
Total restricted equity ) B 3 97 97
Retained earnings 2,110 2,25%
Total comprehensive income 84 -10
Total unrestricted equity 21 2,194 2,245
Total Shareholders’ equity ] o 2,291 2,342
Pensions and similar obligations ) 13 2 ) 18
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities ) 14,15 783 791
Long-term loans payabile to subsidiaries 14 2,459 1,987
Total long-term liabilities ) o - 3,262 ) 2,796
Accounts payable B I 4 o 1
Shor(-term interest-bearing liabilities 14,15 391 340
Short-term loans payable to subsidiaries ) 14 o142 221
Other current liabilities 14, 16 4 9
Yotal current Habilities s Gl 51
Total equity and liabilities 6,094 5,709
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Changes in shareholders’ equity in Parent Company

Share capital Retained earnings Total equity
Opening balance at January 1, 2021 97 2,380 2,477
Net income for the year - -10 -10
Other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - -10 -10
Transactions with shareholders
Dividend - -133 -133
Sale of own shares to satisfy LTl-options exercised - 8 8
Buy-back own shares - - -
Total transactions with shareholders - -125 =125
Closing balance at December 31, 2021 97 2,245 2,342

Share capital Retained earnings Total equity
Opening balance at January 1, 2022 97 2,245 2,342
Net income for the year - 84 84
Gther comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ) - B84 B84
Transactions with shareholders o o
Dividend o o o - -142 -142
Sale of own shares to satisfy LTI-options exercised - s 7
Buy-back own shares - - -
Total transactions with shareholders - -135 -135
Closing balance at December 31, 2022 97 2,194 2,291
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Note 2022 2024
Cash flow from opcrating activities
Earnings before tax 67 -20
Reversal of non-cash lems 18 3037 1,076
Cash flow from operating activities before changes in working capital 370 1,056
Change in working capital
Current receivables ) 6 -5
Current liabilities -6 -1
Change in working capital - -6
Cash flow from operating activities 370 1,050
Cash flow from investing activities
New loans paid to joint venture - -
Repayment of loans from joint ventyre - 25
New loans paid to subsidiaries . 19 - -1,073
Repayment of loans from subsidiaries 19 327 4
Investments in subsidiaries 19 ~-310 -2,116
Cash flow from investing activities 17 -3,160
Cash flow from financing activities )
Dividend ' ' 142 133
Buy-back own shares . - -
Sale of own shares 7 8
New loans received from subsidiaries 20 236 1,073
Repayment of loans 20 127 -
New loans - 20 - 1,073
Pension payments - 1 -
Repayment of loans to subsidiaries - 20 -116 -11
Cash flow from financing activities 141 2,010
Cash flow for the period 246 -100
Cash and bank assets, opening balance 290 390

536 290

Cash and bank assets, closing balance
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Parent Company notes

NOTE1

Accounting principles

The Annual Repart for the Parent Company has been prepared
in accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act (Arsredo-
visningslagen) and the Swedish Financial Reporting Board RFR
2 - Financial reporting for legal entities (Redovisning far jurid-
iska personer).

According to the rules stated in RFR 2, the Parent Company, in
the annual report for the legal entity, must apply all EU-approved
IFRS and statements to the extent possible within the framework
of the Annual Accounts Act, and taking into account the relation-
ship between reporting and taxation. This recommendation
specifies the exceptions from IFRS that are permissible and the
necessary supplementary information.

The Parent Company's accounting principles correspond to
those for the Group with the exceptions listed below.

a) New accounting principles

None of the IFRS or IFRIC interpretations which are mandatory
for the first time for the financial year beginning January 1,
2022 have had a significant impact on the Parent Company’s
Income statement or Balance sheet.

b) Group contribution

According to the “main principie”, group contributions paid by
the Parent Company shall be accounted for as investments in
subsidiaries and group contributions received shall be accounted
far as a dividend (financial income) and included in the item
income from shares in subsidiaries. As an alternative, both
group contribution received and paid by the Parent Company
can be reported as appropriations. The Parent Company is
reporting group contributions received as a dividend.

¢) Shares in subsidiaries and associated companies

Shares in subsidiaries and associated companies are carried at
cost less any impairment. The cost includes acquisition related
costs. Dividends received are recorded as financial income.
When there is an indication that stocks and shares in subsidiar-
ies or associated companies decreased in value, an estimate of
its recoverable amountis set. !f this is lower than the carrying
amecunt a write down is done. Impairment losses are recognised
in the items Income from shares in subsidiaries and Income from
shares in associated companies.

d) Financial instruments

IFRS 9 is not applied in the Parent Company as allowed in RFR 2.
In the Parent Company financial fixed assets are valued at cost
less impairment and financtal current assets at the lower of cost
or market value. The cost of debt instrument is adjusted for the
accrual difference between what was originally paid, net of
transaction costs, and the amount payable at maturity.
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The Parent Company uses an interest rate swap to hedge the

exposure to variability in interest rates on its floating rate borrow-
ing in USD. Hedge accounting is applied for the interest rate swap
and the Parent Company does not report any unrealized gains or
losses on the swap. Interest coupons paid or received an the swap
are recognised as part of “Financial expenses and similar items”.

e} Leases

The parent company does not appty IFRS 16 in accordance with
the exception in RFR 2. The lessee recognises the lease payment
as an expense linear aver the lease term and does not recognise
any right-of-use asset or lease liability in the balance sheet. Asin
the consolidation, the non-lease companents are not separated
in leases of property, however the lease and associated non-lease
components are accounted as a single lease component.

f} Pension obligations
Pensions are recognised according to the Swedish Act Tryggande-
lagen in the Parent Company, but according to 1AS 19 for the Group.

NOTE 2
Net sales and other operating income
Inter-company transactions/Related party transactions
All of the Parent Company’s net sales, MSEK 29 (28) pertained
to subsidiaries and associated companies, while purchases from
subsidiaries amounted to MSEXK 9 (9). The sales relates mostly
to royalties and recharges.

Alt transactions in the Parent Company with related parties
occur on commercial market terms. See also note 36 for the Group.

NOTE 3
Auditing fees

2022 2021
Audit assignments, KPMG 1 1

1 1

NQTE 4
Salaries and other remuneration
Amounts in SEK {thousands) 2022 2021
Salaries and remuneration 4,028 4,420
of which Board of Directors 3,575 3,369
Pensign costs 2,306 az
Social secunty costs 1,656 1,403
Other persannel cost 1,296 1,140
Total personnel costs 9,286 7,055

The Beard of Directors, consists of 7 members (7}, of whom 3 are
women (3). Forinformation on the individual remuneration paid
to them and the CEOQ, refer to Note 7-8 for the Group. The aver-
age number of employees in the Parent Company was 0 (1).
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The CEC is employed by Concentric Pumps Lid. in the UK and the NOTE 6
cost for the CEQ, CFO, Group HR, Group Finance and Mergers & Taxes
Acquisitions, related to shareholder's services in the Parent

. . 2022 2021
Company, has been invoiced and amounts to kSEK 8,007 (8,816).
Provision according to Tryggandelagen was kSEK 2,197 (-92). Current tax - -1
See also Note 13, Pensions. Deferred tax 17 11
Total income tax 17 10
NOQTES Reconciliation ot eftective tax rate
Financial items - Net Earnings before tax 67 -20
Applicable tax rate, % 2zt
2022 2021 Effect of different tax rates in foreign
income from shares in subsidiaries 7 o countries of operation, % S
Group contribution from subsidiaries - 3 Tax attributable to previous yearrs,r %, 10 -4
Dividend from Congentric US Finance 2 Ltd 101 5 Non-taxable dividend ﬁ_om subsidiaries
Brvidend f C R Ltd : "15—'5' 1 010 and associated companies, % e T4 -19
WT end from Lencentric Pumps Lt e - Non-tax deductible write-downs
Dwidend fram Concentric Innovations AB 104 - in subsidiaries, % 59 51
Write-down of shares in Concentric US Reported effective tax rate, % ~26 49
Finance 2 Ltd _-225 - e B
Write-down of shares i d - -1,010
‘ - s Concen‘tnc Purr'ms wd Total deferred tax assets related
Write-down of shares and receivables in to tax loss carried forward 17 11
Concentric Argentina Ltd - -13 - I T
138 s

Income from sﬁares in joint venture Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forward
Dividend from Alfdox AB : T 4B 46 to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit

48 46 threugh future taxable profit is probable. Calculated tax losses
. for 2022 amounted to MSEK 28 (11).

Interest income and similar items ) 7

Interest income, external . -
Interestincome from subsidiaries 36 7
Foreign exchange rate gains - -

&2 7

Interest expenses and similar items
Interest expenses, external - k2 -3
Interest expenses tg subsidiarics . -7
Foreign exchange rate losses ' - 78 -53
Pension financial E‘xpenS-ES - -1
Otherﬁna[\cial items, external —4 772

~164 -66
Financial items - net ) . 6h -18
NOTE 7
Shares in subsidiaries
Company name Corp, Reg. No. Reg'd office Participations »% 2022 021
Concentric Purmps Lid (formerly Plc) UK 518,397 160 954 954
Concentric Americas, Inc. us 1,000 1o 750 750
Concentric Germany GmbH Germany ) 1 00 260 260
Concentric US Finance 2 Ltd UK 100 00 97 11
Concentric Skdnes Fagerhult AB 556105-8941 Orkelljunga, Sweden 30,000 100 22 22
Concentric Innovations AB 556908-4535 Stockholm, Sweden 50,000 100 2.245 2,245
Concentric SAS France 10 100 - -
Concentric Korea LLC South Korea 12,000 100 7 i 1
Concentric Srl ftaly 10,000 100 - -

4,329 4,243
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Indirect Investments in principal trading subsidiaries

Company hame Reg'd office % Changes in shares in subsidiaries 2022 2021
EMP Inc. us 100 Opening balance, acquisition value 6,117 4,001
Concentric ltasca, inc, us 100 Concentr?c Pumps Ltd . 408
Concentric Rockford, inc. us 100 Concentr.lc 7nn0\./at|ons AB - 687
Allied Enterprises LLC us 100 Concenm»c US Finance 2 L.td 312 11
Concentric Birmingham ttd. UK 100 Concentr‘lc Germ‘any GmbH B 260
Concentric Hof GmbH Germany 100 Conc-enrrlc Americas Irjc; - — 750
LICOS Trucktee GmbH Germany 100 Closlflg balance, act!msltmn value 6,428 6,117
Concentric Pumps Pune (Pyt) Ltd. India 100 Opening l?alance, write-downs -1.874 ~852
Concentric Pu mpé {(Suzhou) co, Ltd. China 100 Concentric Pumps Ltd - -1,010
Concentric Argentina Ltd - -12
Concentric US Finance 2 Ltd =225 -
Closing balance, write-downs -2,099 1,874
Closing balance, carrying amount 4,329 4,243
NOTE 8
Shares in joint venture
Company hame Corp, Reg. No Reg'd office Participations % 2022 2021
Alfdex AB 556647-7278 Landskrona 50,000 50% 10 10

Alfdex AB is a joint venture with Aifa Laval Holding AB, and
Concentric AB has 50% of the shares and voting rights. Alfdex’s

product is based on separation technrology for cleaning of crank-

case gases in diesel engines for vehicles, electric generators

NOTE9
Long-term loans receivable from subsidiaries
and joint ventures

and ships. Concentric ABs share of profit for 2022 is MSEK 62
(81) and share of equity per year-end 2022 is MSEK 138 (116).

See also Note 19 for the Group.

NOTE 10
Other current receivables

2022 2021
2022 2021 L .
Prepaid insurance premiums 3 1
Total loans 1,180 1,145 Prepatd interest costs 5 7
of which reported as short-term loans -136 -128 Other prepaid expenses 1 2
Long-term loans 4,044 1,017 9 10
The toans relate primarily to a loan amounted to MUSD 112.5
(MSEK 1,174). Maturity date 26 October 2025, The loan will be NOTE 11
repaid with MUSD 12.5 per year (MSEK 130). Both average and Cash and cash equivalents
ctosing interest rate was 2.875%. 2022 2021
Both long-term loans from subsidiaries and and short-term
Bank accounts and cash 536 290

receivables from subsidiaries are classified as leans and

receivabies.
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NOTE 12
Share capital

NOTES ~ PARENT COMPANY

See also note 14, Earnings per share, and note 24, Shareholder’s equity, for the Group.

Changes in share capital Total
Number of cutstanding shares:
Number of registered shares December 31, 2020 38,297,600
Numher of gwn shares December 31, 2020 -428,0607
Number of outstanding shares December 31, 2020 37,869,533
Number of registered shares December 31, 2021 38,297,600
Number of pwn shares December 31, 2021 -367,692
Number of outstanding shares December 3:5,_‘2021 37,929,908
Number of registered shares December 31, 2022 38,297,600
Number of own shares December 31, 2022 -318,100
Number of outstanding shares December 31, 2022 37,979,500
2022 2021
Num ber of average outstanding share_s ) N 37,9760,777507 ) 37.902,337
Number of shares adjusted for ongoing option programmes 69,386 117,447
Number of average outstanding shares, after dilution 38,030,136 38,019,784

The cash dividend decided by the Annual General Meeting 2022
was SEK 3.75 (3.50) per share or a total of MSEK 142.2 {132.5).
As in 2021 Concentric AB did net buy-back any own shares dur-
ing 2022, but have sold 49,592 (60,375) of its own shares, to
exercise and satisfy LTI-programme.

The total number of holdings cf its own shares at year-end
2022 was 108,153 (115,965), which represented 0.3% (0.3} of
the total number of shares of the Company. in addition te this,
the total number of own shares transferred to an Employee

NOTE 13
Pensions and similar obligations

Share Ownership Trust is 209,947 (251,727). Including these
shares the company’s heldings was 318,100 (367,692} repre-
senting 1.0% (1.0) of the total number of shares.

Annual General Meeting 2018-2022 have decided upon five
long-term performance based incentive programmes, under
which a number of senior executives and key employees partici-
pating in the schemes, entitled them to receive employee stock
options that are entitled them to acquire Concentric shares. Far
further details, see note 8 for the Group.

2022 2021 2022 2021

FPG/PR} pension plan ) o 20 18 Opening balance, 1 January 18 18
Pravision according to Tryggandelagen,

. e . . . . Personnel cost 2 -

Pension obligation is a defined benefit plan and is recognised S ) - -

. ) Provision according to Tryggandelagen,

according to Tryggandelagen. See also note 4, Salaries and Financial cost 1 4

other remuneration, Payment ’ ’ _1 ) 71"

Closing balance, 31 Deéember ) 20 18
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NOTE 14
Maturity analysis for financial liabilities

_O0-6months  7-12months  13-60months >80 months Total
Nominal amount 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Pensions and similar cbligations - - - - - 20 18 20 18
Term loan 65 57 65 57 783 791 - - 913 905
Multicurrency revolving loan - - - - 261 226 - - 261 226
Long-term loans payable to subsidiaries - - = - 1,160 866 1,298 1,021 2,455 1,987
Shart-term loans payable to subsidiaries 88 167 54 54 - - - - 142 221
Accounts payable and ather current liahilities 8 10 - - - - - - 8 10
Totai financial liabilities 161 234 119 141 2,204 1,983 1,319 1,039 3,803 3,367
Expected total future interest payments 52 26 46 5 164 115 - - 262 166
NOTE 15 NOTE 18
Interest-bearing liabilities Reversal of non-cash items
2022 2021 2022 2021
Term loan 913 905 Unrealised financial
Multicurrency revolving loan 261 226 exchange rate differences 78 53
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,174 1,131 Write-down of shares in
Concentric Pumps UK Ltd. - 1,010
Long-term  Shart-term Write-down of shares and receivables
borrowings  borrowings in Chivilcoy, Argentina - 13
Write-down of shares in
Term loan 783 130 Coneentric US Finance 2 Ltd. 225
Multicurrency revolving loan - 261 303 1,076
Total interest-bearing liabilities 793 391
For additional information see Notes 26-28 for the Group.
NOTE 19
Investments in subsidiaries
NOTE 16
Other current [iabilities 2022 2021
2022 2021 Short-term loan to subsidiaries o327 ~1,073
] Repayment loan from subsidiaries - 4
Accrued mtevrest cost . g Shares in Concentric Americas Inc -~ -750
Accrued audit fee 1 B Shares in Concentnic Lucerne - ~-687
Accrued personnel cost - : Shares in Concentric Germany GmbH - -260
Other accrued expenses & Shares in Concentric Pumps Ltd, UK - -408
2 Sharesin Concentnic US Finance 3 Ltd. - -11
Liabilities for VAT of MSEK - (-} are not included in note 14 Shares in Concentric US Finance 2 Ltd. -310 -
related to financial liabilities. Net investments 17 -3,185
T
NOTE 17 NQTE 20

Contingent liabilities

2022 2021

General coliateral guarantee
for toans in subsidiaries 30 31
Other contingent liabilities 1 1
31 32

The above commitments are not expected to resultin any pay-
ments. General guarantee regarding the loans are for the opera-
tions in China.

Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities

External Leans te

Loans subsidiaries Total
Opening balance,
January 1, 2022 1,131 2,208 3,339
Cash flow -127 447 320
Qther nan-cashitems 170 -28 144
Closing balance,
December 34, 2022 1,174 2,629 3,803



NOTE 21

Proposed appropriation of earnings

The Annual General Meeting has the following funds
at its disposatl:

Amountsin kSEK

Profit brought forward 2,109,842
Mel income for the year 84,193
Total 2,194,035

The Board of Directors proposed appropriation of earnings:

Amounts in KSEK

Dividend of SEK 4.00 per share

to the shareholders 151,918
Profit to carry forward 2,042,117
Total 2,194,035

The record date for determining whe is entitled to receive dividends
is proposed to be Thursday 20 April, 2023. In view of the Board
of Directors’ proposal to the Annual General Meeting to be held
April 18, 2023 to decide on the distribution of a dividend of SEK
4,00 per share, the Board hereby makes the following statement
in accordance with Chapter 18, Section 4 of the Swedish Compa-
nies Act.

The propesed dividend reduces the Company’s equity to assets
ratio from 38% to 36% and the Group's equity to assets ratio from
46% t0 44%. The Company's and the Group’s non-restricted equity
will be sufficient in relation to the nature, scope and risks of the
business. In making this assessment, the board has considered,
among other things, the Company’s and the Group’s growth his-
torically, its budgeted growth and the financial situation. The
board has evaluated the Company’s and the Group’s financial
position and the Company’s and the Group’s possibilities to fulfit
their obligations in the short and long-term perspective. The
Company's and the Group's solvency are assessed to be good with

NOTES - PARENT COMPANY

regard to the business in which the Group is active.

The dividend will not affect the Company's or the Group’s ability
to fulfil its respective payment obligatiuns, The Company and
the Group have access to both short and long-term credit facili-
ties. These facilities may be utilised at short notice, for which
reason the board assesses that the Company's and the Group's
preparedness to handle both changes in the liquidity and unree-
ognised events are good.

The board takes the view that the Company and Lhe Group
have the requirements to take future business risk and also to
bear possible losses. The dividend will not negativety affect the
Company's and the Group’s ability to make further commercially
motivated investments in accordance with the board's plans.

in view of the above, and based on what the board is other-
wise aware of, the board considers, after a comprehensive
assessment of the financial position of the Company and Group,
the propesed dividend is in accordance with Chapter 17, Section
3, paragraphs 2 and 3 of the Swedish Companies Act. The Board
considers, therefore, that the propesed dividend is justifiable in
view of the requirements imposed by the nature, extent and
risks associated with the equity of the Company and its balance
sheet, and the liquidity and financial position of both the Parent
Company and the Group.

The Board of Directors and the President declare that the con-
solidated financial statements have been prepared in accord-
ance with IFRS, as adopted by the EU, and give a fair view of the
Group's financial position and results of operations. The finan-
cial statements of the Parent Company have been prepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in
Sweden and give a fair view of the Parent Company’s financial
position and results of operations. The Board of Directors’
Report for the Concentric Group and the Parent Company pro-
vides a fair view of the development of the Group’s and the Parent
Company's operations, financiat position and results of opera-
tions and describes material risks and uncertainties facing the
Parent Company and the companies included in the Group.

Stockholm 23 March, 2023

Petra Sundstrom
Mambor of the Rnard

Anders Nielsen
UHarman of Budrd

Martin Skald
Member of the Board

Claes Magnus Akesson
Member of the Board

Karin Gunnarsson
Member of the Board

Joachim Rosenberg
Member of Lhe Board

Susanna Schneeberger
Member of the Board

Martin Kunz
President and CEO

Our audit report was submitted on 23 March, 2023
KPMG AB

Joakim Thilstedt
Authorised Public Accountant



. AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s report

To the general meeting of the sharehotders of Concentric AB,
corp. id 556828-4995

Report on the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts

Opinions

We have audited the annual accounts and consclidated
actounts of Conceniric AB for the year 2022, The annual
accounts and consolidated accounts of the company are
included on pages 68-119 in this document.

in gur epinien, the annual accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act, and present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the parent com-
pany as of 31 December 2022 and its financial performance and
cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with the Annual
Accounts Act. The consolidated accounts have been prepared in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act and present fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the group as of 31
December 2022 and their financial performance and cash flow
for the year then ended in accordance with International Finan-
cial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the EU, and the
Annual Accounts Act. The statutory administration report is
consistent with the other parts of the annual accounts and con-
solidated accounts.

We therefore recommend that the general meeting of share-
holders adopts the income statement and balance sheet for the
parent campany and the group.

Our opinions in this report on the the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts are consistent with the content of the
additional report that has been submitted to the parent compa-
ny's audit committee in accordance with the Audit Regulation
{537/2014) Article 11.

Basis for Opinions
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Stand-
ards on Auditing (ISA) and generally accepted auditing stand-
ards in Sweden. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities section. We
are independent of the parent company and the group in accord-
ance with professional ethics for accountants in Sweden and
have otherwise fulfilled cur ethical responsibitities in accord-
ance with these requirements This includes that, based on the
best of our knowledge and belief, no prohibited services
referred to in the Audit Regulation {537/2014} Article 5.1 have
been provided to the audited company or, where applicable, its
parent company or its contralled companies within the EU.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opimons.

120

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters of the audit are those matters that, in our pro-
fessional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
annual accounts and censolidated accounts of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of, and in forming our opinion thereon, the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts as a whole, but we do not provide a sepa-
rate opinion on these mafters.

Valuation of goodwill and other intangible assets and
parent company’s shares in subsidiaries

See disclosure 15 and accouating principles on page 88 in the annual
account and consolidated accounts Tor detailed information and description
af the matter.

Description of key audit matter

The book value of goodwill and other intangible assets amount
to SEK 1,890 million as of 31 December 2022, representing 42%
of total assets. Goodwill shall be subject to an annuat impair-
ment test. Qther intangible assets are tested when impairment
indicators are identified.

Impairment tests are complex and include significant levels of
judgments. The calculation of the assets’ recoverable amount is
based on forecasts and discounted future cash flow projections,
which are established with reference to factors such as esti-
mated discount rates, estimated remaining useful life, revenue-
and profit forecasts and predicted long-term growth that may be
influenced by management’s assessments.

The parent company’s interests in group companies amount to
SEK 4,329 million as of 31 December 2022. If the book value of
the interests exceeds the equity in the respective group com-
pany, an impairment test s performed foliowing the same meth-
odology and using the same assumptions as for the tests in the
consolidated accounts.

Response in the audit

We have obtained and assessed the group’s impairment tests to
ensure they have been carried out in accordance with the tech-
nique stipulated in IFRS.



Furthermore, we have evaluated management’s future cash
flow forecasts and the underlying assumptions, which includes
the long-term growth rate, estimated remaining useful life and
the assumed discount rate, by obtaining and evaluating the
group’s written decumentation and plans. We have alsc consid-
ered previous years' forecastsin relation to the actual outcome.

Animportant part of our work has also been to evaluate how
changes to the assumpticns may impact the valuation. The eval-
uation has been carried out by obtaining and assessing the
group’s sensitivity analysis.

We have also analysed the disclosures in the Annual Report
and considered whether they accurately reflect the assumptions
that group management apply in their valuation and whether
they, in alt material respects, are in line with the disclosures
required by IFRS.

Pensions in the UK

See disclosure 25 and accounting principles on pages 90-91 11 the annual
account and consolidated accounts for detailed information and description
of the matter.

Description of key audit matter

The Group's share of the pension schemes’ net deficit for the UK
was SEK 119 million, consisting of defined benefit obligation of
SEX 1,229 million and plan assets of SEK 1,110 million. Given
the size of the schemes, small changes in assumptions and esti-
mates used to value the Group’s retirement benefit obligations
have a significant impact on the Group's share of the retirement
benefit obligations.

Response in the audit

we challenged the key assumptions supporting the Group's
retirement benefit obligations valuation, with input from our
own actuarial specialists. This included a comparison of the dis-
count rate, inflation and life expectancy assumptions used
against externally derived data. We considered the adequacy of
the Group's disclosures in respect of the key assumptions,
including the sensitivity of the deficit ta changes.
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Other Information than the annual accounts and
consolidated accounts

This document also contains other information than the annual
accounts and consolidated accounts and is found on pages 1-49
and 126-141. The other information comprises also of the remu-
neration report which we obtained prior to the date of this audi-
tor’s report. The Board of Directors and the Managing Director
are responsible for this other information.

Qur opinicn on the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts does not caver this other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion regarding this other
information.

In connection with our audit of the annual accounts and con-
solidated accounts, cur responsibility is to read the information
identified above and consider whether the information is mate-
rially inconsistent with the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts, in this procedure we alse take into account our knowl-
edge otherwise obtained in the audit and assess whether the
information ctherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we, based on the work performed concerning this informa-
tien, conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have noth-
ing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and
the Managing Director
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsi-
ble for the preparation of the annual accounts and consclidated
accounts and that they give a fair presentation in accordance
with the Annual Accounts Act and, concerning the consolidated
accounts, in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU. The
Board of Directors and the Managing Director are also responsi-
ble for such internal controi as they determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of annual accounts and consolidated
accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the annual accounts and consolidated accounts
The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsi-
ble for the assessment of the company’s and the group’s ability



@ ~vonor'saeroRT

to continue as a going concern. They disclose, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting. The going concern basis of accounting is
however not applied if the Board of Directors and the Managing
Director intend to liquidate the company, to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee shall, without prejudice to the Board of
Director’s responsibilities and tasks in general, among other
things oversee the company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s responsibility
Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the annual accounts and consolidated accounts as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
I1SAs and generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstate-
ments can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these annual accounts and consolidated accounts.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise pro-
fessional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
annual accounts and consolidated accounts, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures respon-
sive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resutting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may invalve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.
QObtain an understanding of the company’s internal control rel-
evant to our audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s

.

internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polictes used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related dis-
closures made by the Board of Directors and the Managing
Director.

- Conctude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’
and the Managing Director’s, use of the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts. We also draw a conclusion, based on the audit evi-
dence obtained, as to whether any material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the company’s and the group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion about the annual accounts and consolidated accounts.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, tuture events or
conditions may cause a company and a group to cease te con-
tinue as a going cencerm.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
annual accounts and conselidated accounts, including the dis-
closures, and whether the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

- Obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the group to express an opinion on the consolidated
accounts. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely respon-
siple for aur opinions.

We must inform the Board of Directors of, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit. We must alse inform
of significant audit findings during our audit, including any sig-
nificant deficiencies ininternal contro! that we identified.

We must alse provide the Board of Directors with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethicat requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
{o bear on our independence, and where applicable, measures
that have been taken to eliminate the threats or related safe-
guards.

From the matters communicated with the Board of Directors,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the annual accounts and consolidated accounts,
including the most important assessed risks for material mis-
statement, and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in the auditor’s report unless law or regulation
prectudes disclosure about the matter.



Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Auditor’s audit of the administration and the proposed
appropriations of profit or loss

Opinions

In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts, we have also audited the administration of the Board
of Directors and the Managing Director of Concentric AB for the
year 2022 and the proposed appropriations of the company’s
profit er loss.

We recommend to the general meeting of shareholders that
the profit be appropriated in accordance with the proposal in
the statutory administration report and that the members of the
Board of Directors and the Managing Director be discharged
from liability for the financial year.

Basis for Opiniens
We conducted the audit in accordance with generaily accepted
auditing standards in Sweden. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
section. We are independent of the parent company and the
group in accordance with professicnal ethics for accountants in
Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our ethical responsibilities
in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffi-
cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and

the Managing Director

The Board of Directors is responsible for the proposal for appro-
priations of the company's profit or loss. At the proposal of a
dividend, this includes an assessment of whether the dividend is
justifiable considering the requirements which the company’s
and the group’s type of operations, size and risks place on the
size of the parent company’s and the group’s equity, consolida-
tion requirements, liquidity and position in general.

The Board of Directors is responsible for the company's organ-
ization and the administration of the company’s affairs. This
includes among other things continucus assessment of the com-
pany's and the group’s financial situation and ensuring that the
company's organization is designed so that the accounting,
management of assets and the company's financial affairs oth-
erwise are controlled in a reassuring manner.

The Managing Director shall manage the ongoing administra-
tion according to the Board of Directors’ guidelines and instruc-
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tions and among cther matters take measures that are neces-
sary to fulfill the company's accounting in accordance with law
and handle the management of assets in a reassuring manner.

Auditor's responsibility

Our objective concerning the audit of the administration, and
thereby our opinion about discharge from liability, is to obtain
audit evidence to assess with areasonable degree of assurance
whether any member of the Beoard of Directors or the Managing
Director in any material respect:

- has undertaken any action or been guilty of any omission
which can give rise to liability to the company, or

- in any other way has acted in contravention of the Companies
Act, the Annual Accounts Act or the Articles of Association,

Our objective concerning the audit of the proposed appropria-
tions of the company's profit or loss, and thereby our opinion
about this, is to assess with reasonable degree of assurance
whether the proposal isin accordance with the Companies Act.

Reascnable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is nota
guaraniee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards in Sweden will always detect
actions or omissions that can give rise to liability to the com-
pany, or that the proposed appropriatiens of the company's
profit or loss are not in accordance with the Companies Act.

As parl of an audit in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in Sweden, we exercise professional judg-
ment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the
audit. The examination of the administration and the proposed
appropriations of the company’s profit or loss is based primarily
on the audit of the accounts. Additional audit procedures per-
formed are based on our prefessicnal judgment with starting
point in risk and materiality. This means that we focus the exam-
ination on such actions, areas and relaticnships that are mate-
rial for the operations and where deviations and violations
would have particular importance for the company's situation.
We examine and test decisions undertaken, support fer deci-
sions, actions taken and other circumstances that are relevant
to our opinion cencerning discharge from tiability. As a basis for
our opinion on the Board of Directors’ proposed appropriations
of the company's profit or loss we examined the Board of Direc-
tors’ reasoned statement and a selection of supporting evidence
in order to be able to assess whether the proposal isin accord-
ance with the Companies Act.
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The auditor’s examination of the Esef report
Opinion
In addition to our audit of the annual accounts and consolidated
accounts, we have also examined that the Board of Directors
and the Managing Director have prepared the annual accounts
and consclidated accounts in a format that enables uniform
electronic reparting (the Esef repart) pursuant to Chapter 16,
Section 4(a} of the Swedish Securities Market Act (2007:528) for
Concentric AB for year 2022,

Our examination and our opinion relate only to the statutory
requirements,

In our opinicn, the Esef report has been prepared in a format
that, in all material respects, enables uniform electrenic reporting.

Basis for gpinion
We have performed the examination in accordance with FAR's
recommendation RevR 18 Examination of the Esef report. Our
responsibility under this recommendation is described in more
detail in the Auditors’ responsibility section. We are independ-
ent of Concentric AB in accordance with professional ethics for
accountants in Sweden and have otherwise fulfilled our ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our epinion.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and

the Managing Director

The Board of Directors and the Managing Director are responsi-
ble for the preparation of the Esef report in accordance with the
Chapter 16, Section 4(a) of the Swedish Securities Market Act
(2007:528), and for such interna! control that the Board of Direc-
tors and the Managing Director determine is necessary to pre-
pare the Esef report without material misstatements, whether
due to fraud orerror.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to obtain reasonable assurance whether
the Esef report isin all material respects prepared in a format
that meets the requirements of Chapter 16, Section 4(a) of the
Swedish Securities Market Act (2007:528), based on the proce-
dures performed.

RevR 18requires us to plan and execute procedures to achieve
reasonable assurance that the Esef repert is prepared in a format
that meets these requirements.

Reascnable assurance is a high tevel of assurance, butitis
not a guarantee that an engagement carried out according to
RevR 18 and generally accepted auditing standards in Sweden
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Mis-
statements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the Esefreport.

The audit firm applies 1SQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that
Perform Audits and Reviews of Financial Statements, and other
Assurance and Related Services Engagements and accordingly
maintains a comprehensive system of quality controt, including
documented policies and procedures regarding compliance with
professional ethical requirements, professicnal standards and
legal and regulatory requirements.

The examination involves obtaining evidence, through various
procedures, that the Esef report has been prepared in a format
that enables uniform elecironic reporting of the annual
accounts and consolidated accounts. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement in the report, whether due to
fraud or error. In carrying out this risk assessment, and in order
to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
the auditor considers those elements of internal control that are
relevant to the preparation of the Esef report by the Board of
Directors and the Managing Director, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of those internal
controls. The examination also includes an evaluation of the
appropriateness and reasonableness of the assumptions made
by the Board of Directors and the Managing Director.

The procedures mainly include a validation that the Esef
report has been prepared in a valid XHMTL format and a recon-
ciliation of the Esef report with the audited annual accounts and
consolidated accounts.

Furthermore, the procedures also include an assessment of
whether the consolidated statement of financial performance,
financial position, changes in equity, cash flow and disclosures
in the Esefreport have been marked with iXBRL in accordance
with what follows from the Esef requlation.



Auditor’s report on the corporate governance statement
Itis the board of directors who is responsible for the cerporate
governance statement for the year 2022 on pages 50-67 and
that 1t has been prepared in accorddiive willi tie Annual
Accounts Act.

Our examination has been conducted in accordance with
FAR's auditing standard RevR 16 The auditor's examinaticn of the
cerperate governance statement. This means that our examina-
tion of the corporate governance statement is different and sub-
stantially less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance
with International Standards on Auditing and generally accepted
auditing standards in Sweden. We believe that the examination
has provided us with sufficient basis for cur opinions.

A corporate governance statement has been prepared. Bisclo-
sures in accordance with chapter 6 section 6 the second para-
graph points 2-6 the Annual Accounts Act and chapter 7 section
31 the second paragraph the same law are consistent with the
annual accounts and the consolidated accounts and are in
accordance with the Annual Accounts Act,

Auditer’s opinion regarding the statutory sustainability report
It is the board of directors who is responsible for the sustainability
report for the year 2022 on pages 34-47,126-133 and 136-137
and that itis prepared in accordance with the Annual Accounts Act.

Qur examination has been conducted in accordance with FAR:s
auditing standard RevR 12 The auditor's opinion regarding the
statutory sustainability report. This means that cur examination
of the statutory sustainability report is different and substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Inter-
national Standards on Auditing and generally accepted auditing
standards in Sweden. We believe that the examination has pro-
vided us with sufficient basis for cur opinion.

A statutory sustainability report has been prepared.

KPMG AB, Box 382, 101 27, Stockholm, was appointed auditor
of Concentric AB by the general meeting of the shareholders on
the 21 April 2022. KPMG AB cor auditors operating at KPMG AB
have been the company’s auditor since 2012.

Stockholm 23 March 2023

KPMG AB

Joakim Thilstedt
Authorized Public Accountant

125

AUDITOR’S REPORT



. SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING - GRI

Sustainability reporting - GRI

Concentric describes its work with sustainability, and reports on fulfilment of financial,
envirenmental and social goals and indicators, in the Sustainability Report. This can be

found on pages 34-47 of the Annual Report 2022,

Concentric has reported the information cited in this GRI Content Index tor the penod 1st January 2021 to 31st December 2022 with reference to the
GRI Standards. Due to the GRI Standards being updated in January 2023, untike last year, Concentric is not able to report in accordance with the
Standards as the business has not yet undertaken a materiality analysis in accordance with the detailed requirements of GR! 3: Maternal Topics 2021,
As a materiality analysis excrcise will take place in the next year, Concentric expects it will once again be able to report in accordance with the GRI
Standards in1ts FY 2023 Sustainability Report, The following Standards have been used for this repart: GRI 1: Foundation 2021, GRI 2: General Dis-
closures 2021, GRI 3: Material Topics 2021 and the relevant GRI Topic Standards.

Scope of the report

The Sustainability Report refers to the 2022 financial year and
encompasses the operations of the entire Group, inctuding sub-
sidiaries. Concentric's ambition is to provide a comprehensive

account of its sustainability work and clearty present both nega-

tive and positive developments. The sustainability work draws
on the policies and guidelines governing the manner in which
the business is conducted based on the commitments made, for
example, to the Global Compact. Like in the 2021 GR! Index, in
this year’s report, Concentric again references the previously
conducted materiality anatysis. This materiality analysis helped
Concentric to determine the issues that are the most important
to the business and its stakeholders and which should therefore
be prioritised in its Sustainability Report. The 2022 GRI Index
page references can be found on pages 130-132 of the Annual
Report 2022.

» Noise pollution

= CO, and other harmful emissions

- Compliance and reporting irreqularities
- Procurement practices

Materiality analysis

Materiality analysis is a method used to identify the topics
which should be considered as priority areas of focus for an
organisation. The materiality analysis involved capturing
numerous stakeholder insights from within and outside of the
organisation. This included in-depth interviews with key staff
members, survey respanses from identified stakeholders, inter-
nal investigations and standards, de facto-standards and legis-
\ative requirement in the area of sustainability. The information
was evaluated based upon the opportunities and risks of differ-
ent aspects related to Concentric’s operations - for long-term
value creation both within the Group and the wider society. The
results of this evaluation identified a number of themes which
have hetped inform Concentric’s approach to sustainability thus
far and what should be reported on.

In 2023, Concentric will be undertaking another and more
in-depth materiality analysis exercise which will inform the
areas the business reports on in next year’s Sustainability
Report based on stakeholder priorities and expectations.

= Preduct and supplier responsibility
- Ethics and value creation

- Resource efficiency
« Climate impact
- Equatity and diversity

» Effluents and waste

» Hazardous goods and processes
« Training and organisaticn culture
- Creation of wealth

- Job ereation and skills development
~ Transparent communication

+ Gecupational HES

= Contribution te local society

MATERIALITY FOR EXTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS

MATERIALITY FOR INTERNAL STAKEHOLDERS
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Concentric’s management approach to sustainability

Material aspects
of sustainability

Key risks and why material

Governance

SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING - GRI

Follow-up through GRI indicator
aspects for stakeholders

Ethics and Value
Creation (DMA Eco-
nemic Performance &
Procurement Practices)

Product Responsibility,
Climate Impact (DMA
Product and Service
Labelling and Emis-
sions) and Resource
Efficiency (DMA Materi-
als and Energy)

Responsible Suppliers
(DMA Supplier Environ-
mental and Human
Rights Assessment)

Work Envirgnment
(DMA Occupational
Health and Safety}

Diversity and Equal
COpportunity (DMA
Diversity and Equal
Opportunity)

» Reputational loss
« Legal cost of breaches
» Reduced shareholder value

Concentric’s lung-term profitability
1s fundamental to value creation

- Long-term viability of organisation
= Impact on society

- Legal cost of breaches

- Reduced shareholder value

Concentric develops innovative
engine and hydraulic pumps which
increase efficiency and reduce
emissions, thereby reducing the
impact on the climate of Trucks
and Cff-highway mabile equipment
is strategically important to the
business.

= Reputational lass
« Impact on society
« Continuity of supply

Itis strategically important that

the large quantities of materials
purchased for Concentnc’s pumps
are manufactured under responsible
conditions

« Safety of employees

- Legal cost of breaches

» Reduced shargholder value
fram lower productivity

The work enviranment within
Concentric’s manufacturing
operations is exposed to many
different risks for accidents
and other work-related injuries

- Reputational loss
(employer brand)
« Lack ot innovatibn
- Unfair treatment of employees

Legat costs from breaches in
human rights

We helieve that a long-term employ-
ment policy should offer a work-
place that is both characterised by,
and protects equality and diversity

« Ethical guidetines

- Code of Conduct

« Reporting of vielations based upon
Concentric’s values and policies

« Whislle-blowing poliey

Financial targets

Monthly business reviews

Risk management process

.

Environmental policy

1SO/TS 16649 Quality Control
Systems

Customer surveys

Product design tollgate process

« FMEA

» Durability and performance
testing

Emissions legislation testing both
for On- and Off-highway vehicles
150 14001 Environmental Man-
agement System

Continuous improvement and
Lean manufacturing methodolo-
gies driven by Concentric Business
Excellence programme

Social policy

Code of Conduct for suppliers
180/TS 16949 Quality Control
Systems

1S0 14001 Environmental
Management System

Supplier selection and assessment
procedures

Supplier days/visits and on-site
audits

.

- Accident and injury statistics

= Clack card records

» Skills matrices

Training and development plans
Preventative healthcare and
Employee Wellness programmes
« 6S methodology

- OHSAS 18001

- Internal and external audits

- Code of Conduct

« Employee handhook

= Revrusburent procedures
- Equality targets

» Nomination committee
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201-1 Direct economic value
generated and distributed

204-1 Proportion of spending on
local suppliers

301-2 Recycled input materials used

302-3 Energy intensity

308-1 New suppliers that were
sereened using environmental
criteria

414-1 New suppliers that were

screened using environmental
entena

403-9 Work related injuries

2-7 Employees

A05-1 Niversity of governance
bodies and employees
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Facts and key performance indicators for sustainability

GRI reference Stakeholder Key performance indicator B 2022 L 221 .
Hydrau- Hydrau-
Ethics & value creation Engines lics Group Engines lics Group
Direct economic Customer Revenues generated from the
value generated, sale of engine and hydraulic
201-1 products 2,691 1,365 4,056 1,115 1,000 2,115
Direct economic Supphers Operating costs: procurement
value distributed, of goods and services, inctuding
201-1 depreciation and amortisation -1,717 -828  -2,500 -623 -618 -1,241
Employees Wages, salaries, pensions
and other benefits, including
competence development -547 -296 -879 -220 -229 -470
Financial Interest and similar iterms
Institutions related to providers of capital nfa nfa  -43 n/a n/a -13
The Slate Tax expenses and other
payments made to government nfa n/a -133 n/a n/a -52
Shareholders  Own share buy-backs
3 and dividends __nfa _nfa  -135 nfa n/a -125
Direct economic Shareholders  Earnings/{deficit) retained after
value retained, 201-1 own share buy-backs & dividends n/a n/a 566 n/a n/a 213
Procurement Suppliers Proportion of expenditure
practices, 204-1 with local suppliers ” 33% 77% 46% 64 % 62% 63%
Responsible suppliers
New suppliers that Suppliers Percentage of new suppliers
were screened using that were screened using
environmental crit- environmental criteria
era, 308-1 100% 100% 100% 160% 100% 100%
New suppliers that Suppliers Percentage of new suppliers
were screened using that were screened using
social criteria, 414-1 human nghts criteria 100% 100% 100% 160% 100% 100%
Work enviranment Women Men Total Waomen Men Total
Work-related Employees Work-retated injuries that caused
injuries, 403-9 at least one day of absence
expressed as the number of 57 10
incidents relative to the total 183,518 197,567
days worked for all employees days days
Lost days, 403-9 Emplaoyees Total number of absence days
due to work-related injuries as
a percentage of the total days
worked for all employees 0.04% 0.02%
Absenteeism, 403-9  Employees Total number of all absence
days as a percentage of total
days worked for all employees 1.0% 3.4% 4.6% 1.3% 2.5% 3.8%
Wark-related
fatalities, 403-9 Employees Total number 0 0 o) 1] o] 0

1) Betimtion of local supplier based upon ability to deliver from the supplier's manutacturing premrses to Concentrre’s facility using road transportation only.
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Facts and key performance indicators for sustainability

SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING - GRI

GRI reference Stakeholder Key performance indicator 2022 o 2021
Diversity & equal opportunity Women Men Total Women Men Total
Age and gender
distribution, 2-7 and 405-1 Colleagues” s age 25 8 79 87 20 65 85
age 26-35 33 200 234 26 187 213
age 36-45 52 174 o ___?26 47 192 239
aga 46-RA 54 188 242 50 205 255
> age 56 54 219 273 44 201 245
Total number 201 861 1,062 187 850 4,037
Managers age 26-35 1 17 18 2 14 16
age 36-45 1 29 30 2 28 30
age 46-55 3 32 35 2 30 32
zage 56 4 11 15 2 15 17
o Total number 9 89 a8 8 87 95
Executives age 36-45 -z 2 - 1 1
age 46-55 - 2 2 - 2 2
> age 56 1 2 3 1 i 2
Total number 1 & 7 1 4 5
Board of Directors  age 46-55 2 o2 4 2 2 n
>age 56 1 2 3 1 2 3
) Total number 3 4 7 3 4 7
3} Age and gender distribution excludes any part-time/temporary workers employed through agencies.
GRI reference Stakehalder Key performance indicator
2022 headcount by contract type Men Women Total
lx::;ﬁ;:;ﬁfﬁ:f Temp/perm Permanent 808 359 1,167
contract and gender, 2-7Y Temporary 66 31 97
Total 874 390 1,264
Permanent Temporary Total
Region China 16 - 16
Germany 185 10 195
India 136 4Li 180
Sweden 1 - ) 1
UK 154 2 156
USA 673 41 714
Other 2 - 2
Total 1,167 97 1,264
Men Wortien Total
Employment type  Full time o 868 377 1,245
Parttime 6 13 19
Total 874 390 1,264
1) Caleulated as actual head count at year end.
GRI reference Stakeholder Hey performance indicator 2022 2021
Product responsibility, climate impacts and resource efficiency
Recycled input matenals Society Percentage of recycled material by weight
used, 301-2 used within grey iron and aluminium 46% 27.1%
Energy intensity, 302-3 Society Group censumption of gas and electricity 10.90 kWh/;SlEH 12.04 kWh/IgSIEK
ales ales

Concentric use diesel in generators as & backup pewer solution but the actual dicsel usage in the year was negligible.
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2022 GRI Index

Concentric has reported the information cited in this GRI Con-
tent Index for the period 1st January 2021 to 31st December

20272 with reference to the GRI Standards.

The intention is for the GRI Index to be used as a cross-
reference list to find where in the annual report the information
is located. In some cases supplementary or compiete answers to

GRi-referenced

a question are provided in the comment field of the index table.
The information in the Sustainability Report has not been

reviewed by a third party. Other caleutations of indicators and

key performance indicators have not been reviewed by an exter-
nal party, with the exception of those that are included in the
legal section of the annual report.

GRI External
code Descriptien/findicator Reference Page Comments/omission assurance
Organisational profile
2-1 Name of the organisation Board of Directors’ Report 64
2-1 Location of arganisation’s headquarters Aqdresses 137
2-1 Countries where the organisation operates  Summary 20-21
Group Note 4 Segment Reporting 89-90
21 Nature of ownership and legal form The Concentric Share 44-45 Yes
2-6 Primary brands, products, and/or services Engine Products 12
Hydraulic Products 14
2-6 Markets served End-Markets 22-25
2-6 Scale of the reporting organisation Board of Directors’ Report 64-77
Consclidated Income Statement 78 Yes
Consolidated Balance Sheet 79
2-6 Organisation's supply chain Supply Chain 42
2-6 Significant changes during the reporting Board of Directors’ Report 6477
period regarding size, structure, cwnership  Group Note 35 Investments 104 Yes
or supply chain in subsidiaries
2-7 Total workforce by employment type, Concentric employees by 41
employment contract and gender country (FTES) g1
Group Note 6 Average number
of employees 126-127
Facts and key performance
indicators for sustainability
2-28 Memberships in organisations and/or Malcolm Baldrige, investors in
national or international advocacy Excellence & European Founda-
organisations tion for Quality Management
3-3 Description of how the Company Sustainability Report 34-43

addresses the precautionary principle
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GRI External

code Description/indicator Reference Page Comments/omission assurance

Strategy and analysis

2-22 Statement from the CEQ CEO Letter 6-9

Ethics & integrity

2-23 Policy commitments Values 3
Social issues 40-42

Governance

2-9 Corporate Governance Integrated governance 35
processes Corporate 46-59 Yes
Governance in Concentric

Stakeholder engagement

2-29 Identifying and selecting stakeholders Stakeholder engagement 37-38

2-30 Percentage of empioyees covered by 43% of employeesn the

collective bargaining agreements group are covered by
o collective agreements )

2-29 Approaches to stakeholder engagement Stakeholder engagement 37-38

Identified material aspects and boundaries

2-2 Operational structure, units, business Parent Nate 7 Shares in 113-114

areas, subsidiaries and joint ventures subsidianes 47 Yas

3-1 Process to determine materiat topics
32 Listof material topies
3-3 Disclosure on management approach

Foundation of corporate
governance

Sustainability Report
Scope of the GRI report

Concentric's group-wide aspects
and targets in sustainablity

Concentric’s management
approach to sustainabitity
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A high level description of how
material topics have been deter-
mined is included in the Sustain-
ability Report. The organisation
is about to undertake a robust
double materiality assessment
process which will inform next
year's reporting in more detail.

As for 3-1, a high level deserip-
tion of how material topics have
been determined, as well as ref-
erence to indicators and pro-
gress towards targets, is
included in the Sustainability
Report. The upcoming double
rmateriality assessment will
inform Concentric’s ESG strat-
eqgy going forwards and enable
Concentric to better define, and
raport an, indiratnrs, fargets
and lessons learned.
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GRI External
cade Description/indicator Reference ] Page Comments/omissions assurance
Report profile
2-3 Reporting period, frequency and Board of Directors” Report
o contact peint Scope of the GR! Report
2-5 Policy and current practice for 2022 GRIindex
external assurance
Economic performance indicators
201-1 Direct economic value generated Consoclidated Income 78 We do not report payments to
and distributed Statement 79 governmenl by country, and Ves
Consolidated Balance Sheet communily investments, as the ’
informabion is not available
201-3 Defined benefit plan obligations Group Mote 25 Pensions and 99-102 Ves

204-1 Procurement practices

Society

stmilar obligations

Facts and key performance 126
indicators for sustainability

205-1 Number and percentage of operations
assessed for risks related to corruption

206-1 Number of pending/completed legal
actions brought for anti-competitive
behaviour, anti-trust and/or monoepoly
practices

Environmental performance indicators

100% of the group’s apera-
tions were assessed and no
significant risks related to cor-
ruption were identified

301-2 Recycled input materials used
302-1 Energy consumption within organisation

308-1 Percentage of new suppliers that were
screened using environmental criteria

Emptoyment conditions and work conditions

None

Facts and key performance 127
indicators for sustainability

Facts and key performance 127
indicators for sustainability

Facts and key performance 126

indicators for sustainability

403-9 Rates of injuries, lost days, absenteeism,
and number of work related fatalities

405-1 Campaosition of governance bodies and
breakdown of other employee types
according to gender and age group

Supplier human rights

Facts and key performance 126 We do not report by gender as
indicators for sustainability the information 1s not availabie
Facts and key perfarmance 127

indicators for sustainability

414-1 Percentage of new suppliers that were
screened using human rights eriteria

Product responsibility

Facts and key performanee 126
indicators for sustainability

416-2 Nurmber of incidence of non-compliance
with regulations coneerning the health
and safety impacts of products provided
to customers during their life cycle

None
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Global Compact

GLOBAL COMPACT

Althcugh Concentric has not signed the UN’s Global Compact, the the group’s position on issues related te human rights, labour
social and environmental policies adopted by Cencentric are based {aw, accountability for the environment and anti-corruption.

upon the founding ten principles, thereby ciearly demonstrating

Ten principles of the UN’s Global Compact

Human rights Reference Page

1. Support and respect the protection of internationally proclaimed Social policy 40
human rights in the spheres the Company can influence -

2. Make sure that the Company is not complicit in human rights abuses Human rights 40

Labour law

3. Uphold freedom of association and the effective recognition Freedom of contract 40
of the right to collective bargaining ) and association _

4. Elimination of all forms of forced and compulsory labour Forced labour 40

5. Effective abolition of child labeour ) Child tabour ) 40

6. Elimination of discrimination in respect of employment and cccupation Equal opportunities ) 4l

Environment

7. Support a precautionary approach to environmental challenges Sustainability Report 34-43

8. Undertake initiatives tc promote greater environmental responsibility Sustainability Report 3443

9. Encourage the development and diffusion of environmentally fnendly technologies Sustainability Report 34-43

Anti-corruption

10. Work against corruption in all its forms, including extorticn and bribery Anti-corruphion 41



@ 2rmreconciLiATION

APM reconciliation

Underlying EBIT or operating income 2022 2021
EBIT or operating income 677 403
Items affecting comparability:

profit from sale of subsidiary -9 -
Impairment in subsidiary - 22
Acquisition costs ) - 18
Undertying operating income 668 443
Net Sales ) - 4,056 2,115
6perating margin (%) - 16.7 19.1
Underlying operating margin {%) 16.5 209
Underlying EBITDA or Operating income before amortisation and depreciation 2022 2021
EBIT or Operating income 677 403
Operating amortisation/depreciation 115 56
Amortisation of purchase price allocation 73 42
EBITDA or Operating income before amortisation and depreciation 865 501
Profit from sate of subsidiary -9 -
Impairment in subsidiary - 22
Acquisition costs - i8
Underlying EBITDA or Undertying Operating income before amortisation and depreciation 856 541
Net Sales 4,0‘?6 2,115
EBITDA margin (%) 21.3 23,7
Underlying EBITDA margin (%) 211 25.6
Net income bafore items affecting comparability 2022 2021
Net income ) ) 501 338
lems affecting comparability after tax -7 35
Net income before items affecting comparability 494 373
Basic weighted average number of shares (600) 37,961 37,902
Basic earnings per share ) 13.20 8.91
Basic earniﬁgs per share before items affecting comparability 13.01 9.82
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APM RECONCH.|ATION

Net debt 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Pensions and similar obligations o 261 361
Liabilities for right of use fixed assets 114 125
Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 783 791
Short-term interest-bearing liabilities 301 355
Total interest-bearing liabilities ) 1,548 1,632
Cash and cash equivalents 624 440
Total Net Debt 7 o 925 1,192
Net Debt, excluding pension obligations i 664 831
Capital employed 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Total Assets ) S 4495 3,783
Interest bearing financial assets -4 -4
Cash and cash Equivalents 7 o -624 440
Tax assets S 7—1{»75 7_ -103
Non-interest bearing assets (excl taxés) o 7_ 3,722 3,236
Non-interest bearing liabilities (incl taxes) -876 -688
Tax liabilities ' _ a6 201
Non-interest bearing liabilities (excl taxes) -600 ~487
Total Capital Employed ) o ) o 3422 2,749
Working capital 31 Dec 2022 31 Dec 2021
Accounts receivable 393
Other current receivables 56
inventory 382
Working capital assets 831
Accounts payable 7313
Other current payables N -240
Working capital liabilities ~353
Total Working Capital 278
Cash Conversion 2022 2021
Cash flow frem operating activities N o 529 260
Payments for financial transactions o 3 2
Net investments in property, plant and equipment ) -6 , -21
Adjustment for royalty from joint-venture {Alfdex) ) ) -22 -24
Operating Cash o 605 271
Operating income . 677 403
Adjustment for EMP acquisition related cosls and for closure costs of facility in Argentina ) - 40
Adjustment for royalty from joint-venture {Alfdex) - 22 -24
Adjustments for share in profitin joint-venture (Alfdex) -62 -81
Adjusted Operating income 593 338
Cash conversion (%) 102.1 80.2
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. TAXONOMY

Turnover KPI Disclosure Table
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KSEK % % Y% Y Yo Y% % Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N ¥/N % % E/T
A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE
ACTIVITIES . 1,369,818 338
A.1. Taxonomy-aligned -
A.1. Taxonomy-eligible
but not aligned 1,369,818 33.8
Manufacture of ather 2711 1,369,818 338 - N N N N N N N
tow carbon technologies cz8.12
Cz28.13
£28.15
B. TAXONOMY NON-ELIGIBLE
ACTIVITIES 2,686,276 66.2
Manufacture of engines
and turbines c28.11 616,233 15.2
Manufacture of fluid
pewer equipment cz28.12 235044 5.8
Manufacture of pumps
and compressors C28.13 1,624,412 35.1
Manutacture ot electronic
vauipment for vebicles C29.31 10,377 0.3
manufacture of parts and
accessories for vehicles €29.32 266,237 6.6
Revenues with no NACE code N. A 1,267 0.0
Unallocated revenues N. A 132,674 3.3
TOTAL (A + B) 4,056,092 100
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CapEx KPI Disclosure Table

TAXONOMY
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SEK % Y% % % % % % Y/N Y/N ¥/N Y/N Y/N ¥Y/N Y/N %o Y% E/T
A, TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE
ACTIVITIES 41,863,637  67.5
A.1. Taxonomy-aligned - -
A.i. Taxonomy-eligible
but not aligned 41,843,437 67.5
Installation, maintenance
and repair of energy efficiency
equipment 40,358,281 651 100 - - - - - M N N N N N N - - E
installabion, maintenance and
repair of instruments and devices
for measuring, requlation and
controlling energy performance
of buildings 1,485,156 2.4 100 - - - - - N N N N N N N - - £
B. TAXONOMY NON-ELIGIBLE
ACTIVITIES 20,156,563  32.5 )
Non-eligible rapex 9,157,565 14.8
Unallocated capex 10,998,998 17.7
TOTAL (A + B) 62,000,000 100

Opex KPI Disclosure

Table
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2 ) k] b = 3 = = © ™ = R = E '3 c'a =3
& 2 & E E £ 2 2 § E E £ 2 2 ¥ £ g6 28 £
= = = = = = = =3 = =
Economic activities (1) E: 2 & & 8 3 o £ &8 8§ § = 56 & B8 £ 2% &% 33
kSEK Y% Y% % % Y% % % Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N Y/N ¥/N % % E/T
A. TAXONOMY-ELIGIBLE
ACTIVITIES 135,882 4.0
A.1. Taxonomy-aligned - -
A1, Taxonomy-eligible
but not aligned 135,882 4.0
Installation, maintenance
and repair of energy efficiency
equipment o 135,736 4.0 100 - N N N N N N N N N N N - - E
Installation, maintenance and
repair of Instruments and devices
for measuring, regulation and
controlling energy performance
of buildings 146 0.0 100 N N N N N N N N N N N - E
B. TAXONOMY NON-ELIGIBLE
ACTIVITIES 3,243,118 96.0
Non-eligible opex 143 0.0
Unallocated opex 3,242,975 96.0
TOTAL (A + B) 3,379,000 100
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. GLOSSARY

Glossary

65

Method to organise a work space for effi-
ciency and effectiveness by identifying and
storing the items used, maintaining the area
and items, and sustaining the new order.

APM

An alternative performance measure is a
financial measure of historicat or future
financial performance, financial position,
or cash flows, ather than a financial meas-
ure defined or specified in the applicable
financial reporting framework.

Axle cooling
Heat Exchanger to control the temperature
of the axle gear train.

Baler

Farm machinery used to compress a cut and
raked crop (such as hay, straw, or silage)
into compact bales that are easy to handle,
transport and store.

BRIC countries or emerging markets
Brazil, Russia, India and China.

CAN bus

Controller Area Network that connects all
the modules werking throughout the vehicle
so that they can work together to run effec-
tively and efficiently.

v
Commercial Vehicle.

OC Pack Lift/lower
Integrated unit comprising of direct current
motor, hydraulic pump and reservoir.

ECU
Engine Control Unit.

EMP
Engineered Machined Products, tnc and
subsidiaries.

Fan drive
Hydraulic metor used tor driving cooling tan.

Fuel transfer pump
Pump to lift the fuel from the fuel tank to
the high pressure system.

Gerotor pump
Type of positive displacement pump.

Hydraulic hybrid system
Hydraulic propulsion system for vehicles.

Hydraulic power pack
Integrated unit comprising of DC motor,
hydraulic pump and reservoir.

Hydraulic pump
Positive displacement pump for pumping
hydrautlic fluids such as oil.

Implement pump
Hydraulic pump used for auxiliary vehicle
functions.

LTI
Long term incentive.

Net investments in fixed assets
Fixed asset additions net of fixed asset
disposals and retirements.

OEMs
Original Eguipment Manufacturers.

off-highway

Collective term for industrial applications,
agricultural machinery and construction
equipment end-markets.

0il mist separator
Product that recyetes oil from crankcase
gases.

Order backlog
Customer sales orders received which will
be fulfilled over the next three months.

Piston pump

Positive displacement pump that utilises
a moving piston to displace the fluid.
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Poka-Yoke methodology
A method to prevent mistakes from
oceurring.

PPM
Parts Per Million defect rate.

Primary pump
Main pump used in a multi circuit
configuration,

R&D expenditure
Rescarch and development expenditure.,

Secondary circuit pump
Secondary pump used in a multi circuit
configuration.

Seeder motor
Hydraulic motor used for blowing seed into
seeding device for planting.

Stator support
Support to a stationary part of a rotary
systemn in an electric motor or generator.

Steering pump
Hydraulic pump used to provide hydraulic
pawer to a vehicle steering system.

Tier-1, Tier-2 supplier
Different levels of sub suppliers, lypical
within the automotive industry,

Variabte flow oit pump
Oil pump with controliable flow capacity.

Variable flow water pump
Water pump with controllable flow capacity.



Definitions

Book-to-bill
Total sales orders received and booked into
the order backlog during a three month
period, expressed as a percentage of the
total sales invoiced during that same three
manth period.

Bock-to-bill is used as an indicator of the
next quarter’s net sales in comparison to the
salesin the current quarter.

CAGR
Compeund annual growth rate.

Capital employed
Total assets less interest bearing financial
assets and cash and cash equivalents and
nan-interest bearing liabilities, excluding
any tax assets and tax liabilities,

Capital employed measures the amount
of capital used and serves as input for return
oncapital employed.

Dividend yield
Dividend divided by market price at year end.

Drop-through rate

Year-on-year Movement in operating income
as a percentage of the year-on-year move-
ment in net sales.

This measure shows operating leverage of
the business, based on the marginal contri-
bution from the year-on-year movement in
net sales.

EBITDA
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation.

EBITDA is used to measure the cash flow
generated from operating activities, elimi-
nating the impact of financing and account-
ing decisions.

EBITDA margin

EBITCA as a percentage of net sales.
EBITDA margin is used for measuring the

cash flow frem operating activities.

EBIT or Operating income
Earnings before interest and tax.

This measure enables the profitabitity to
be compared across locations where corpo-
rate taxes differ and irrespective the financ-
ing structure of the Company.

EBIT or Operating margin
Operating incame as a percentage of net
sales.

Operating profit margin is used for
measunng the operationdl prefiiability.

ESIT or EBITDA multiple
Market value at year end plus net debt
divided by EBIT or EBITDA.

EPS
Earnings per share, netincome divided by
the average number of shares.

The earnings per share measure the

amount of net profit that is available for pay-

ment to its shareholders per share.

Equity per share

Equity at the end of the period divided by

number of shares at the end of Lhe period.
Equity per share measures the net-asset

value backing up each share of the Comp-

any's equity and determines if a Company is

increasing shareholder value over time.

Gearing ratio
Ratto of net debt to shareholders’ equity.
The net gearing ratic measures the extent
to which the company is funded by debt.
Because cash and overdraft facilities can be
used to pay off debt at short notice, thisis
calculated based on net debt rather than
gross debt.

Gross margin
Net sales less cost of goods sold, as a per-
centage of net sales.

Grass margin measures produclion profit-
ability.

Net debt
Total interest-bearing liabilities, including
pension obligations less liquid funds.

Net debt is used as anindication of the
ability to pay off all debts if these were to
fall due simultaneously on the day of calcu-
lation, using only avaflabte cash and tash
equivalents.

Pay-out ratio
Dividend divided by EPS.
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DEFINITIONS

P/E ratio
Market vaiue at year-end divided by net
earnings.

rocc
Return on capital employed; EBIT or Operat-
ing income as a percentage of the average
capital employed over roiling 12 months.
Return on capital employed is used to
analyse profitability, based on the amount
of capital used. The ieverage of the Com-
pany is the reason that this metric is used
next to return on equity, because it not only
includes equity, but taken into account
other liabilities as well.

ROE
Return on equity; net income as a percent-
age of the average shareholders” equity over
rolling 12 months.

Return on equity is used to measure profit
generation, given the resources attributable
to the Parent Company owners.

Sales growth, constant currency
Growth rate based on sales restated at prior
year foreign exchange rates

This measurement excludes the impact
of changes in exchange rates, enabling a
comparnison on net sales growth over time.

Structural growth

Sales growth derived from new business

centracts, i.e. not from changes in market

demand or replacement business contracts.
Structural changes measure the contribu-

tion of changes in group structure to net

sales growth.

“Underlying” or “before items affecting
comparability”
Adjusted for restructuring costs, impair-
ment, pension curtailment gains/losses and
otker specific items (including the taxation
effects thereon, as appropriate).

Enabling a comparison of operational
business,

Working capital

Current assets excluding cash and cash
equivalents, less non-interest-bearing
current tiabilities.

Working capital is used to measure the
Company's ability, besides cash and cash
equivalents, to meet current operational
obligations.



. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Shareholder information

Concentric’s web site far investors

www.concentricab,com contains information about the Com-
pany, the share and insider information as well as archives for
reports and press releases.

The Annual Report on www.concentricab.com

Concentric has chosen not to distribute its Annual Report
to shareholders to minimise cost and environmental impact.
Annual reports, quarterly reports and press releases are
available on the Concentric's web site for investors.

Reporting calendar for 2023

Annual General Meeting 2023 18 April, 2023
Interim report january - March 2023 3 May, 2023
Interim repert January - fune 2023 26 July, 2023

Interim report January - September 2023 8 November, 2023

2023 Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting will be held in St Clara at 13.00
CET on Tuesday, 18 April, 2023 at Klara Strand, Klarabergs-
viadukten 990, Stockholm

Right to attend and notification to the company

Shareholders wishing to attend the general meeting must:

(i} be recorded as shareholders in the share register maintained
by Euroclear Sweden AB, as of Thursday 6 April 2023; and

(i) notify the company of their intention to participate in the
general meeting no later than on Wednesday 12 April 2023,

Notice may be submitted in writing to the company at the
address Concentric AB, "Annual General Meeting”, c/o Euroclear
Sweden AB, Box 191, 101 23 Stockholm, Sweden or by phone to
+46 8 402 91 33 business days between 9.00 CET and 16.00 CET,
on the company's website, www.concentricab.com or by e-mail
to GeneralMeetingService@euroclear.com. On giving notice of
attendance, the shareholder should state the shareholder’s name
(company name), personal identity number {corporate identity
number), address, telephone number and number of shares, The
registration procedure described above also applies to registra-
tion for any advisors. A sharehotder that exercises its voting rights
through a postal voting form does not have to send in a separaie
notice of participation, see below under postal voting.

Nominee registered shares

In arder to participate in the general meeting, those whose
shares are registered in the name of a nominee must request
their bank or broker to have their shares owner-registered with
Euroclear Sweden AB as of Wednesday 12 April 2023 and the
bank orf broker should therefore be notified in due time before
said date. This registration may be made temporarily.

140

Pastal voting

The shareholders may exercise their voting rights at the general
meeting by postal voting. A special form shall be used for postal
voting. The form is available on the company's website:
www.concentricab.com.

The voting form can also be obtained from the company or
by contacting Euroclear Sweden AB at the contact information
above. For the items on the agenda where the board or the nomi-
nation commitiee have submitted proposals, itis possible to
vote Yes or No, which is clearly stated in the postal voting form.
A shareholder can also abstain from voting on any item.

The completed voting form must be received by the company
no later than on Wednesday 12 April 2023. The postal voting
form is valid as a notification to the meeting. Sharehalders can,
through verification with Bank!D, cast their postal vote elec-
tronically via Euroclear Sweden AB's website:
https:/fanmalan.vpec.se/euroclearproxy?sprak=1.

Such electronic votes must be submitted no tater than
Wednesday 12 April 2023.

The completed form, including any appendices, must be sent
by e-mail to GeneralMeetingService@euroclear.com or alterna-
tively by post in original to Concentric AB, "Annual General
Meeting”, ¢/c Euroclear Sweden AB, Box 191, 101 23 Stockholm,
Sweden. If the shareholder is a legal entity, a registration certifi-
cate or an equivalent authority document, shall be enclosed to
the form. The same applies if the shareholder votes in advance
by proxy.

The shareholder may not provide special instructions or con-
ditions in the voting form. If so, the postal vote is invalid in its
entirety, Further instructions and conditions are included in the
postal voting form.

Proxy and proxy form

Anycne who does not attend the meeting in person may exercise
their right at the meeting via a proxy in possession of a signed
and dated form of proxy. The same applies if a shareholder exer-
cises its voting rights by postal voting. Forms of proxy are avail-
able on the company’s website www.concentricab.com. The
form of proxy may also be obtained from the company ar by con-
tacting Eurcclear Sweden AB at contact information above. If
the proxyisissued by a tegal person, a copy of their registration
certificate or equivalent authority document must be attached.
The proxy must have been issued within the past year unless a
longer period of validity is specified on the form of proxy, sub-
ject to a maximum of five years. To facilitate entry to the meet-
ing, forms of proxy, registration certificates and other documen-
tary authority must be received by the company in good time
before the meeting.



Addresses

Concentric AB (publ)
Box 5058

102 42 Stockholm,
Sweden,

5 Brooklands
Redditeh, Worcestershire
Bag 90w, UK.
Tel: +44 (D) 171 445 p545
Fax: +44(0) 121 445 7780

E-mail: info@concentricab.com
www.concentricab.com

Allied Enterprises, LLC.

3228 W. Kilgore Avenue,

Muncie, IN 47304-4908, USA.

Tel +1 7RR 78R RR49

Fax: +1 765 288 8864

E-mail: info@alliedenterprises.net

Concentric Birmingham Ltd.
Gravelly Park, Tyburn Read,
Birmingham B24 8HW, UK.

Tel: +44 121 327 2081

Fax: +44 121 327 6187

E-mail: info.gbbi@concentricab.com

Concentric Hof GmbH

Hofer Str. 19, 95030 Hof, Germany.
Tel: +49-9281-895-0

Fax: +49-9281-87133

E-mail: info.deho@cencentricab.com

LICOS Trucktec GmbH
Bergheimer Str. 1

D-88677 Markdorf, Germany.
Tel: +49 7544 9546-0

Fax: +49 7544 8546-90

E-mail: info@licostrucktec.com

Concentric Hasca Inc.

800 Hollywood Avenue, Itasca,

IL 60143-1353, USA.

Tel: +1 630 773 3355

Fax: +1 6307731119

E-mail: info.usit@concentricab.com

ADDRESSES

Concentric Pumps Pune Pvt.Ltd.
Gat. No.26/1,27 and 28 {Part),

P.O: Lonikand, Taluka: Haveli,

Pune: 412216, India.

Tel: +91 98 81071264/5/6

Fax: +91 20 27069658

E-mail: info.inpu@concentricab.com

Concentric Pumps (Suzhou) Co.Ltd.
47 Dongjing Industrial Park,

9 Dong Fu Lu,SIP, Suzhou, Jiangsu,
China 215123.

Tel: +86 512 8717 5100

Fax: +86 512 8717 5101

E-mail: info.chsh@concentricab.com

Concentric Rockford Inc.

2222 15th Street, Rockford,

1L 61104, USA.

Tel: +1 815 398-4400

Toll free No: +1 800-572-7867

Fax: +1 815398 5977

E-mail: info.usro@concentricab.com

Engineered Machined Products inc
3111 M. 28th Street, Escanaba,

MI 49829, USA.

Tel: +1 906 786-8404

Fax: +1 906 786-6635

E-mail: info@emp-cerp.com
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